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PART I

Cautiott nary Note Regare dingii Forward-Lo- okingii Stattt emtt ents

Certain inforff mation included in thit s Aii nnual Repore t on ForFF m 10-K is fii orff ward-ldd ooking within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reforff m Act of 1995, and involves riskii s,kk assumptions, and uncertainties that could cll ause actual results ttt o
diffei r materially from those expee ressed or implied by forward-looking statements.tt Forward-looking statements ctt an be idendd tifiei d
by use of fo orff ward-ldd ooking terminology, iyy ncluding terms such as “pl“ an,l ” “believe,” “may,a ” “continue,” “could,”dd “will,”
“should,”ll “would,”ll “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,”t “intend,” “objective,” “seek,” “st“ ritt ve” or, in each case, thett negate ive
of these words, compam rable terminology, oyy r other refee rences to future periods; however, sr tatements mtt ay be forward-looking
whethet r or not these terms or their negatives are used. Forward-looking statements att re not a representation by ub s thatt the
future plans, estimates, or expee ectations contemplm ated by us will be achieved. Odd ur actual results could dll iffeff r materially from the
forward-looking statements itt ncluded herein. We considerdd the assumptm ions and estimates on which forward-looking statementstt
are based to be reasonable, but they are subject to various riskii s akk nd uncertainties relating to our operations, finff ancial results,
financial conditions, business, prospes cts,tt future plans and strat tegie es, projeo ctions, liquidity, tyy hett economy,m and othet r futff ure
conditions. TheTT refoe re, you should nll ot place undue reliance on any of these forff ward-ldd ooking statements.tt Imporm tant factors crr ouldll
cause our actual results ttt o differ materially fll roff m thostt e contained in forff ward-ldd ooking statements itt ncluding, without limitation:
food safea ty issues, including riskii s okk f fo ood-ff borne illnesses, tampering, contamination, and cross-contamination; impacm ts from
the 2024 Cybersecurity Incident or any othet r material faiff lure, inadequacy,c or interruptu ion of oo ur infon rmation technology
systyy ems, including breaches or failures of such systyy ems or other cyberserr curity or data security-related incidents;tt any harm to
our repute ation or brand image; changes in consumer preferff ences or demdd ographic tret nds; thett impacm t of io nflaff tion or changes in
foreign eg xchee ange rates; our ability to execute on our omni-channel business strategy;gg regule atory ir nvestigati ions, enforff cement
actions, or material litigation; and othett r risks and uncertainties described under thet heading “Risk FacFF tors” in thit s Aii nnual
Repore t on ForFF m 10-K and in othet r filff ings we make from time to time with the SecuSS rities and Exchange Commissiii on (“SEC”).”

These forff ward-ldd ooking statements att re made only all s of to hett date of to hit s dii ocdd ument, and we undertake nkk o obligation to publicly
update or reviseii any forward-looking statement whethet r as a result of new inforff mation, future events, or otherwiseii , exceee pte as
may ba e required by lb aw.

Item 1. Business
The Joy of Krispy Kreme

Krispy Kreme, Inc. (“KKI” and, together with its subsu idiaries, the “Company” or “KriK spy KreK me”) is one of the most beloved
and well-known sweet treat brands in the world. Our iconic Original Glazed® doughnut is recognized forff its freff sh, hot-off-the-
line, melt-in-your-mouth experience. Over its 87-year history,rr Krispy Kreme has developed a broad consumer base globally and
currently operates in 40 countries through its unique network of shops (“Doughnut Shops”), partnerships with leading retailers,
and a rapia dly growing digital and delivery business. Our purposrr e of touching and enhancing lives through the joy that is Krispy
Kreme guides how we operate every dr ay and is refleff cted in the love we have for our people, our communities, and the planet.

We are an omni-channel business with 17,557 points of access globally (our “Global Points of Access” and, when referring to
points of access in a particular region or segment, our “Points of Access”), creating awesome fresh doughnut experiences via
(1) our Hot Light Theater and Fresh Shops, (2) Delivered Fresh Daily (“DFD”) branded cabinets and merchandising units
within high traffiff c grocery and convenience stores, quick service or fasff t casual restaurants (“QSR”), club memberships, and
drugrr stores (“DFD Doors”), and (3) digital channels. We have a capital-efficient Hub and Spoke model, which leverages our

3



Doughnut Factories and Hot Light Theater Shops’ production capabilities (together, our “Hubs”) to deliver freff sh doughnuts
daily to local Fresh Shops, Carts and Food Trucrr ks, and DFD Doors (together, our “Spokes”), and through digital channels.

Our business model focff uses on fresh daily premium quality doughnuts produced by the capital-efficient Hub and Spoke model,
and primarily sold via Company controlled Points of Access in the U.S., and with a mix of Company controlled and franchise
Points of Access internationally. In addition to our core offeff rings such as the Original Glazed doughnut, we also focff us on
limited time offeff rings (“LTOs” or “specialty doughnuts”) and seasonal activations to generate buzz forff our brand. A taste of our
offeff rings includes:

The Ingredients of Our Success

We believe the folff lowing competitive differentiators position us to generate significant growth as we continue towards our goal
of becoming the most loved sweet treat brand in the world.

Beloved Globalll Brand with Ubiquitoii us Appepp al

We believe that our brand love and ubiu quitous appeal differentiate us from the competition. We believe that KriK spy KreK me is an
iconic, globally recognized brand with rich history that is epitomized by our fresh Original Glazed doughnut. We believe we are
one of the most loved sweet treat retailers in the U.S. and many markets around the world. We believe we have a loyal and
emotionally connected consumer base.

We continuously seek to understand what consumers are celebrating or experiencing in their lives and actively engage our
followers to activate this emotional connection through memorabla e, sharable moments – our “Acts of Joy” – which we believe
further fueff l our brand love.

Creating Awesome Expexx riences

We provide authentic indulgent experiences, delivering joy through high quality doughnuts made froff m our own proprietary
forff mulations. We utilize strict quality standards and uniform production systems to foster consumer interaction with Krispy
Kreme that is consistent with our brand promise, no matter where in the world the consumer experiences it. We aim to create
product experiences that align with seasonal and trending consumer interests and make positive connections through simple,
frequent, brand-focused offerings that encourage shared experiences.
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We utilize seasonal innovations, alongside the expansion of our core product offering, to inspire consumer wonder and keep our
consumers engaged with the brand and our products. Our sweet treat assortment begins with our iconic Original Glazed
doughnut inspired by our founder’s classic yeast-based recipe that serves as the canvas forff our product innovation and ideation.
Using the Original Glazed doughnut as our foundation, we have expanded our offeff rings to featurtt e everyday classic items such
as our flavor glazes, “doughnut dots”, and “minis,” which lend themselves well to giftiff ng occasions such as birthdays and
school activities. Our seasonal activations create unique assortments centered on holidays and events, with Valentine’s Day, St.
Patrick’s Day, Easter, the Fourth of July, Halloween, and Christmas, all examples of holidays forff which we routinely innovate.
We also aim to maintain brand relevance by participating in significff ant cultural moments. We strategically launch offerings tied
to these historic moments to gain mind share, grow brand love, and help drive sales.

Leveragingii our Omni-Channel ModeMM l to Ett xpanEE d Our Reach

We believe our omni-channel model, enabled by our Hub au nd Spoke approach, allows us to maximize our market opportunity
while ensuring control and quality across our suite of products. Our goal is to provide our fresh doughnuts to consumers as
conveniently and efficiently as possible. We apply a tailored approach across a variety of distinct shop formats to grow in
discrete, highly attractive, and diverse markets, and maintain brand integrity and scarcity value while capitalizing on significant
untapped consumer demand. Many of our shops offeff r drive-thrusrr , which also expand their off-premises reach. The production
capacity of our Hubsu allows us to reach more consumers wherever they may be — whether in a local Fresh Shop, in a grocery
or convenience store, on their commute home or directly to their doorstep via home delivery.r

Hub and Spoke

• Doughnut Factories: Non-consumer facing production Hubsu , which provide fresh doughnuts to our Spoke locations
in certain countries or regions.

• Hot Light Theater Shops: Immersive and interactive experiential shops which provide unique and diffeff rentiated
consumer experiences while serving as local production facff ilities for our network. The average capital investment for a
Hot Light Theater Shop is $2 million to $5 million.

• Fresh Shops: Smaller Doughnut Shops and kiosks, without manufacff turing capabilities, selling freff sh doughnuts
delivered daily from Hub lu ocations. The average capital investment for a Fresh Shop is $0.1 million to $1 million.

• Delivered Fresh Daily: Krispy Kreme branded doughnut cabinets within high traffiff c grocery and convenience
locations, QSR, club mu embership, and drug stores, selling freff sh doughnuts delivered daily to more than 15,000 doors
from Hub locations. The average capital investment for a DFD Door is $2,000 to $10,000.

• Digital: Fresh doughnuts forff pickupkk or delivery, ordered via our branded digital platforms or through third-party
digital channels.
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The Hub and Spoke approach is applied globally and is currently most developed in certain of our international Company-
owned markets. We are in process of appla ying lessons learned in those international markets to the U.S., and particularly to
expansion in top growth areas such as population-dense greenfield markets, which we expect to be a significant driver of
margin expansion in the U.S., as well as in Canada, Japaa n, and in new countries we plan to enter.

Our Segments

We conduct our business through the folff lowing three reported segments:

• U.S.: Includes all Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.S., and Insomnia Cookies Bakeries globally
through the date of deconsolidation (refer to Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestiturt es, to the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K forff more information);

• Internatiott nal: Includes all Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New Zealand,
Mexico, Canada, and Japan; and

• Market Developll ment: Includes fraff nchise operations across the globe.

The folff lowing tabla e presents our Global Points of Access as of December 29, 2024:

Global Points of Access 1

Hot Light
Theater
Shops Fresh Shops

Carts, Food
Trucks, and
Other DFD Doors Total

Company-
Owned

U.S...................................................................... 70 — 9,644 9,951 100
International........................................................ 49 519 17 4,583 5,16 100
Market Development 108 1,095 30 1,205 2,43 —
Total Global Points of Access .......................... 394 1,6 4 47 15,432 17,557 6

(1) Reflects the divestiture of Insomnia Cookies during fisff cal 2024.

Total fisff cal 2024 revenue of $1,665.4 million consists of the folff lowing revenue by reporting segment:
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The U.S. segment’s fiscal 2024 revenue of $1,058.7 million consists of:ff

The International segment’s fiscal 2024 revenue of $519.1 million consists of:ff

The Market Development segment’s fiscal 2024 revenue of $87.6 million consists of:ff
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Our Growth Strategy

We have made investments in our brand, our people, and our infrastructurt e and believe we are well positioned to drive
sustained growth as we execute on our strategy. Across our global organization, we have built a team of talented and highly
engaged KriK spy KreK mers. We continue to take increased control of the U.S. operations to better manage and streamline the
execution of our omni-channel strategy, including accelerating growth across our Doughnut Shops, DFD, and digital channels.
Globally, we have developed an operating model that sets the foundation forff continued expansion in both existing markets, and
new geographies primarily via international fraff nchisees. As a result, we believe we are abla e to combine a globally recognized
and loyalty-inspiring brand with a leading management team and we aim to unlock increased growth in sales and profitaff bia lity
through the folff lowing strategies:

• Drive consumer relevance;

• Expand availabia lity;

• Increase Hub and Spoke effiff ciency;

• Improve capia tal efficiency; and

• Inspire engagement.

Drive consumer relevall nce

We believe that consumers desire an occasional indulgence, and that when they indulge, they want a high quality, emotionally
differentiated experience. We believe we have significant runwrr ay to be part of a greater number of shared indulgence
occasions. On average, U.S. consumers visit Krispy Kreme less than three times per year, creating a significant frequency
opportunity. The success of specialty products, including minis, LTOs, seasonal activations, and flavored glazes, affirms our
belief that our innovations create additional opportunities for consumers to engage with our brand. We intend to strengthen our
product portfolff io by centering further innovation around seasonal and societal events, and through the development of new
innovation platforff ms to drive sustained baseline growth. Our strategy of linking product launches with relevant events has
allowed us to effectively increase consumption occasions while meaningfulff ly engaging with our communities and consumers.

Our marketing and innovation efforts have expanded the number of incremental consumer use cases for KriK spy KreKK me
doughnuts. For example, our gifting value proposition makes doughnuts an ideal way to celebrate everydar y occasions like
birthdays and holidays, through gifting sleeves and personalized gift mff essaging. Our giftiff ng value proposition fulff fills distinct
consumption occasions and will continue to make our brand and products more accessible and allow us to participate with
greater frequency in small and large indulgent occasions, froff m impromptu daily gatherings with family and friff ends to holidays
and weddings, and everytrr hing in between.

Expanxx d availabilityii

We believe there are opportunities to continue to grow in new and existing markets in which we currently operate by further
capitalizing on our strong brand awareness as we deploy our Hub au nd Spoke model. We apply a deliberate appra oach to growing
in these discrete, highly attractive markets while maintaining our brand integrity and scarcity value and unlocking significant
consumer demand. We focus on increasing Global Points of Access through low cost DFD Doors, including in new channels
like QSR and club mu embership, as well as investments in Fresh Shops. A limited number of investments in our experiential Hot
Light Theater shops allows us to implement the Hub au nd Spoke model in new and existing markets. We expect this to lead to
growth in our key Sales per Hub metric as we further leverage the production capacity of existing Hubs.

We believe our omni-channel strategy will allow us to effectively seize expansion opportunities both domestically and
internationally. Despite our high brand awareness, we have a limited presence or no presence in certain key, population-dense
U.S. markets. We also believe we have a significant opportunity to increase our presence in certain of our existing international
markets where we have a less developed Hub and Spoke model. We believe this provides us ample opportunity to grow within
markets in which we are already present. We also view Hub au nd Spoke expansion to other international markets where we do
not currently have a presence as a majoa r growth driver forff the futff urt e. We have identified key international whitespace market
opportunities such as China, Brazil, and parts of Western Europe. Our proven track record of entering new, diverse markets
across multiple continents and deploying the capital-efficient Hub and Spoke approach demonstrates our ability to effeff ctively
penetrate a broad range of market types. We expect to enter new markets primarily via fraff nchise operations (sometimes with us
holding a minority equity interest), to be determined on a case-by-case basis.
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Increase Hub and Spoke effiff ciency

We are making focff used investments in our omni-channel strategy to expand our presence effiff ciently while driving top-line
growth, margin expansion, and capital effiff ciency. The Hub au nd Spoke model enabla es an integrated approach to operations,
which is designed to bring effiff ciencies in production, distribution, and supervisory management while ensuring product
freshness and quality are consistent with our brand promise no matter where consumers experience our doughnuts. By
expanding Points of Access such as new local DFD Doors to existing Hubs, we increase not just total Sales per Hub, but also
profitaff bia lity and capital efficiency because the production Hubs have largely fixff ed costs including rent, utilities, and even labor.

To supporu t the Hub au nd Spoke model in the U.S., we have implemented labora management systems and processes in our shops
and delivery rrr oute optimization technology to suppou rt our DFD logistics chain. In addition, we employ a demand planning
system that is intended to improve service and to deliver both waste and labor effiff ciencies across all our business channels. We
are also investing in automation in the doughnut production process. By streamlining these operations across our platform, we
believe we can continue to deliver on our brand promise and provide joy to our consumers while continuing to drive
effiff ciencies across our platform.

Imprm ove capital effie ciency

We believe we have a strong runway to grow while maximizing capital returt ns, supported by the capital-efficient Hub and
Spoke model. We intend to maximize capital returns both by leveraging existing capacity and making selective, capia tal-light
investments in geographies which currently have limited access to our products or where we have insuffiff cient production to
meet demand. This includes opening in new international fraff nchise markets and evaluating opportunities to refraff nchise certain
international equity markets.

Inspire engagement

We aspire to be a sweet place to work forff our employees, who we refer to as our “KriK spy KreK mers.” Refer to “Team Members
and Human Capia tal Resources” below forff further discussion.

Responsibility

We are committed to touching and enhancing lives through the joy that is Krispy Kreme and our ambition is to Be Sweet in All
That We Do, which represents our Responsibility platforff m. With this platform, we focff us on our greatest opportunities forff
positive social and environmental impact with our people, our communities, and our planet. To outline our journey, progress,
and futff urt e ambitions, we periodically issue our Be Sweet Responss ibility Repore t. To read the fulff l report, visit krispykreme.com/
responsibility-report. The contents of this report are not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K or in
any other report or document we fileff with or furnish to the SEC.

Team Members and Human Capital Resources

Investing in, developing, and maintaining human capia tal is critical to our success. Globally, Krispy Kreme employs
approximately 21,000 Krispy Kremers as of December 29, 2024. We are not a party to any collective bargaining agreement in
the U.S. and most of our equity markets, although we have experienced occasional unionization initiatives.

We depend on our Krispy Kremers to provide great customer service, to make our products in adherence to our high-quality
standards and to maintain the consistency of our operations and logistics chain. While we continue to operate in a competitive
market for talent, we believe that our culturt e, policies, and practices contribute to our strong relationship with our Krispy
Kremers, which we feeff l is instrumrr ental to our business model. Our culture is best capta urt ed by our Leadership Mix, which are
the dozen behaviors that guide us every dr ay. The Leadership Mix was developed based on the beliefs of our foundeff r,
incorporating years of learning on what makes KriK spy KreKK me such a special organization. These cultural behaviors are shared
with Krispy Kremers globally, through an internally developed Leadership Mix training program.
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The Leadership Mix is what keeps our consumers at the center of everytr hing we do and is designed to empower our Krispy
Kremers to do the right thing forff our consumers and for the business. We pride ourselves on being an entrepreneurial and
innovative team that is not afraff id to take smart risks in service of creating awesome doughnut experiences. Consistent with our
Leadership Mix ingredients, we pride ourselves on attracting a diverse team of Krispy Kremers froff m a wide range of
backgrounds. The success of our business is fundaff mentally connected to the well-being of our Krispy Kremers. Accordingly,
we are committed to their health, safetff y, and wellness.

Our Total Rewards platforff m provides KriK spy KreKK mers and their families with access to a variety of competitive, innovative,
flexible, and convenient pay, health, and wellness programs. Our total package of pay and benefitff s is designed to support the
physical, mental, and finff ancial health of our people and includes medical, dental, vision, employee assistance program, lifeff
insurance and retirement benefits as well as disabia lity benefits and assistance with majoa r life aff ctivities, such as educd ational
reimbursement and adoption. Many of these benefitff s are availabla e to our part-time KriK spy KreK mers; we believe that offeff ring
select benefits to our part-time Krispy Kremers offers us a competitive advantage in recruiting and retaining talent. We have
also rolled out employee equity ownership plans across the organization, including for our shop general managers, to
effeff ctively align KriKK spy KreK mers’ incentives with the Company’s long-term strategic goals.

Marketing and Innovation

Our marketing strategy is as unique and innovative as our brand. Krispy Kreme’s marketing strategy is to participate in culture
through “Acts of Joy,” deliver new product experiences that align with seasonal and trending consumer and societal interests,
and create positive connections through simple, freff quent, brand-focused offerings that encourage shared experiences. The
tactics which supporu t this strategy are also distinct. In the U.S., KriK spy KreK me’s paid media strategy is 100% digital with a
heavy focff us on social media where our passionate consumer base engages and shares our marketing programs farff and wide
through their own networks. Earned media is also an important part of our media mix. We create promotions and products that
attract media outlets to our brand. Through the widespread dissemination of our programs through pop culturtt e, entertainment,
and news outlets, we believe we can achieve disproportionately large attention relative to our spend. We believe our marketing
strategy, supporu ted with non-traditional media tactics, has proven to be an effective combination that simultaneously drives
sales while growing brand love. By drawing inspiration froff m important societal events, we create a unique way forff our
consumers to celebrate and engage. Our ability to create this connection between our consumers and our brand is what has
helped make the KriK spy KreK me brand iconic, and helps to solidify our position in popular culture.

Our core product offering, suppu lemented by specialty doughnuts, seasonal activations, and permanent innovations are used to
create consumer wonder and are an essential ingredient in keeping our consumers engaged with the brand and the products. Our
specialty doughnuts are anticipated by consumers and the media alike and generate significant social sharing amongst our fans
and media coverage. The impact of limited time seasonal offerings goes beyond the sales of the innovations themselves; they
drive traffic and create additional sales of our core product offering.
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Krispy Kreme has a brand presence across both emerging and well-establa ished social media platforms, including Facebook,
Instagram, X, YouTube, and TikTok. These channels enable us to engage with our consumers on a personal level, while
spreading the global brand of Krispy Kreme, including communicating promotional activity, featff urt ed products, new shop
openings, and highlighting core equities of the brand. Social media allows precise geo-targeting around our shops and effective
targeting of consumers likely to be interested in our messages.

Supply Chain

Sourcingii and Supplpp iell s

We are committed to sourcing the best ingredients available for our products. The principal ingredients to manufactff urt e our
products include flour, shortening, and sugar which are used to forff mulate our proprietary doughnut mix and concentrate at our
Winston-Salem, North Carolina manufacff turing facility. We procure the raw materials forff these products from diffeff rent vendors.
Although most raw materials we require are typically readily availabla e froff m multiple vendors, we currently have approximately
20 main vendors.

We manufactff urtt e the doughnut mix used to make our doughnuts at our manufacff turing facility in Winston-Salem and a third-
party faciff lity in Pico Rivera, Califorff nia, domestically, and at several locations internationally. In support of international
markets, we produce a concentrate exclusively at our Winston-Salem facff ility for shipping effiff ciency. The concentrate is mixed
with commodity ingredients in local markets to get to a finff ished doughnut mix.

At an additional facff ility in Winston-Salem, we manufacff ture our proprietary doughnut making equipment forff shipment to new
shops and Doughnut Factories around the world. We manufactff urt e a range of doughnut making lines, with different capaa cities to
supporu t the needs of diffeff rent shop types.

We provide other ingredients, packaging and supplu ies, principally to Company-owned and domestic fraff nchise shops. Our
Krispy Kreme shop-level replenishments generally occur on a weekly basis, working with one national distribution partner. In
addition, we work with a regional distribution partner to serve the New York City market.

In the U.S., we operate six Doughnut Factories located in Indianapolis, Indiana, Monroe, Ohio, New York, New York, Elk
Grove, Illinois, Concord, North Carolina, and Fort Lauderdale, Florida. Internationally, we operate 41 Doughnut Factories, of
which 27 are operated by fraff nchisees. Each Doughnut Factory srr upports multiple business channels for KriKK spy KreK me. Each
Doughnut Factory mrr anufacff tures freff sh doughnuts daily, powering the Hub au nd Spoke model by producing product forff Spoke
locations such as Fresh Shops and Carts and Food Trucrr ks. In addition, they also provide DFD finff ished products to supporu t local
and regional markets. We operate DFD routes out of each Doughnut Factory trr o ensure our DFD doughnuts are delivered fresh,
every drr ay, and maintain our highest standards of quality and brand experience.

Qualityll Contrott l

We operate an integrated supplu y chain to help maintain the consistency and quality of products. Our business model is centered
on ensuring consistent quality of our products. In addition to the doughnut mixes and mix concentrate that we manufacff ture, we
have an agreement with an independent food company to manufactff urt e certain doughnut mixes using concentrate forff domestic
regions outside the southeastern U.S. and to provide backupkk mix production capability in the event of a business disruptu ion at
our manufactff urt ing facff ility. In-process quality checks are performed throughout the production process, including ingredients,
moisture percentage, fatff percentage, sieve size, and metal checks. We provide specific instrucrr tions to franchise partners for
storing and cooking our products. All products are transported and stored at ambient temperature.

Competition

We compete in the fragmented indulgence industry.r Our domestic and international competitors include a wide range of
retailers of doughnuts and other sweet treats, coffee shops, and other café aff nd bakery concepts. We compete with snacks sold
through convenience stores, supermarkets, restaurants, digital, and retail stores. The number, size and strength of competitors
vary by region and by category.r We also compete against retailers who sell sweet treats such as cookies, cupcakes, and ice
cream. We compete on elements such as foodff quality, freff shness, convenience, accessibility, customer service, price, and value.
We view our brand engagement, overall consumer experience and the uniqueness of our Original Glazed doughnut as important
factors that distinguish our brand froff m competitors, both in the doughnut and broader indulgence categories.
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Intellectual Property

Our Doughnut Shops are operated under the Krispy Kreme® trademark, and we use many federally and internationally
registered trademarks and service marks, including Original Glazed®, Hot Krispy Kreme Original Glazed Now®, and the logos
associated with these marks. We have registered various trademarks in over 65 other countries, and we generally license the use
of these trademarks to our franchisees for the operation of their Doughnut Shops. We have also licensed our marks forff other
consumer goods. In addition, we maintain certain proprietary formulas that we have establa ished as trade secrets. We believe that
our trademarks, service marks, and trade secrets have significant value and are important to our brand. To better protect our
brand, we have registered and maintain numerous Internet domain names.

Government Regulation

As a company with global operations, we are subju ect to the laws and regulations of the U.S. and the multiple foreign
jurisdictions in which we operate as well as the rulrr es, reporting obligations and interprrr etations of all such requirements and
obligations by various governing bodies, which may diffeff r among jurisdictions. Changes to such laws, regulations, rulrr es,
reporting obligations and related compliance obligations could result in significant costs and adversely impact our capia tal
expenditures, results of operations, and competitive position. We do not currently expect compliance with these laws and
regulations to have a material effect on our capia tal expenditures, results of operations or competitive position as compared to
prior periods.

Seasonality

Our sales peak at various times throughout the year dued to certain promotional events and holiday celebrations. Additionally,
our hot beverage sales generally increase during the fall and winter months while our iced beverage sales generally increase
during the spring and summer months. Quarterly results also may be affected by the timing of the opening of new shops and the
closing of existing shops. For these reasons, results for any fiscal quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be
achieved forff the fulff l fisff cal year.

Research and Development

New product innovation is important to the success of our business. We believe that the development of new Krispy Kreme
doughnuts, beverages, and other products attracts new consumers to our brand, increases shop sales, and allows our shops to
strengthen daypart offeff rings. One of our properties in Winston-Salem includes research and development faciff lities including
test kitchens and doughnut producing equipment used in developing new products and processes.

Available Inforff mation

KKI’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, and all other reports and amendments thereto that we filff e with or furnish to the SEC, are
publicly availabla e freff e of charge on the Investor Relations section of our website at investors.krispykreme.com or at sec.gov as
soon as reasonabla y practicable afteff r these materials are filed with or furff nished to the SEC. We also use our website as a tool to
disclose important information abouta the Company and comply with our disclosure obligations under Regulation Fair
Disclosure. Our corporate governance principles, code of conduct, Board committee charters, and certain other corporrr ate
governance policies are also posted on the Investor Relations section of our website. The inforff mation on our website (or any
webpages referff enced in this Annual Report on Form 10-K) is not part of this or any other report KKI files with, or furff nishes to,
the SEC.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our securities involves a variety of riskii s akk nd uncertainties including those discussed below. If any of the folff lowing
riskii s okk r uncertainties materializeii , our business, financial condition, prospes cts,tt results of operations, cash floff ws, and stock price
could bll e materially all nd adverserr ly affeff cted. Tdd heTT riskii s dkk iscussed below are not the only rll isks we face. Addidd tional riskii s okk r
uncertainties not currently known to us, or that we currently deem immaterial, ml ay alsoll have a material adverserr effeff ct on our
business, financial condition, prospes cts,tt results ott f oo peo rations, cash floff ws, or stock price.

Summary Risk Factors

Riskii s Rkk elatll edtt to Food Safea ty and ConCC sumer PrePP fee rences

• Our business may be adversely affected by food safety issues, including food-borne illnesses, tampering,
contamination, or cross-contamination.

• Changes in consumer preferff ences and demographic trends, including in response to unfavff orable economic conditions,
could negatively impact our business.

Riskii s Rkk elatll edtt to Cybersecurityii , Dyy ata Ptt riPP vacy, Iyy nfII orff marr tion Technologyo , ayy nd Internal Contrott ls

• Any material failure, inadequacy, or interruptu ion of the information technology that we use in our operations has and
may in the future adversely affect our ability to effectively operate our business and result in financial or other loss.

• Breaches or failures of our information technology systems or other cybersecurity or data security-related incidents
have and may in the futff urt e have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

• If we, our franchisees, or our third-party service providers are unabla e to protect regulated, protected, or personally
identifiaff bla e inforff mation, we or they could be exposed to data loss, litigation, regulatory frr inff es, and other liabia lity, which
could harm our reputation and have a material adverse effect on us.

• We have identifieff d a material weakness in our internal control over finff ancial reporting. If our remediation of the
material weakness is not effeff ctive, or if we fail to develop and maintain an effeff ctive system of internal controls, our
ability to produce timely and accurate finff ancial statements may be impaired, investors may lose confidff ence in our
financial reporting, and the price of our common stock may decline.

Riskii s Rkk elatll edtt to Executintt g Our Busineii ss Stratt tegye

• We may not realize the anticipated benefitff s froff m acquisitions, divestitures, investments, or other strategic transactions.

• Our franchisees may affect our operating results and reputation.

• Our DFD business channels depend on key customers and are subju ect to risks if such key customers reduce their
purchases or terminate their relationships with us.

• Our reputation and brand image are essential to our business success.

• Our success depends on our ability to compete with many foodff service businesses.

• If we cannot keep pace with technological changes impacting our industry,rr we may be unabla e to compete effeff ctively,
and our results of operations could be negatively affected.

• We have incurred significant indebtedness, which could adversely affect us.

Riskii s Rkk elatll edtt to Our GloGG bal Expanxx sion and GroGG wthtt

• A key portion of our growth strategy depends on opening new KriK spy KreK me shops and Points of Access both
domestically and internationally.

• We faceff risks as we continue to focus on expansion of our omni-channel business model.

• Political, economic, currency, and other risks associated with our international operations could adversely affect our
and our international fraff nchisees’ operating results.

Riskii s Rkk elatll edtt to Our Supplpp y Cll haCC in

• We are the exclusive or primary srr upplier of key ingredients to shops worldwide and any problems supplying these
ingredients could negatively affect our and our franchisees’ abia lity to make doughnuts.
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• We are the only manufactff urtt er of our doughnut-making equipment. Any problems producing this equipment could
negatively affectff our shops’ abia lity to make doughnuts.

• We have limited vendors forff many of the product components and services that we rely on, and we have a single
vendor for our glaze flaff voring. Any interruptu ion in supply could impair our ability to make and deliver our signature
products, adversely affecting our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

• Our reliance on a single vendor for nearly all distribution of materials and supplies in the U.S. and Canada poses risks
to our and our franchisees’ abia lity to make doughnuts if the vendor fails to provide these materials and supplies in
accordance with our agreement.

• Our profitff ability is sensitive to changes in the cost of raw materials and other commodities and we may not be able to
increase prices to fulff ly offsff et inflationary pressures on costs, which may adversely affect us.

Riskii s Rkk elatll edtt to Our HumHH an Capia taii l

• An inabia lity to recruirr t and retain personnel could have a material adverse effect on our operations.

• Changes in the availabia lity or cost of labora could adversely affect us.

Riskii s Rkk elatll edtt to Regue lation, Litiii gati iott n and Our IntII eltt lell ctual ProPP peo rtytt

• We may be subju ect to litigation that could adversely affect us by increasing our expenses, diverting management
attention, or subju ecting us to significant monetary damages and other remedies.

• Our business may be adversely affected by litigation, regulation and publicity concerning food quality, health, and
other issues, which could negatively affect public policy and consumer preferff ences toward our products.

• Our ability to develop new franchised shops and to enforff ce contractuat l rights against franchisees may be adversely
affeff cted by laws and regulations governing our statust as a fraff nchisor, which could cause franchise revenues to decline.

• Healthcare legislation and other potential employment legislation could adversely affect our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

• Our annual effective income tax rate can change materially as a result of changes in our geographic mix of U.S. and
foreign earnings and other factors, including changes in tax laws and changes made by regulatory ar uthorities.

• The full realization of our deferred tax assets may be affected by a number of factff ors, including future earnings and the
feasibility of ongoing planning strategies.

• We may be affeff cted by matters related to environmental, social, and governance (“Responsibility”) trends and events,
including governmental regulation and supplu y chain disruptrr ions, that may adversely affect us.

• Our failure or inability to obtain, maintain, protect, and enforce our trademarks or other intellectuat l property could
adversely affectff our business and the value of our brand.

Riskii s Rkk elatll edtt to Crises, Cs atCC astt trophic Events, as nd Busineii ss Contintt uityii

• Public health outbrt eaks, epidemics, or pandemics have disruptu ed and may in the futff urt e disruptu , our business, and could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

• Adverse weather conditions, naturt al disasters, war or terrorist attacks, pandemics, or other catastrophic events could
adversely affecff t our business.

Riskii s Rkk elatll edtt to Ownership of our ComCC mon StoSS ck

• Certain provisions of Delaware Law, our certificff ate of incorporrr ation, and our bylaws and the Investors’ Rights
Agreement with JAB Holdings B.V. ("JAB") could hinder, delay, or prevent a change in control of us.

• If the ownership of our common stock continues to be highly concentrated, it may prevent shareholders froff m
influencing significant corporate decisions and may result in conflicff ts of interest.

• The market price of our common stock could be negatively affected by sales of substantial amounts of our common
stock in the public markets.

• We may be unabla e to pay dividends on our common stock.
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Risks Related to Food Safety and Consumer Preferences

Our business may be adverserr ly affeff ctedtt by food safea ty issues, is ncii ludingii food-borne illnesses, tampering, contamtt inatiott n, or
cross-contamtt inatiott n.

We operate in the foodff service sector and are subject to foodff safety concerns, including risks of food-ff borne illnesses, tampering,
contamination, and cross-contamination. These risks may escalate as we launch new products, broaden our distribution through
channels such as our DFD operations, and expand our manufactff urt ing and production facff ilities. Inadequate food safety measures
in our manufactff urt ing facff ilities and Points of Access could lead to temporary sr hutdowns, disruptu ing operations in both our in-
shop and DFD operations. Food safety incidents might also negatively impact the cost and availabia lity of ingredients, leading to
supplu y chain disruptrr ions or reduced profitff margins forff us and our franchise partners.

Moreover, our dependency on third-party delivery sr ervices and third-party Points of Access heightens the risk of these foodff
safety issues. While we oversee some of these third parties’ operations, the quality and service they provide could be
compromised by various factors, including factors that are beyond our control or are unforff eseeabla e, making it challenging to
identify cff ontamination or other defects. The risk is even higher with partners we do not monitor or monitor less rigorously.

Additionally, foodff safety concerns may expose us to legal actions, regulatory ir nvestigations, product recalls, and financial
penalties. Any association of our brand, our franchisees, or the broader foodff service industry wrr ith food safety issues could harm
our reputation, leading to a decline in revenue and profitabia lity.

Changes in cii onsumer prefee rences and demdd ographic trends, is ncii ludingii in response to unfavff orable ell conomic conditioii ns,s
could nll egativtt ely ill mpii act our busineii ss.

The foodff service industry irr s highly susceptible to shifts in consumer preferff ences, including dietary cr hoices and health concerns,
as well as broader facff tors like economic conditions, spending habia ts, demographic changes, traffiff c trends, and competition froff m
other brands. In addition, our products fall into the category or f indulgences, making them particularly sensitive to shifts in
discretionary spending patterns. In the event of unfavff orable economic conditions where we and our franchisees operate, our
consumers may have reduced disposable income, leading to potential reducd tions in their consumption of our products.

Consumer preferff ences could also be negatively impacted by the litigation, legislative and regulatory rr isks described below
under “Risks Related to Regulation and Litigation—Our business may be adversely affected by litigation, regulation and
publicity concerning food quality, health, and other issues, which can negatively affect public policy and consumer preferff ences
toward our products.”

Risks Related to Cybersecurity, Data Privacy, Information Technology, and Internal Controls

We rely on infon rmatiott n techtt nologyo in our opeo rations. Any mn atertt ial faiff luii re, ie naii dequacy,c or interruptu iott n of to hatt t tectt hnologyo
has and may ia n tii hett future adverserr ly affeff ct our abilitii y ttt o ett ffee ctivtt ely oll peo rate our business and result in finaii ncial or other loss.

Our business and that of our franchisees significantly depend on computer systems and information technology. Among other
things, the effeff ctiveness of our business management is closely tied to the reliabia lity and capacity of these systems, and our
omni-channel strategy, particularly our delivery model, relies heavily on robust inforff mation technology systems. As we
diversify aff nd grow our business channels, our susceptibility to related risks intensifies.

We also have experienced business disruptu ions due to failures in critical information technology platforms and continue to face
potential business disruptu ions due to such failures, including those hosted or provided by third parties. These disruptu ions can
stem from hardware and software issues; cyber-attacks, such as those involving computer viruses, ransomware, other malware,
distributed denial-of-service attacks, and nation-state sponsored malicious cyber activity; naturt al disasters, such as earthquakes,
hurricanes, floff ods, and fires; power outages; telecommunications failures; human errors; criminal activities; and intentional
vandalism. For example, durd ing the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024, unauthorized activity on a portion of our information
technology systems resulted in the Company experiencing certain operational disruptu ions, including with online ordering in
parts of the U.S., which materially affeff cted the Company’s business operations. For further inforff mation regarding the 2024
Cybersecurity Incident (definff ed below), see “Cybersecurity” in Item 1C of Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” in Item 7 of Part II of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
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Adapting to evolving consumer expectations and technological advancements is crucrr ial. Any interruptu ion, delay, or flaw in
developing and implementing such advancements, or misjus dging the costs and revenue potential of these initiatives, can hamper
our essential business funcff tions. This could negatively impact our reputation, competitive edge, operational results, and
financial health.

We strive to keep our systems updau ted. However, maintenance of our information technology systems can interruptu access to
our systems. If our mitigation controls fail, especially when updates are not feasible, it could lead to outages, including digital
outages, inforff mation technology system disruptrr ions, and heightened vulnerabia lity to cyber threats.

Our business interruptu ion insurance might not fully cover losses froff m service disruptrr ions caused by system faiff lures or similar
events. Therefore, significant impacts from system faiff lures have and may in the future materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Breaches or failures of oo ur infon rmatiott n techtt nologyo systemtt s or other cyberserr curityii or data stt ecurity-tt related incii idendd ts have
and may in the futff ure have an adverserr effeff ct on our business, finaii ncial conditioii n, and resultsll of operations.

Our and our franchisees’ inforff mation systems and records are at risk of cyber-attacks and security incidents. We periodically
experience directed attacks intended to lead to interruptu ions and delays in operations as well as loss, misuse or theft off f personal
information and other data, confidential inforff mation, or intellectual property. Such attacks or security incidents have occurred
and could occur as a result of hacking attempts, softwff are or system faiff lures, viruses, operator errors, and accidental data leaks.
Cyber-attacks are increasingly sophisticated and varied, ofteff n involving phishing, social engineering, service disruptu ion attacks,
malware, or ransomware, and they may not be detected until they have been active forff some time. Further, these types of threats
may be exacerbated by recent developments in artificial intelligence and its increased use to produce sophisticated malware,
ransomware, phishing schemes, and other fraff udulent activities. Additionally, internal threats exist from employees, fraff nchisees,
contractors, or third parties who might bypass security measures to access or leak sensitive, regulated, or personally identifiaff bla e
information, either maliciously or inadvertently. We have in the past experienced cybersecurity incidents. For example, the
2024 Cybersecurity Incident materially affeff cted the Company’s business operations. For further inforff mation regarding the 2024
Cybersecurity Incident, see “Cybersecurity” in Item 1C of Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” in Item 7 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

The security measures and controls implemented by us or our third-party providers are not foolproof against such incidents and
may be inadequate to prevent a cyber-attack or security breach. A breach or perceived breach in our or our third-party
providers’ inforff mation technology systems could severely interruptu our operations, negatively affect our business, financial
standing, and operational results, and harm our reputation and brand credibility among consumers and business partners. As a
result of the 2024 Cybersecurity Incident, the Company experienced certain operational disruptu ions that resulted in lost sales
and increased expenses related to remediation.

Furthermore, significff ant incidents involving unauthorized access to, theft, exposure, alteration, or misuse of consumer,
employee, or proprietary data, such as the 2024 Cybersecurity Incident, may lead to legal actions, regulatory irr nvestigations, and
non-compliance penalties, which could disruptu our operations, tarnish our reputation, and have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Our cybersecurity insurance may not fully cover the consequences of the 2024 Cybersecurity Incident or potential futff urt e
security breaches or cybersecurity incidents, and futff urt e coverage may not be availabla e at reasonabla e costs or at all. Insurers
might also deny claims for the 2024 Cybersecurity Incident or other incidents. Addressing a security breach requires substantial
financial and operational resources, including remediation of security vulnerabia lities, legal defenff se, and compliance with
notificff ation obligations. Such efforts divert management attention and resources away from our business activities, adversely
affeff cting our business operations, finff ancial condition, and results. Additionally, our effoff rts to remedy these issues may not be
successfulff , and we might face challenges in implementing, maintaining, and upgru ading effective safegff uards.
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If we, oe ur franchisees, or our thitt rdi -pdd arty service providers are unable tll o ptt rotect our consumer and emplm oyll ee data att nd othett r
regue lated, protectt ted, or personally idendd tifii abli e ill nfii orff marr tion, we or our franchisees could be exposxx ed to data ltt osll s, litigati iott n,
regue latory fineii s, and other liabilitii y,tt which could harm our reputattt iott n and have a matertt ial adverserr effeff ct on our busineii ss,
finaii ncial conditioii n and results ott f oo peo rations.

Our operations necessitate collecting, transmitting, and storing large amounts of consumer and employee data, including
sensitive inforff mation like credit and debit card numbers and other personally identifiaff bla e details. This data is housed in our own
and our franchisees’ inforff mation technology systems, as well as those of third-party service providers. Non-compliance with
legal requirements or industry sr tandards could severely damage our brand or reputation, result in significant fines or penalties,
and have a material adverse effectff on our business, financial condition, or results of operations. Additionally, our reliance on
independent service providers for payment processing poses risks if these providers are unabla e or unwilling to offeff r services or
if their costs escalate.

We operate under various data privacy and security laws, directives, and regulations, both domestically and internationally. The
U.S. has a complex landscapea of federal and state data protection regulations, with some state laws offering more stringent
protections. The potential introduction of a comprehensive fedff eral data privacy law could increase complexity and compliance
costs, impact data use strategies, and necessitate additional investments in compliance infraff structurt e.

Internationally, we are subju ect to regulations like the European Union’s General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”) and the
U.K.’s GDPR and Data Protection Act of 2018. These laws impose strict requirements on data handling, including consent,
individual rights, cross-border data transfer, breach notificff ations, and data security and confidff entiality. Non-compliance with
these international regulations could result in significant penalties and legal liabilities forff us and our franchisees. Adapta ing our
and our franchisees’ systems to these evolving requirements may require subsu tantial investment and time.

The interprrr etation and enforcement of data privacy and security laws and standards are evolving, leading to potential
inconsistencies with our data processing practices and policies. Any non-compliance or perceived non-compliance could lead to
fines, audits, investigations, lawsuits, and other penalties. Additionally, any failure to adhere to our public statements and
privacy policies could expose us to legal action, harm our reputation and have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

We have idendd tifieff d a matertt ial weakness in oii ur internal contrott l over finaii ncial reporting. If our remediadd tion of to hett material
weakness is nii ot effeff ctivtt e, or if we fail to develop ao nd maintain an effeff ctivtt e syss tem of io ntii ertt nal controls,ll our abilityii to produce
timely and accurate finaii ncial statements mtt ay be impaim rei d, investors may la osll e confin dence in oii ur finaii ncial reportingii , agg nd the
price of oo ur common stock may da ecldd inll e.

We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and
other laws and regulations applicable to public companies. These laws and regulations require, among other things, that we
maintain effeff ctive internal control over finff ancial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures. They also require
management to perform an annual assessment of the effeff ctiveness of our internal control over finff ancial reporting and disclosure
of any material weaknesses in such controls. We are required to have our independent registered public accounting firff m provide
an attestation report on the effeff ctiveness of our internal control over finff ancial reporting.

We have identifieff d a material weakness in our internal control over finff ancial reporting W. e are evaluating steps to remediate the
material weakness. These remediation measures may be time consuming and costly, and there is no assurance that these
measures will ultimately have the intended effects or that additional material weaknesses will not be identifieff d. In addition,
even if we are successfulff in strengthening our controls and procedures, in the future those controls and procedures may not be
adequate to prevent or identify iff rregularities or errors or to facilitate the faiff r presentation of our financial statements. For
additional inforff mation related to the material weakness in internal control over finff ancial reporting and the related remedial
measures, see Item 9A, “Controls and Procedurd es,” of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Any faiff lure to remediate the identifieff d material weakness, or develop or maintain effective internal control over finff ancial
reporting and disclosure controls, or any difficulties encountered in their implementation or improvement, could result in a
restatement of our consolidated financial statements forff prior periods, cause us to fail to meet our financial and other reporting
obligations, result in an adverse opinion regarding our internal control over finff ancial reporting from our independent registered
public accounting firm, or lead to investigations or sanctions by regulatory arr uthorities or other potential claims or litigation.
Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations, and
could cause our investors to lose confidff ence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports and the price of our
common stock to decline.
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Risks Related to Executing Our Business Strategy

We may na ot realizll e thett anticipatedtt benefie tsii from past or potentt tial futff ure acquisiii tioii ns, ds ivdd estituii res, investments,tt or othett r
stratt tegie c tratt nsactions.

We periodically assess and may engage in mergers, acquisitions, fulff l or partial divestiturt es, joint venturt es, strategic
partnerships, minority investments, or other strategic initiatives to execute on our growth strategy. We make these decisions
based on individual circumstances.

Such strategic endeavors come with inherent risks, including but not limited to:

• The challenges, delays, and costs associated with integrating acquired KriK spy KreKK me franchised shops, Points of
Access, and strategic partnerships into our existing structurt e, including potential faiff lure to achieve anticipated
synergies or retain key staff;ff

• Diverting management focff us from everyday operations or other important initiatives to effeff ctively implement our
growth strategy;

• The risk of not achieving expected revenue, profit, or cash flow from acquisitions (including newly acquired KriKK spy
Kreme fraff nchised shops), full or partial divestitures (including in connection with refranchising certain international
equity markets), investments or other strategic transactions;

• The potential to inherit significant contingent or unforff eseen liabia lities through acquisitions or other strategic dealings;
and

• The risk of significant value depreciation in our investments, possibly leading to goodwill impairment charges for
acquired entities.

Our past and future strategic transactions may not yield the anticipated benefitsff , and could negatively impact our reputation and
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Our fraff nchiseii es may aa ffea ct our opeo rating resultsll and reputattt iott n.

Our abia lity to influence the management of our franchisees’ businesses is limited, and their potential faiff lure to operate
effeff ctively could negatively impact our overall operating results and reputation. While we provide training and support, our
franchisees run their own independent businesses. This means that the operational quality of franchised shops may suffeff r dued to
factors outside our control. Additionally, fraff nchisees might not always manage their shops in compliance with relevant laws
and regulations or align with our established standards and requirements. Furthermore, there’s a risk that franchisees may
struggle to recruirr t and train competent managers and staff.

Currently, we maintain a generally positive relationship with our franchisees. However, futff urt e developments, some of which
may be beyond our control, could potentially strain these relationships with both existing and new fraff nchisees. Should our
franchisees fail to operate successfulff ly or adhere to our standards and requirements, it could substantially harm the image and
reputation of both individual fraff nchisees and our overall brand. Such scenarios could lead to a marked decline in Krispy Kreme-
branded sales, adversely affecting our revenue and profitabia lity.

Our DFD busineii ss channels depeee nd on key ce ustomers and are subject to riskii s ikk f si uch key customtt ers rrr educe thett ir purchases
or terminate ttt hett ir relationships with utt s.

A considerable portion of our revenue comes froff m sales to retail customers via our DFD channels, which necessitate a
subsu tantial infraff structurt e with notable fixed and semi-fixed costs. In our global operations, we serve a number of large retail
customers, yet no single customer contributed to more than 10% of our total revenue in the fisff cal years ending December 29,
2024, December 31, 2023, or January 1, 2023. These customers are not committed to purchase any particular quantities and
purchases are influff enced by factors like pricing, product quality, consistency, consumer demand, and service excellence.
Moreover, if we fail to adhere to the terms of our agreement with a customer, such customer may be entitled to remedies under
the contract such as money damages or early termination. In addition, there is a possibility that our DFD customers might
reallocate their shelf space or menu offeff ring, currently occupiu ed by our products, to other items, possibly including private label
goods. Consequently, a loss or significant decrease in sales to one of these key retail customers, or if they encounter subsu tantial
financial issues, could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
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Our reputattt iott n and brand imaii gea are essentiatt l to ott ur busineii ss success.

We believe Krispy Kreme is one of the most beloved and well-known sweet treat brands in the world. Our continued success
hinges on our and our franchisees’ abia lity to uphold our brand image, penetrate new markets and distribution channels, innovate
with new product offerings, and consistently deliver high-quality, delectable products to our consumers.

While we are committed to nurturing and enhancing our brand image and reputation through marketing investments, including
traditional advertising and consumer promotions, we place a significant emphasis on social media for most of our marketing
activities. Our growing dependency on social media and digital platforff ms for advertising means that the speed and reach at
which inforff mation, as well as misinforff mation and opinions, are spread is amplifieff d. Negative feeff dback or commentary arr bouta
us, our brands, or our products on social or digital media could severely harm our brand reputation. This risk is particularly
acute given our reliance on social media to bolster our brand and maintain consumer loyalty and engagement.

Our reputation is also shapea d by consumers’ subju ective perceptions. Real or perceived quality or food safety concerns or
failures to comply with applicable food regulations and requirements, whether or not ultimately based on facff t and whether or
not involving us (such as incidents involving our competitors), could cause negative publicity and reducd ed confidff ence in our
company, brand or products, or the industry arr s a whole, which could in turtt n harm our reputation and sales, and could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results. There is no assurance that this health risk will
always be preempted by our quality control processes. Any regulatory or r legal challenges, product recalls, or other negative
publicity could tarnish our reputation and brand image, erode consumer trusrr t, and diminish long-term demand for our products.
Failure to effeff ctively maintain, enhance, and grow our brand image could have a material adverse effect on our business
operations, finff ancial health, and overall performance.

Our success depdd ends on our abiliii tyii to compete wtt ith mtt any fn oodff service businesses.

We operate in a highly competitive foodff service landscape. With relatively low start-up costs forff retail indulgence and similar
food service ventures and few barriers to entry, our competitors include a variety of independent local operators, in addition to
well-capitalized regional, national, and international players and fraff nchises, and new competitors may emerge at any time. We
face competition froff m a diverse array of indulgence retailers and bakeries, specialty coffee shops, other specialty shops offeff ring
doughnuts or other sweet treats, bagel stores, quick service restaurants, delicatessens, take-out services, convenience stores, and
supeu rmarkets.

Our abia lity to compete will depend on the success of our plans to effectively respond to consumer preferff ences, improve existing
products, develop and roll-out new products, and manage the complexity of operations as well as the impact of our competitors’
actions. In addition, our long-term success will depend on our ability to strengthen our consumers’ digital experience through
mobile ordering, delivery,r kiosks, loyalty programs, and social interaction. Some of our competitors offeff r a broader product
range and have substantially greater financial resources, higher revenues, and greater economies of scale than we do. These
advantages may allow them to offeff r aggressive pricing, implement their operational strategies more quickly or effeff ctively than
we can, or benefitff from changes in technologies, which could harm our competitive position. These competitive advantages
may be exacerbated in a diffiff cult economy, thereby permitting our competitors to gain market share. We may be unabla e to
successfulff ly respond to changing consumer preferff ences, including with respect to new technologies and alternative methods of
delivery.rr In addition, online platforff ms and aggregators may direct potential customers to other options based on paid
placements, online reviews or other factff ors. If we are unabla e to maintain our competitive position, we could experience lower
demand for products, downward pressure on prices, reducd ed margins, an inability to take advantage of new business
opportunities, a loss of market share, and reduced profitaff bia lity.

Furthermore, our omni-channel strategy, particularly exemplifieff d by our delivery offeff rings, competes in a fiercely contested
arena with both local and international indulgence brands. While we manage our own digital platforff m, we depend on third-party
delivery srr ervices for the final leg of product distribution. We also partner with third parties on these platforms, where they
handle the entire consumer transaction, including delivery. Our consumers might opt for other indulgence providers’ digital
platforms or delivery sr ervices due to factors like delivery rrr each, appa usability, and overall market preferff ence for foodff deliveryrr
services.

If we fail to compete effectively, our ability to sustain or grow our revenues and profitsff , as well as to capitalize on the expected
growth through our omni-channel model, could be compromised which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations, and future prospects.
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If we cannot keep pee ace with technologio cal changes impacm tingii our indii ustry,r we may ba e unable tll o ctt ompem te effeff ctivtt ely,ll and our
results of operations could be negate ivtt ely all ffea ctedtt .dd

Emerging technologies such as artificial intelligence, machine learning, and automation are impacting many indusd tries and
business operations, including ours. If we do not adequately invest in new technology, appropriately implement new
technologies, or evolve our business at suffiff cient speed and scale in response to such developments, or if we do not make
strategic investments to respond to these developments, our products, results of operations, and ability to develop and maintain
our business could be negatively affeff cted. Our competitors or other third parties may incorporate such technologies into their
products and operations more quickly or more successfulff ly than us, which could impair our ability to compete effectively and
adversely affect our results of operations.

Moreover, we cannot predict consumer or team member acceptance of these developing technologies (e.g. automation, artificff ial
intelligence, and new delivery channels) or their impact on our business, nor can we be certain of our ability to implement such
technologies, any of which could result in loss of sales, dissatisfactff ion froff m our customers and employees, or negative publicity
that could adversely affect our reputation and financial results.

We have incurred signigg fii cant indebtedtt nedd ss, which could adverserr ly affeff ct us, is ncii ludingii decreasingii our business fleff xiee bii lityii
and incii reasing our interest expexx nse.

The Company has a significant level of indebtedness, which carries potential adverse consequences, such as constraining our
operational fleff xibility and elevating our interest expenses. This indebtedness has the potential to limit the fundsff availabla e forff
critical aspects of our business, including working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, and fulfilliff ng our obligation to
repay or refinff ance maturing debt, in addition to other general corporate requirements. Furthermore, it places us at a competitive
disadvantage relative to companies with lower levels of debt. If our financial performance falls short of current expectations,
servicing our debt could become challenging.

Additionally, we may incur additional indebtedness, guarantees, commitments, or liabia lities in the future. The need for
refinff ancing, in part or in full, of our existing indebtedness before maturity is a distinct possibility. There is no guarantee that we
will be able to secure refinancing on favff orable terms or at all. Should our business faiff l to generate suffiff cient cash floff w froff m
operations or if we encounter difficulty securing futff urt e debt or equity financing on acceptabla e terms and in suffiff cient amounts
to meet our debt obligations or address other liquidity requirements, our financial health and operational results may suffeff r.

Risks Related to Our Global Expansion and Growth

A key portion of oo ur growth stratt tegye depeee nds odd n opeo ningii new KriKK spii y Kpp reKK me shops and PoiPP ntii s ott f Ao ccess both dtt omdd esticallyll
and intii ertt nationally.ll

Our strategic focus includes expanding our Global Points of Access, encompassing the establishment of new shops, DFD
Doors, and digital platforms, both in our current markets and new regions. However, the effeff ctive implementation of this
expansion strategy may be impacted by external factors outside the control of both us and our franchisees, potentially hindering
shop development and impeding our overall growth objectives. Operational challenges, such as difficulties in sourcing product
components or logistical services, may also impose limitations.

Additionally, our presence in certain international markets heavily depends on our franchisees. There is no guarantee that these
franchisees will successfulff ly develop or manage their Points of Access in alignment with our brand standards. Moreover, their
ability to effeff ctively open, operate, and sustain these Points of Access in accordance with their agreements and our brand
requirements may be constrained by their business capabilities or finff ancial resources. A failure of any of the foregoing could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and future prospects.

We face riskii s akk s we continue to focus on expanee sion of our omni-channel business model.

Our ongoing expansion of the omni-channel business model involves substantial costs and uncertainties. These stem froff m
various factors, including the expansion of Points of Access, enhancement of manufacff turing capaa bia lities, usage of inforff mation
technology and logistics systems, and adjud stments in our corporate strucrr ture and workforff ce.
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The success of this expansion is contingent upon our ability to effectively leverage and realize certain objectives. These include
finding suitabla e retail partners, extending our market reach, and building and sustaining the manufactff urt ing and logistical
capabilities required to fulfilff l our delivery commitments. Furthermore, this expansion could intensify or be affeff cted by other
risk factors mentioned herein, particularly those concerning our logistical and manufacff turing capaa cities and our competitiveness
in the indulgence market.

As previously disclosed, we expect to outsource to one or more third-party logistics (“3PL”) carriers the daily delivery orr f freff sh
doughnuts to grocers, convenience stores, quick service restaurants, and others. To the extent that we outsource logistics, we
would have reducd ed control over the related processes, costs, and quality control. Our reliance on third parties may lead to
shipping delays and disruptu ions, unanticipated costs, and faiff lures to provide adequate customer service that are outside of our
direct control. If we are not satisfieff d with a 3PL carrier, we may be unabla e to quickly pivot away from utilizing its services and,
even if we are abla e to do so, we may be subject to significant penalties forff doing so. Any of these consequences could have a
material adverse effect on our reputation, business, operating results, and finff ancial condition.

There is no assurance that we will attain the expected benefits or achieve the cost savings, revenue growth, and other positive
outcomes needed to counterbar lance the costs and risks associated with this expansion.

Political, ell conomic, cc urrency,c and other riskii s akk ssociati edtt withii our intii ertt national opeo rations could hll ave a materiali adverserr
effeff ct on our and our intii ertt national franchisees’ opeo ratingii results.

Our company operates a subsu tantial portion of its business outside the U.S. As of December 29, 2024, there were 7,540 Krispy
Kreme Points of Access internationally, excluding Doughnut Factories. This accounts forff 43% of the total number of our Points
of Access. Among these, 2,372 are managed by franchisees. Our international operations, encompassing various business
segments, are subju ect to numerous risks inherent to foreign markets. These risks include, but are not limited to:

• Exposure to recessionary or growth trends in global markets, impacting consumer spending and market stabia lity;

• Ongoing reforms in areas like public health, foodff safety, tariffsff , taxation, sustainabia lity, and climate change response
leading to regulatory ur ncertainties and potential spikes in compliance costs;

• Challenges in adhering to international foodff safety regulations and maintaining high standards of product quality and
safety;

• Navigating varyirr ng import and business licensing requirements across countries;

• Constraints in fundff repatriation and forff eign currency exchange, influff enced by U.S. and international laws;

• Diffiff culties in managing and staffiff ng international operations, supply chain logistics, and ensuring consistent product
quality and service;

• Risks associated with franchisee disputes, operational faiff lures, development delays, or site selection issues;

• Complexities and costs arising from local labora laws in hiring, retaining, or terminating staff;

• Facing strong competition in new markets with established local players;

• Political unrest, disputes or war, or labora unrest impacting countries in which we or our franchisees operate; and

• Potential increase in anti-American sentiment affeff cting brand image, as KriKK spy KreK me is widely recognized as an
American brand.

Our finff ancial performance and asset valuation in forff eign markets are susceptible to currency exchange rate fluctuations and
liquidity issues, which could negatively impact reported earnings. Royalties froff m international fraff nchisees, calculated as a
percentage of their net sales, are subject to currency conversion risks. An increase in our reliance on international operations
amplifieff s our vulnerabia lity to foreign political and economic instability, currency volatility, and regulatory crr onstraints on
currency conversion and remittance.

Moreover, our international operations predominantly rely on exporting doughnut mixes and concentrates to franchisees. These
exports are governed by numerous U.S. and international regulations concerning food products. In the event of a ban or other
restrictions on any of our ingredients, we may not be able to identify suitable alternatives on acceptabla e time fraff mes or at all,
potentially delaying our expansion plans.

Our expanding international presence heightens our exposure to a diverse range of risks associated with foreign market
operations, regulatory er nvironments, and global economic conditions.
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Risks Related to Our Supply Chain

We are thett exclusive or primaii ry supplu iell r of do oudd ghu nut mixes and other key ie ngii redients to shops worldwll ide add nd any pn roblemll s
supplu yill ngii these ingii redients could nll egativtt ely all ffea ct our and our fraff nchiseii es’ abilitii y ttt o mtt ake doughu nuts.tt

We serve as the exclusive supplier of doughnut mixes to numerous domestic and international KriK spy KreK me shops. In support
of international markets, we produce a concentrate that is mixed with commodity ingredients in local markets to get to a
finished doughnut mix. We serve as the exclusive supplu ier of such mix concentrate. Furthermore, we are the sole supplu ier of
specific critical ingredients to all domestic Company-owned shops, the majoa rity of domestic fraff nchise shops, and select
international fraff nchise shops.

Our mix concentrate is manufactff urt ed at our facility located in Winston-Salem, North Carolina. Domestic doughnut mix
production occurs at our Winston-Salem plant and a third-party faciff lity in Pico Rivera, Califorff nia. The distribution of doughnut
mixes, essential ingredients, and flaff vors to KriKK spy KreK me shops, both domestically and internationally, is facff ilitated by a limited
number of independent contract distributors. It is important to note that any disruptrr ion in the production or distribution of our
mixes and concentrates would have a cascading effeff ct on our global supply chain, with no adequate alternative source availabla e.

A production interruptu ion at any significant manufactff urtt ing faciff lity could hinder our, and our franchisees’, ability to produce
doughnuts domestically. Internationally, we operate several plants forff doughnut mix production, and any disruptrr ion at these
facilities could impact doughnut production capabilities regionally, affeff cting our locations and those of our franchisees.

Our international shipments of mixes and concentrates primarily depart from a single port in Florida. Any delays in shipping or
disruptrr ions in logistics chains could adversely affect our international operations as well as those of our franchisees. Such
delays may result froff m known or unforff eseen events, including those related to adverse weather conditions, customs and border
closures, trade confliff cts, and general trade route delays.

Furthermore, unexpected termination of our relationships with raw material suppliers, even when multiple suppliers exist forff
the same ingredient, may hinder our ability to secure adequate quantities of high-quality ingredients at competitive prices. As
we continue our global expansion, these risks may intensify, leading to supplu y shortages, logistical challenges, and increased
operational costs associated with managing and supplying a global network of Krispy Kreme shops.

We are thett only manufacff turer of oo ur doughu nut-mtt akingii equipmii ent. Any pn roblemll s producingii this equipmii ent could
negate ivtt ely all ffea ct our shopso ’ abilitii y ttt o mtt ake doughu nuts.tt

Safeguarding our manufacff turing operations to ensure a consistent supplu y of equipment to support our expanding network of
shops and the maintenance requirements of our existing locations is essential to our business. Our custom doughnut-making
equipment is exclusively manufacturtt ed at a single facff ility located in Winston-Salem. The process of manufacff turing new
equipment swiftly in the event of a disruptu ion at our Winston-Salem facff ility would present significant challenges.

In the event of such a disruptu ion, we would be compelled to explore alternative options, such as partnering with third-party
manufactff urt ers or relocating production to another facff ility. This transition may entail subsu tantial delays in the manufacff turing
process and result in increased costs. Consequently, we may be unabla e to provide equipment to newly establa ished shops or
essential replacement parts forff maintenance in existing shops on a timely basis or at all which could have a material adverse
effeff ct on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We have limited vendors frr orff many of the product components and services that we rely on, and we have a single vll endor for
our glagg ze flavll oringii . Agg ny interruptu iott n in sii upplpp y cll ould impair oi ur abiliii tyii to make and deldd ivll er our signagg ture products,tt
adverserr ly affeff ctintt g our busineii ss, finaii ncial conditiii on, and results of operations.

While we possess exclusive ownership of the recipes for our glaze flaff voring and glaze base, we currently rely on a single
vendor for the essential ingredients needed to produce glaze flavoring. Our dependence on this vendor exposes us to significant
risks, including shortages, supplu y interruptu ions, and price fluff ctuatt tions.

Any disruptu ion in the supply chain of glaze flavoring could have adverse consequences on our abia lity to produce and deliver our
signature products, including the hot Original Glazed doughnut, to our consumers in a timely and competitive manner. Such
interruptu ions could also impact our operational performance. In the event of such an interruptu ion, it is possible that suitabla e
replacement products cannot be secured promptly or at all which could result in loss of revenue resulting froff m the inability to
offeff r our products and the associated increase in administrative and shipping expenses.
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Furthermore, our reliance on a sole vendor to produce glaze flavoring, and on a limited number of vendors forff other product
components and services, exposes us to heightened risks associated with the distribution networks of these vendors. Factors
such as fuel price increases, labor strikes, organized labor activities, adverse weather conditions, and various unforff eseen
variables may hinder our provider’s capacity to meet our logistical requirements. If we encounter difficulties in sourcing
alternative logistical providers, our costs may experience significant escalation. If we are unabla e to pass on these increased costs
to our consumers through higher product prices, it could adversely affect our business, financial health, and operational results.

Our reliall nce on a singii leg vendor for nearly all ll distii ritt bui tion of materiali s all nd supplu iell s in tii hett U.S. and CanCC ada poses riskii s tkk ott
our and our fraff nchiseii es’ abiliii tyii to make doughu nuts itt f ti hett vendor faiff lsii to provide tdd hett se materiali s all nd supplu iell s in aii ccordance
withii our agra eement.

The reliabia lity and continuity of our supplu y chain is critical to the seamless operation of our shops in the U.S. and Canada. We
have establa ished an exclusive distribution partnership with BakeMark USA LLC (“BakeMark”), which grants the exclusive
rights to BakeMark to distribute ingredients, packaging, and supplies to both Company-owned and franchise shops in all
regions of the U.S. other than New York City, and Canada. In the event that BakeMark encounters economic or operational
challenges, it could potentially lead to disruptrr ions within our supplu y chain in the U.S. and Canada.

We may be unabla e to secure an alternative distribution channel in a timely manner or at all to mitigate these disruptu ions and
challenges. In some cases, we may need to temporarily halt production at the affected shops until suitabla e alternative
arrangements can be put in place.

Furthermore, the cost of a replacement distribution channel could negatively affeff ct the finff ancial performance of these shops. A
severe disruptrr ion to our BakeMark distribution partnership has the potential to result in a significant and adverse effect on our
overall business, consolidated financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

Our profio taii bilityii is sensitive to changes in tii hett cost of raw matertt ials and other commoditieii s and we may na ot be able tll ott
increase prices to fully oll ffso et infln atll iott nary pressures on costs, ws hich may aa dverserr ly affeff ct our finff anciali conditdd iott n or resultsll of
operations.

During recent years, our operating environment has been impacted by inflaff tion. Increases in commodity and supply chain costs,
such as the costs of raw materials, packaging materials, labora , energy, fuel, and transportation, have led to higher production
and distribution costs for our products. Many of the costs referff red to abovea are subject to fluctuations due to a number of
factors, including, but not limited to, market conditions, economic and geopolitical uncertainty, demand forff raw materials,
weather, energy costs, currency fluff ctuatt tions, supplier capacities, governmental actions, import and export requirements
(including tariffs), armed hostilities, and other factors beyond our control. Among our essential ingredients, three stand out in
significance: flour, shortening, and sugar. Furthermore, we procure a significant quantity of gasoline forff our delivery vehicle
fleet serving our DFD business, as well as significant amounts of packaging materials, including our boxes forff dozens, half-ff
dozens, and three-packs of doughnuts. The prices of key inputs forff the production and distribution of our products such as these
have been volatile in recent years and may continue to be volatile in the future.

We employ forward purchase contracts, futures contracts, and options on such contracts to mitigate the risks associated with
commodity price fluff ctuat tions, however these contracts may not fully protect us against commodity price risk, particularly over
extended timeframes. Additionally, the portion of our anticipated futff urt e commodity requirements covered by such contracts can
vary over time.

Our attempts to offsff et these cost pressures, such as through increases in the selling prices of some of our products and
leveraging our market size to secure economies of scale in procurement, may not be successfulff . Higher product prices may
result in reductions in sales volume. Consumers may be less willing to pay a price differential forff our branded products and may
increasingly purchase lower-priced offerings, or may forego some purchases altogether, durd ing an economic downturt n or times
of increased inflationary pressure. To the extent that price increases or packaging size decreases are not sufficient to offset these
increased costs adequately or in a timely manner, or if they result in significant decreases in sales volume, our finff ancial
condition, results of operations, and cash floff ws may be adversely affected.
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Risks Related to Our Human Capital

An inabilityii to recruit aii nd retain personnel could have a matertt ial adverserr effeff ct on our opeo rations.

Our KriK spy KreK mers play a pivotal role in delivering exceptional service and creating memorable experiences forff our
consumers. They are indispensabla e forff the smooth operation of our retail outlets, manufacff turing facilities, and delivery lr ogistics.
Our abia lity to maintain the highest product quality, whether in our Hot Light Theater Shops or at one of our DFD access points,
heavily relies on our Krispy Kremers.

Furthermore, our continued success hinges on the ongoing contributions of our senior management and key personnel, and our
ability to retain and motivate them. However, certain economic and social trends beyond our control, such as labora shortages,
may pose challenges in recruiting and retaining talented KriK spy KreK mers, including our senior management and other key
personnel.

As our business continues to grow, it becomes increasingly challenging to identify and hire a sufficient number of employees
and provide comprehensive training to ensure consistent product quality and outstanding consumer experiences worldwide.

Given the recent changes to streamline our management structurt e, the departure of any key person could have a significant
impact and would be potentially disruptrr ive to our business until such time as a suitabla e replacement is hired. These changes
may also increase the likelihood of turnover amongst our employees and impact our relationships with our customers and other
market participants, which may create uncertainty concerning our future direction and performance and negatively impact our
ability to execute our business strategy quickly and effectively. Moreover, a faiff lure to maintain an adequate number of
employees with appropriate skill sets and talent could delay the execution of our operational strategies, result in loss of
institutional knowledge, and reduce our supplu y of futff urt e management skill. Any of these consequences could adversely affect
our business, operating results and finff ancial condition.

If we encounter difficulties in recruirr ting, retaining, and motivating KriK spy KreK mers to supporu t our projected growth and
strategic initiatives, it could have a material adverse effect on our overall operations.

Changes in tii hett availaii biliii tyii or cost of labor could all dverserr ly affeff ct our business, finaii ncial conditioii n, and resultsll of
operations.

Our business is susceptible to potential adverse impacts arising from rising labor costs, encompassing wages and employee
benefits. These cost increases may stem from various factors, including state and federal legislation, regulatory ar ctions related
to wages, scheduling, and benefitsff , as well as escalating healthcare and workers’ compensation insurance expenses.
Additionally, there may be a need to enhance wages and benefitff s to attract and retain highly skilled employees with the
requisite expertise. Moreover, failure to adequately monitor and proactively respond to employee dissatisfaction could lead to
poor guest satisfaction, higher turt nover, litigation and unionization effoff rts, which could have an adverse effect on our results of
operations.

We could encounter challenges related to the availabia lity of labor for in-shop positions. This shortage may be influff enced by
evolving market trends, changing employment conditions, the emergence of new telecommuting job opportunities, and other
factors that can reduce the pool of qualifieff d talent forff critical roles within our organization.

The fluff ctuat ting landscapea of labora availabia lity and costs could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

Risks Related to Regulation and Litigation

We may ba e subjeb ct to litigii atiott n thatt t could adverserr ly affeff ct us by increasingii our expeee nses, ds ivdd ertingii managea ment attett ntiott n, or
subjectintt g us to stt ignigg fii cant monetary damages and othett r remediedd s.

From time to time, we are party to various claims, disputes, or legal proceedings. These disputes could encompass a wide range
of issues, including employment, intellectuatt l property, operational, regulatory cr ompliance, foreign exchange, tax, fraff nchise, and
contractuat l matters. They may also pertain to diverse areas such as personal injury,r franchisee employment, real estate,
environmental concerns, tort claims, intellectuat l property disputes, breaches of contract, data privacy issues, securities
litigation, derivative actions, and various other legal matters. Notably, plaintiffs ofteff n seek substantial or undetermined amounts
in damages, and lawsuits inherently carry uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control.

24



We manage and mitigate certain legal risks through policies, terms of use, arbitration agreements, limitations of liability, venue
selection, choice-of-lff aw, and indemnificff ation requirements. These requirements may be subju ect to differing interpretations,
rulings, and legal fraff meworks in diffeff rent U.S. federal, state, and forff eign courts, and may not be enforceabla e in some
jurisdictions.

Regardless of the merits of such lawsuits or our ultimate liabia lity or settlement outcomes, legal proceedings can be costly to
defend, divert management attention away froff m our core operations, and potentially impact our financial performance.
Furthermore, in cases involving insured claims, a judgment forff monetary damages could exceed our insurance coverage which
could have an adverse effect on our financial position and operational results.

Moreover, any adverse publicity resulting from allegations in any such claims or disputes could negatively impact our
reputation, potentially affeff cting our operational performance.

Our business may be adverserr ly affeff ctedtt by litigati iott n, regue lation and publicll ity concernirr ngii food qualitll y,tt healthll , and othett r
issues, ws hich could nll egativtt ely all ffa ecff t public policll y ac nd consumer preferff ences toward our products.tt

As a foodff service business, we face potential adverse impacts stemming from litigation, regulatory arr ctions, and consumer or
government complaints related to foodff quality, illness, injun ries, health concerns, or operational issues. These concerns may arise
from individual shops or a limited number of shops, including those operated by our franchisees. Additionally, such risks may
increase as we introduce new products or expand distribution channels, such as our DFD business channels, and our business
becomes subject to new regulations and higher regulatory srr crutrr iny.

There is increasing legal, legislative and regulatory frr ocff us on the industry,r particularly concerning menu labea ling and packaging.
This scrutiny is largely due to concerns that the practices and offerff ings of food service companies may contribute to issues like
poor nutrition, excessive caloric intake, obesity, or other health issues among consumers. Class action lawsuits have been filed
against various food service businesses, including quick service restaurants. These lawsuits may allege, among other things, the
failure to disclose health risks associated with high-fat foodsff and marketing practices that encourage obesity. Given that one of
our core competitive advantages lies in the taste and quality of our doughnuts and indulgent products, adverse publicity or
regulations related to food quality or similar concerns have a more pronounced impact on our business compared to foodff
service businesses that primarily compete on other factors.

Changes in regulations addressing such health issues, changes in interprrr etations of such regulations by relevant regulators, or
the introduction of new legislation could affect any of our operational markets. Failure to effeff ctively adapta to these changes or
to comply with new regulations could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Furthermore, in the event that any such lawsuits or claims result in unfavff orable judgments or due to litigation costs, regardless
of the finff al outcome, we may face significant liabia lities.

We are subjeb ct to franchise lawll s aw nd regue lations thatt t govern our stattt us as a fraff nchisoii r and regue late some aspes cts ott f oo ur
franchise relatll iott nshipsii . Our ability to develop no ew franchised shops and to ett nforff ce contratt ctual rightgg s att gaia nsii t fraff nchiseii es
may ba e adverserr ly affeff ctedtt by these lawll s aw nd regue lations, which could cause our franchise revenues to dtt ecdd line.

As a fraff nchisor, we operate within the regulatory fr raff mework establa ished by the Federal Trade Commission and domestic and
foreign laws governing the offeff r and sale of franchises. Any faiff lure to obtain or maintain appra ovals for offering franchises could
result in the loss of potential franchise revenues and revenues generated through our Market Development segment.

Furthermore, both domestic and forff eign laws oversee the procedurd al aspects of offering franchises and also regulate substantive
aspects of our relationships with franchisees. These laws may impose limitations on our ability to terminate or effectively
resolve conflicts with our franchisees. Compliance with these regulations is integral to the successfulff operation of our
franchising business model and the maintenance of harmonious relationships with our franchisees. Failure to comply with any
of these laws or regulations could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
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Healthll care legie slii atll iott n and othett r potentt tiali emplm oyll ment legie slii atll iott n could adverserr ly affeff ct our business, finaii ncial conditioii n,
and resultsll of operations.

Federal legislation concerning mandated health benefits and state minimum wage regulations has led to increased costs forff our
organization. Over recent years, several U.S. states have already raised their minimum wage rates, and the U.S. federal
government or certain other states and localities may also elect to do so. Additionally, forff employees whose compensation is set
above but tied to the appla icable minimum wage, furff ther increases in the minimum wage could result in higher labor expenses.
These cost increases may also be influff enced by inflationary pressures and potential labor market shortages.

Our relationships with employees are governed by various federal and state labor laws, which play a pivotal role in shaping our
operational costs. These laws encompass aspects such as employee classifications as exempt or non-exempt, minimum wage
stipulations, unemployment tax rates, workers’ compensation rates, overtime regulations, famff ily leave policies, safety
standards, payroll taxes, citizenship requirements, and other wage and benefitff prerequisites forff employees classified as non-
exempt.

The futff urt e trajea ctory or f government regulations in these areas remains uncertain, and we may be subject to subsu tantial changes
or reforms stemming froff m legislative initiatives related to labor laws, healthcare laws, or other regulations impacting our labora
costs. The imposition of additional government regulations may introduce heightened compliance costs, and noncompliance
with these regulations could potentially lead to litigation.

Additional labor-related regulation or furff ther increases in labor expenses could increase our costs and adversely affect our
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Our annual effee ctivtt e incii ome taxtt rate can change matertt ially as a result oll f co hanges in our geogro aphic mix of U.S. and
foreign egg arnirr ngii s agg nd othett r facff tors, includindd g changes in tax laa awll s aw nd changes made by regue latory authorities.

We are subject to federal, state, and local income taxes both in the U.S. and in forff eign jurisdictions. The impact of potential
changes in tax laws on our future effeff ctive tax rate and the value of our deferred tax assets is uncertain. Additionally, our
income tax returt ns are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. While we have taken
measures to provision for taxes in the jurisdictions where we operate, changes in tax laws or interpretations thereof or
challenges froff m tax authorities based on existing tax laws could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and
results of operations.

Our overall effeff ctive income tax rate is calculated as our total tax expense relative to total earnings before income tax. It is
important to note that income tax expense and benefits are recognized on a jurisdictional or legal entity basis, rather than on a
global scale. Losses incurred in one jurisdiction may not be used to offsff et profitff s in other jurisdictions, potentially resulting in
an increase in our overall tax rate. Changes in the distribution of earnings (or losses) among different jurisdictions and the
assumptions employed in calculating income taxes, among other facff tors, can exert a significant influff ence on our overall
effeff ctive income tax rate. Furthermore, adjustments to tax laws and modifications made by regulatory arr uthorities have the
potential to significantly impact our overall effeff ctive income tax rate. As legislation becomes effective in countries in which we
do business, our taxes could increase and negatively impact our effeff ctive tax rate. Additionally, the cost of complying with new
legislation could adversely affect our results of operations.

The fulff l rll ealizatiott n of oo ur defee rred taxtt assets may ba e affea ctedtt by a number of fo acff tors, is ncii ludingii future earnings and thett
feasibility of ongoingii planll ningii stratt tegie es.

We hold deferff red tax assets, encompassing federal, state, and forff eign net operating loss carryforwards, accruarr ls not yet
deductible for tax purposrr es, tax credits, and other items. We have establa ished valuation allowances, reducdd ing the deferred tax
assets primarily associated with U.S. federal tax credits, as well as foreign and state and local net operating loss carryforwards,
to an amount deemed more likely than not to be realized. The realization of these deferred tax assets hinges on our ability to
generate future taxabla e income within each respective jurisdiction durd ing the periods when these temporary dr iffeff rences reverse,
or on our capability to carry back any losses resulting from the deduction of these temporary dr iffeff rences.

Our existing deferff red tax assets and tax credits could potentially expire or become unavailabla e to offset future income tax
liabia lities dued to legal or regulatory crr hanges. Such changes include suspension on the use of deferred tax assets and tax credits
imposed by certain jurisdictions from time to time, possibly with retroactive effect.
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We anticipate realizing these deferred tax assets over an extended period. However, if we encounter challenges in generating
sufficient futff urt e taxable income in the U.S. and/or certain forff eign jurisdictions, or if there is a significant alteration in the
timeframe within which the underlying temporary drr iffeff rences become taxabla e or deducdd tible, we may be compelled to augment
our valuation allowances against our deferred tax assets. Such an adjustment could lead to an increase in our effeff ctive tax rate.

We may ba e affea ctedtt by matters related to ett nvironmentaltt , sll ocial, and governance (“Respons sibilityii ”) trends and events,tt
includindd g governmental regulatll iott n and supplu y cll hain disruii ptu iott ns, ts hatt t may adverserr ly affeff ct our business and repuee tation.

Interest in as well as dissatisfaction with Responsibility considerations by consumers, investors, governmental authorities, and
various stakeholders may impact our operations and compliance obligations. Responsibility encompasses a broad spectrum of
factors, including climate change, greenhouse gas emissions, packaging and waste management, human rights, sustainabla e
supplu y chain practices, animal welfare, deforff estation, and responsible use of land, energy, and water resources.

Recent years have seen the introduction of new Responsibility disclosure requirements in various jurisdictions. The evolving
nature and complexity of these rules and regulations, together with evolving stakeholder expectations, render compliance more
challenging and uncertain.

Moreover, we have and in the future may establish certain commitments, targets, or goals related to Responsibility matters. Our
ability to meet these commitments and navigate the associated risks is subject to various external factors and uncertainties,
many of which are beyond our control. If we are not successfulff or are perceived as ineffeff ctive in achieving our stated goals, or
if stakeholders are dissatisfied with our Responsibility strategy or actions we take in response to Responsibility-related matters,
we could be exposed to market, operational, or reputational challenges and costs. Any faiff lure or perceived faiff lure to adequately
address these considerations in line with legal requirements or stakeholder expectations could have an adverse effect on our
business or brand reputation.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

Our faiff luii re or inabiliii tyii to obtaitt n,ii maintain, protect, att nd enfon rce our trademarks okk r other intellectual propeo rty ctt ould
adverserr ly affeff ct our business and the value of our brand.dd

We possess common-law trademark rights in the U.S. as well as numerous trademark and service mark registrations both
domestically and internationally. Our continued success depends, to a significant degree, upon our ability to protect and
preserve our intellectuat l property, including our formulas, trademarks, trade dress, copyrights, patents, business processes, and
other trade secrets. To safeguard these assets, we rely on legal protections offeff red by trademark registrations, contracts,
confidff entiality agreements, copyrights, patents, and common law rights, such as protections against unfaiff r competition, passing
off,ff and trade secret violations.

We enter into non-disclosure and confidff entiality agreements with employees, corporrr ate collabora ators, contractors, consultants,
advisors, suppliers, and other individuals and entities who may have access to this confidff ential information. However, such
agreements may not be in place with every rr elevant party, any of these parties may breach these agreements, and our
confidff entiality agreements may otherwise not effeff ctively prevent disclosure of our proprietary information. Furthermore,
pursuing legal action against a party alleged to have unlawfully disclosed or misappropriated a trade secret is a challenging,
costly, and time-consuming process with an uncertain outcome, and we may not obtain an adequate remedy in the event of
unauthorized disclosure of such information. In addition, others may independently develop forff mulas and processes that are the
same or similar to our trade secrets, which could limit our ability to enforff ce trade secret rights against such parties

Despite our effoff rts to secure, maintain, safeguard, and enforce our trademarks, service marks, and other intellectuat l property
rights, these efforts may not be sufficient. Challenges such as potential infriff ngements, challenges to validity, declarations of
generic status, circumvention, or violations may arise. Furthermore, the effeff ctiveness of intellectuat l property protection may
vary across countries where our brands have existing or potential shops or facilities. The intellectuat l property laws of certain
foreign countries may not provide the same level of protection as those in the U.S.

Additionally, our franchisees may faiff l to consistently uphold the quality of goods and services under our brand trademarks or
consistently adhere to the guidelines we establish forff preserving our brand’s intellectuat l property rights. The defenff se and
enforcement of our trademarks and other intellectuat l property could entail substantial resource allocation and potentially impact
our business, reputation, financial standing, and operational results.
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Furthermore, our brands may become targets of infriff ngement claims, potentially impacting the use of specific names,
trademarks, or proprietary knowledge, recipes, and trade secrets integral to our business. The defenff se against such claims can
be costly, and in some cases, it may lead to restrictions on our use of proprietary information in the future or require the
payment of damages, royalties, or other feeff s forff the continued use of such proprietary information. Any of these outcomes
could have a negative impact on our business, reputation, financial condition, and operational results. We remain vigilant in
protecting and managing our intellectuat l property assets.

Risks Related to Crises, Catastrophic Events, and Business Continuity

Publicll healthll outbreaks, es piee demics, os r pandemics have disruii ptu edtt and may in the futff ure disdd ruptu , ott ur busineii ss, and could
have a matertt ial adverserr effeff ct on our business, finaii ncial conditioii n, and resultsll of operations.

Health epidemics or pandemics can have detrimental effeff cts on consumer spending, confidff ence levels, supply chain
availabia lity, and associated costs within the markets where we and our franchisees operate. These factors can collectively
influence our business, financial standing, and operational results. A notable instance of this was the global spread of the
COVID-19 epidemic in recent years, which disruptrr ed global health, economic conditions, consumer behaviors, and foodff service
operations.

While we have implemented measures to address significant public health risks on a large scale, we acknowledge the potential
for futff urt e outbrt eaks to impact our shops and other facilities. Such outbrt eaks may result in a substantial portion of our workforce
or the workforff ce of our business partners being unabla e to work.

Furthermore, our business is influenced by shiftiff ng consumer preferff ences and perceptions. Concerns regarding virusrr
transmission have prompted employees and guests to avoid congregating in public places, leading to adverse effects on guest
traffiff c at our locations and the ability to adequately staff off ur shops. The COVID-19 pandemic has triggered changes in
consumer behaviors, some of which have endured and may continue to evolve even though the pandemic has subsu ided. These
shiftsff have already had and may continue to exert negative impacts on consumer traffiff c and the sales of both our Company-
owned and franchisee-operated shops. We remain attentive to evolving consumer trends and their potential implications for our
business and operational performance.

Adverdd serr weathett r conditioii ns, ns atural disaii stertt s,rr war or tertt roristii attatt cks,kk pandemics, or othett r catastt trophic events could hll ave
an adverserr effeff ct on our business.

Unforeseen events such as severe adverse weather conditions, earthquakes, hurricanes, tornadoes, flooding, and other natural
disasters, wars or terrorist attacks, pandemics, or other catastrophic events, as well as the actions taken in response to these
unforff eseen events could affect guest traffic at our Company-owned and franchisee-operated shops. In more extreme scenarios,
temporary srr hop closures may become necessary, sometimes forff extended durd ations. If our disaster recovery and business
continuity plans do not resolve disruptu ions caused by these unforff eseen events in an effective and timely manner, they could
result in prolonged interruptu ions in our operations and could have an adverse effect on our sales, business, financial condition,
and results of operations.

Moreover, fluctuations in weather patterns can lead to construcrr tion delays, disruptu ions in the availabia lity of utilities, and
potential shortages or interruptu ions in the supply of foodff items and other essential supplu ies. In addition, actual or threatened
armed conflicff ts, such as the war in Ukraine and confliff cts in the Middle East, terrorist attacks, effoff rts to combat terrorism, or
heightened security requirements have and may in the future adversely affect our operations. These developments could
increase our operational costs and pose challenges to our suppu ly chain and could have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

Risks Related to Ownership of our Common Stock

Certaitt n pii rovisiii ons of Do elawll are Law, ow ur certiftt icff ate ott f io ncii orporr ration, and our bylb awll s aw nd the InvII estor Rightgg s Att greement
could hll inder, delay,a or prevent a change in cii ontrol of us, ws hich could all dverserr ly affeff ct the price of our common stock.kk

Several provisions within Delaware Law, our certificate of incorporation, and our bylaws are designed to create obstacles for
third-party acquisition attempts without the consent of our Board of Directors or JAB Holdings B.V. ("JAB"), our largest
beneficial shareholder.
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As a Delaware corporrr ation, we are subject to Delaware General Corporation Law (“DGCL”). Section 203 of the DGCL restricts
certain shareholders owning over 15% of our outstanding common stock (referred to as "interested shareholders") from
engaging in specificff business combinations without approval froff m at least two-thirds of our outstanding common stock not held
by the interested shareholder.

Moreover, JAB wields substantial voting power over shares of our common stock eligible to vote in director elections and other
shareholder votes through its affiff liate, potentially influencing outcomes significantly.

Additionally, our certificff ate of incorporrr ation grants our Board of Directors the authority to issue preferff red stock at their
discretion, without the need for shareholder appra oval. This flexibility extends to the issuance of authorized but unissued shares
of our common stock. These provisions can complicate and protract the process of replacing incumbent directors.

These measures collectively serve as deterrents, potentially making it costly and challenging for a third party to initiate a tender
offeff r, execute a change in control, or attempt a takeover that facff es opposition froff m JAB, our management, or our Board of
Directors. Publu ic shareholders interested in participating in such transactions may finff d it diffiff cult to do so, even if the deal
would be beneficff ial forff shareholders. Ultimately, these anti-takeover provisions could significantly hinder public shareholders’
ability to realize benefitff s froff m a change in control or alterations in our management and Board of Directors, potentially
impacting the market price of our common stock and the opportunit ty to secure any potential change of control premium.

Under the Investor Rights Agreement with JAB, they have specificff rights to access certain Company inforff mation, which JAB is
obligated to treat as confidff ential. This information includes management’s monthly finff ancial review reports, consolidated
financial results for each fisff cal quarter, and other inforff mation reasonabla y requested by JAB. Given these rights and JAB’s
representation on our Board of Directors, JAB enjoys privileged access to our management and early insights into our financial
results compared to our other investors. Although JAB must adhere to relevant U.S. securities laws governing the trading of our
securities while in possession of material non-public information, it will still have a more comprehensive understanding of our
business and financial condition than individual shareholders for as long as its information rights persist under the Investor
Rights Agreement.

If the ownershrr ip of our common stock contintt ues to btt e highlgg y cll oncentratedtt , idd t mii ay prevent shareholderdd s frr roff m infii luff encingii
signi ificff ant corporrr ate dtt ecdd isions and may result in conflicff ts of interest.tt

As of December 29, 2024, JAB held appra oximately 44% of our common stock through its affiff liate, conferff ring upon it
significant influff ence over crucial matters requiring shareholder appra oval. This influence extends to decisions such as electing
directors, facilitating mergers, consolidations, and acquisitions, disposing of substantial assets, and shapia ng our capia tal
structurtt e. Additionally, JAB possesses the authority to amend our certificate of incorporrr ation and bylaws, and influff ence our
winding up and dissolution procedurd es.

This level of concentrated ownership could potentially lead to delays, deterrents, or the prevention of actions that may be
favored by our other shareholders. JAB’s interests may not always align with those of our broader shareholder base.
Furthermore, this concentration of ownership has the potential to hinder or discourage any attempts at a change in control of the
Company.

The concentration of voting power could also impact shareholders by limiting the opportunity to receive a premium for their
common stock shares in the event of a sale of the Company, which, in turn, may affeff ct the market price of our common stock.
JAB might also seek to push us in directions that it deems beneficff ial forff its own investment but could carry risks forff other
shareholders or negatively impact our Company and its stakeholders.

As a result, there is a possibility that the market price of our common stock could decline, or shareholders may not receive a
premium abovea the prevailing market price in the event of a change in control. Furthermore, this concentration of share
ownership might be viewed negatively by investors, potentially affeff cting the trading price of our common stock, as some may
perceive drawbacks in owning shares in a company heavily influenced by a fewff significant shareholders.
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The markerr t price of our common stock could bll e negativtt ely all ffa ectff edtt by sales of so ubstantt tiali amounts ott f oo ur common stock in
the public markets.tt

JAB’s affiliates may possess the capability to sell the Company’s common stock shares they hold to the public markets,
following the stipulations outlined in RulRR e 144. The substantial sale of our shares by JAB’s affiliate, or the mere anticipation of
such sales, could potentially exert a significant downward pressure on the market price of our common stock. A decrease in the
value of our common stock could hinder our capacity to raise capital through the issuance of additional common stock or other
equity securities.

We may ba e unable tll o ptt ay dividends odd n our common stoctt k.

We plan to distribute cash dividends to our common stockholders on a quarterly basis, contingent upon the discretion of our
Board of Directors and our adherence to appla icable regulations. The decision to declare dividends will be influenced by a range
of factors, including our finff ancial performance, capital needs, business prospects, legal requirements, contractuat l obligations,
restrictions imposed by applicable laws, and other relevant considerations, all of which will be evaluated by our Board of
Directors in accordance with applicable law.

Furthermore, our capaa city to pay dividends may be constrained by the terms outlined in our existing debt agreements or any
future debt or preferff red equity securities we may undertake. It is important to recognize that our dividend policy carries inherent
risks and constraints, particularly regarding our availabla e liquidity. When we opt to distribute cash dividends instead of
reinvesting those fundsff in our operations or repaying outstanding debts, we run the risk of impeding our business expansion,
potentially facing liquidity challenges, or limiting our ability to secure additional finff ancing.

Our Board of Directors will regularly assess the cash generated from our operations and the capital requirements necessary to
supporu t our growth strategies. Based on this evaluation, they may decide to modify the amount of regular dividends and may
also consider declaring periodic special dividends. However, there is no guarantee that our Board of Directors will not make
adjud stments to the timing or amount of regular cash dividends or decide to discontinue dividend payments altogether.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 1C. Cybersecurity

Riskii Managea ment and StrSS ategtt ygg

We have processes in place for assessing, identifying, and managing material risks from unauthorized occurrences on or
through our electronic inforff mation systems that could adversely affect the confidff entiality, integrity, or availability of our
information systems or the inforff mation residing on those systems. These include a wide variety of mechanisms, controls,
technologies, methods, systems, and other processes that are designed to prevent, detect, or mitigate data loss, theft,ff misuse,
unauthorized access, or other security incidents or vulnerabia lities. In addition, we engage with independent third-party partners,
including cybersecurity assessors, consultants, and auditors, to assess and consult on our cybersecurity capabilities, prioritize
areas of risk, and assist with execution of our risk management and strategic plans. Our collabora ation with these third parties
includes audits, threat assessments, and consultation on security enhancements. In an effort to mitigate data or security incidents
that may originate from third-party supplu iers, we also identify,ff prioritize, assess, and address third-party risks; however, we rely
on the third parties we use to implement security programs commensurate with their risk, and we cannot ensure that their efforts
will be successfulff .

As part of our risk management process, we conduct appla ication security assessments, vulnerabia lity management, penetration
testing, security audits, and risk assessments. We provide cybersecurity awareness training to employees with access to
information systems, including corporate employees. We also maintain an incident response plan. Our incident response plan
outlines the process forff our coordination with our third-party cybersecurity providers to respond to and recover froff m
cybersecurity incidents, which include processes to triage, assess severity, investigate, escalate, contain, and remediate an
incident, as well as to comply with appla icable legal obligations and mitigate brand and reputational damage. In addition, our
incident response plan includes actions designed to enhance processes and responsiveness to address futff urtt e incidents. We
continue to strengthen our systems, cybersecurity training, policies, programs, response plan, and other similar measures.

As previously disclosed in the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 11, 2024, during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2024, unauthorized activity on a portion of our information technology systems resulted in the Company
experiencing certain operational disruptu ions, including with online ordering in parts of the U.S. (the “2024 Cybersecurity
Incident”). Our online ordering, retail shops, and core business funcff tions are now fully operational. The incident materially
affeff cted the Company’s business operations and is reasonabla y likely to materially impact the Company’s results of operations
and finff ancial condition. In the fourff th quarter of fiscal 2024, we incurred appra oximately $3 million of remediation expenses
related to the 2024 Cybersecurity Incident. In addition, we estimate that we lost revenue within our U.S. segment in an amount
of $11 million related to the incident with a corresponding estimated $10 million impact on Adjud sted EBITDA (includes margin
on the aforementioned lost revenues, as well as operational inefficff iencies). We expect to continue to incur costs in fiscal 2025
related to the incident, including operational inefficiencies early in the firff st quarter and costs related to feeff s forff our
cybersecurity experts and other advisors. The Company holds cybersecurity insurance that is expected to offsff et a portion of the
losses and costs froff m the incident. As of the date of this report, except as set forff th herein, we are not aware of any risks froff m
cybersecurity threats that have materially affeff cted or are reasonabla y likely to materially affeff ct us, our business strategy, results
of operations, or finff ancial condition. For more inforff mation regarding cybersecurity risks that have and may in the future
materially affeff ct us, see “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Cybersecurity, Data Privacy, and Information Technology” included
in Item 1A of Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Governance

Our Chief Information Officff er (“CIO”) leads our global inforff mation security organization responsible for overseeing the
Company’s inforff mation security program. Our Chief Inforff mation Security Offiff cer (“CISO”) is primarily responsible for
identifyiff ng, assessing, monitoring, and managing cybersecurity threats to our overall enterprise. Our CIO has over 25 years of
industry err xperience, including serving in similar roles leading and overseeing cybersecurity programs at other public
companies. Our CISO, who reports directly to the CIO, has over 30 years of information technology infrastructurtt e and security
experience, including developing and leading cybersecurity risk management programs forff a variety of companies.
Additionally, the team supporu ting the CISO has relevant educdd ational and profesff sional inforff mation technology security
experience, including holding similar positions at other large companies. The CISO receives inforff mation regarding
cybersecurity incidents and threats primarily from our third-party cybersecurity providers. The CISO then provides periodic
reports to the CIO, including reporting on significant cybersecurity incidents, strategy, results of employee trainings, and any
other notable cybersecurity matters.
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Cybersecurity risk is among the top risks that the Company actively monitors. Our cybersecurity risk management program is
integrated into our overall enterprise risk management program and shares common methodologies, reporting channels, and
governance processes that appla y across the enterprise risk management program to other legal, compliance, strategic,
operational, and finff ancial risk areas. The Audit and Finance Committee (“Audit Committee”) of the Board of Directors
oversees our annual enterprrr ise risk assessment, where we assess key risks within the Company, including security and
technology risks and cybersecurity threats. The Audit Committee also oversees our cybersecurity risk and receives reports from
our CIO on various cybersecurity matters, mitigation measures, and the statust of our information security priorities. In addition,
the Audit Committee reports to the Board of Directors on any significant cybersecurity incidents, such as the 2024
Cybersecurity Incident.

Item 2. Properties

The material properties used by the Company in connection with its manufactff urt ing, warehousing, distribution, and corporrr ate
administrative operations, serving all segments, are as folff lows:

Location
Approximate Si e
in Square Feet Purpose Type

Winston-Salem, NC 107,000 Mix Production Plant and Distribution Leased
Winston-Salem, NC 101,710 Equipment Manufacff turing Facility Owned
Charlotte, NC 31,776 Corporate Administrative Leased

In the U.S., we operate six Doughnut Factories located in Indianapolis, Indiana; Monroe, Ohio; New York, New York; Elk
Grove, Illinois; Concord, North Carolina; and Fort Lauderdale, Florida. Internationally, for our equity markets, we operate 14
Doughnut Factories. Each Doughnut Factory mr anufacff tures daily to provide finished products to shops and to support our DFD
routes. The majoa rity of our Doughnut Factories are leased.

Additionally, as of December 29, 2024, the Company had 875 Company-owned shops globally, a majority of which are leased.
We also lease space in various locations globally for regional, district, and other administrative officff es, training faciff lities, and
storage.

We believe our existing facff ilities, both owned and leased, are in good condition and suitabla e forff the conduct of our business.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary crr ourse of conducting our business, we have in the past and may in the future become involved in various legal
actions and other claims. We may also become involved in other judicial, regulatory,r and arbitration proceedings concerning
matters arising in connection with the conduct of our businesses. Some of these matters may involve claims of subsu tantial
amounts. These legal proceedings may be subject to many uncertainties and there can be no assurance of the outcome of any
individual proceedings. See Note 15, Commitments and Contingencies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K forff information regarding certain legal proceedings in which we are
involved.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not appla icable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Market Infon rmatiott n

Our common stock has been listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “DNUT” since our initial public
offeff ring on July 1, 2021. Prior to that time, there was no public market for our common stock.

Holderdd srr

The appa roximate number of shareholders of record of our common stock as of February 1r 4, 2025, was 253. This does not
include persons whose stock is in nominee or “street name” accounts through brokers.

Dividend Policyc

For the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2024, June 30, 2024, September 29, 2024, and December 29, 2024, we paid quarterly
cash dividends on our common stock of $0.035 per share, which were paid in May 2024, August 2024, November 2024, and
Februarr ry 2025, respectively. We expect to pay a dividend afteff r the close of each quarter.

Any declaration and payment of futff urtt e dividends to holders of our common stock will be at the sole discretion of our Board of
Directors and will depend on many factors, including economic conditions, our financial condition and operating results, our
availabla e cash and current and anticipated cash needs, capital requirements, contractuat l, legal, tax and regulatory rr estrictions,
including restrictive covenants contained in certain of our credit facilities, and such other factors as our Board of Directors may
deem relevant.

Issuer Purchases of Eo quity Securitieii s

Shares under our ongoing share repurchase program may be repurchased in open market transactions, including pursuant to a
trading plan adopted in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of the Exchange Act, as amended, or through privately negotiated
transactions. The timing, manner, price, and amount of repurchases will be determined at our discretion, and the share
repurchase program may be suspended, terminated or modified at any time forff any reason. As of December 29, 2024, all
outstanding shares remained availabla e forff repurchase under current authorizations.
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Perforff marr nce GraGG pha

The folff lowing graph depicts the total return to shareholders from the initial public offeff ring (“IPO”) on July 1, 2021 through our
fiscal year-end date of December 29, 2024, relative to the performance of the RusRR sell 2000 Index, the NASDAQ Composite
Index, and the Standard & Poor’s Consumer Discretionary Sector. All indices shown in the grapha have been reset to a base of
100 as of July 1, 2021 and assume an investment of $100 on that date and the reinvestment of dividends paid since that date.
The stock price performance shown in the graph is not necessarily indicative of future price performance.

Krispy Kreme, Inc. Russell 2000
NASDAQ Composite S&P Consumer Discretionary

July 1, 2021 January 2, 2022 January 1, 2023 December 31, 2023 December 29, 2024
50

75

100

125

150

July 1, 2021
January 2,
2022

January 1,
2023

December 31,
2023

December 29,
2024

Krispy Kreme, Inc. .................................................. 00.00 $ 111.29 $ 60.71 $ 88.76 $ 57.53
Russell 2000 ............................................................ 100.00 96.39 75.61 87.02 96.36
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Item 6. Reserved
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

e folff lowing discii ussion and analysll is of our financial condition and results of operations should bll e read together with our
audited ConsCC olidatdd ed Financial StaSS tements att nd related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Repore t on ForFF m 10-K. This
section of to het Annual Repore t on ForFF m 10-K generally discii usses fisff cal 2024 and fiscii al 2023 items and year-to-ye- ar comparisons
of fisff cal 2024 to fiscal 2023. Discii ussions of fisff cal 2022 items and year-to-yea- r comparm isons of fiff scii al 2023 and fiscal 2022 are
not included in thit s Aii nnual Repore t on ForFF m 10-K and can be foundff in “ManageMM ment’s Discii ussion and Analysll is of Financial
Condition and Results ott f Oo peO rations” in our Annual Repore t on ForFF m 10-K forff the year ended December 31, 2023. This
discii ussion contains forward-looking statements ttt hattt involve risks and uncertainties. ForFF more infon rmation, see thet section titled
“CautCC ionary Nr otNN e Regarding Forward-Looking StaS tements”tt included in Part 1 of this Annual Repore t on ForFF m 10-K.

Overview

We believe Krispy Kreme is one of the most beloved and well-known sweet treat brands in the world. KriK spy KreK me operates in
40 countries with our omni-channel strategy, which focff uses on delivering fresh doughnuts such as our iconic Original Glazed®
doughnut, which is recognized forff its hot-off-the-line, melt-in-your-mouth experience, to where our consumers are located and
want to have access to them. Our purposrr e of touching and enhancing lives through the joy that is Krispy Kreme guides how we
operate every drr ay.

We operate and report finff ancial information on a 52 or 53-week fiscal year ending on the Sunday closest to December 31.
Fiscal year 2024 reflects our results of operations for the 52-week period ended December 29, 2024. Fiscal year 2023 reflects
our results of operations for the 52-week period ended December 31, 2023.

We conduct our business through the folff lowing three reported segments:

• U.S.: Includes all Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.S., and Insomnia Cookies Bakeries globally
through the date of deconsolidation (refer to Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestitures, to the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K forff more information);

• International: Includes all Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New Zealand,
Mexico, Canada, and Japan; and

• Market Development: Includes fraff nchise operations across the globe.

The folff lowing tabla e presents a summary or f our financial results for the periods presented:

Fiscal Years Ended

(in tii hott usands, es xcee ept percentagett s)
December 29, 2024

52 weeks
December 31, 2023

52 weeks Change

Net Revenues (1) ......................................................................................... $ 1,665,397 $ 1,686,104 -1.2%
Net Income/(Loss) Attributable to Krispy Kreme, Inc. ............................ 3,095 (37,925) 108.2%
Adjud sted Net Income, Diluted (2) ............................................................... 170 46,182 -58.5%
Adjud sted EBITDA (2) ................................................................................. 193,528 211,624 -8.6%
Adjud sted EBIT (2) ....................................................................................... 90,228 115,103 -21.6%

(1) We generated 5.0% organic revenue growth in fiscal 2024. Referff to “Results of Operations” below for more inforff mation
on and the calculation of organic revenue growth.

(2) Refer to “Key Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Measures” below for more inforff mation as to how we define and
calculate Adjusted EBITDA, Adjud sted EBIT, and Adjud sted Net Income, Diluted and for a reconciliation of Adjusted
EBITDA, Adjud sted EBIT, and Adjud sted Net Income, Diluted to net loss, the most comparabla e measure calculated under
accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”).
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Significant Events and Transactions

Executing on our Omni-Cii haCC nnel Stratt tegye

We made strong progress on the execution of our omni-channel strategy in fisff cal 2024, as we continue to add quality Global
Points of Access across our network and convert markets into fulff ly implemented Hub and Spoke models. Global Points of
Access are a key metric and we definff e them as our unique network of freff sh Doughnut Shops, partnerships with leading retailers
(DFD Doors), and a growing digital business. We added a net total of 3,410 new Global Points of Access in fisff cal 2024 to reach
17,557 Global Points of Access. The primary driver of the increased Global Points of Access during the year was the continued
expansion of our DFD network in alignment with our transforff mation strategy, as we added 3,508, or 29.4%, new DFD Doors
globally, including 2,836 DFD Doors to the U.S. segment, 606 to the International segment, and 66 to the Market Development
segment. The increase in DFD Doors is the result of our focus on executing our omni-channel strategy to drive our
transforff mation, and includes expansion with key customers. We expect DFD growth to be one of our most significant drivers of
earnings growth, primarily through increased door count and also through optimization of revenue per door.

In addition to grocery ar nd convenience stores, we are also expanding in DFD channels such as QSR and club membership to
further broaden availabia lity of our doughnuts to consumers. This includes our QSR partnership with McDonald’s. Following a
successfulff pilot at appra oximately 160 McDonald’s restaurants in Louisville and Lexington, Kentuct ky and the surrounding area,
we entered into an agreement to work with McDonald’s to develop a deployment scheduld e forff a U.S. national rollout of the sale
of Krispy Kreme doughnuts at McDonald’s restaurants. The deployment scheduld e sets forff th the anticipated launch period forff
each McDonald’s business unit in the U.S., with phasing expected through the end of fiscal 2026. In the fourff th quarter of fiscal
2024, the rollout continued at McDonald’s restaurants in places such as Illinois, Indiana, Michigan, Ohio, and Pennsylvania,
with total DFD Doors with McDonald’s surpassing 1,900 by year-end. The agreement does not guarantee us any particular level
of business unit deployment, sales, or profitff s.

Growing Our Globalll Presence

Another key strategic initiative on our journey to become the most loved sweet treat brand in the world is to increase our global
presence, focusing on the percentage of our revenues and Adjud sted EBITDA generated outside the U.S., with a key focus in
Europe and select Asian and South American countries. In fisff cal 2024, we opened our first fraff nchise shops in Morocco and
continued strong growth in markets such as France and Chile. We expect to have shop openings in Brazil, Spain, Germany, and
other countries in the futff urtt e.
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Digii taii l, Brand, and InnoII vation

We continue to prioritize expanding our digital channel sales. Growth in our digital channel is dued to improvements in our
branded digital platforff m as well as increasing product availabia lity through third party platforms. Innovation is also a significant
driver of frequency as we create and introduce premium and buzz-worthy offeff rings to consumers across our Global Points of
Access. During the fourff th quarter of fiscal 2024 we delivered the joy that is KriK spy KreK me through powerful specialty
doughnuts and seasonal activations including Halloween, Thanksgiving, and Christmas among many others around the world.

Divestiture of Io nsII omnia Ci ookiCC es

During the third quarter of fiscal 2024, we entered into an agreement to sell our controlling interest in Insomnia Cookies in
exchange for cash proceeds of $127.4 million. We received additional cash of $45.0 million from Insomnia Cookies related to
the settlement of an intercompany loan. We have used these proceeds to furff ther strengthen our fresh doughnut business and
expand availabia lity, as well as pay down debt. We continue to own 34.7% of Insomnia Cookies and account for our investment
using the equity method.
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Key Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Measures

We monitor the key business metrics and non-GAAP metrics set forth below to help us evaluate our business and growth
trends, establish budgets, measure the effectiveness of our sales and marketing efforts, and assess operational efficiencies. The
calculation of the key business metrics discussed below may diffeff r froff m other similarly titled metrics used by other companies,
securities analysts, or investors.

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we utilize “Global Points of Access” as a key performance indicator. Global
Points of Access refleff ct all locations at which freff sh doughnuts can be purchased. We definff e Global Points of Access to include
all Hot Light Theater Shops, Fresh Shops, Carts and Food Trucrr ks, DFD Doors, Cookie Bakeries (through the date of the
Insomnia Cookies divestiturt e), and other points at which fresh doughnuts can be purchased, at both Company-owned and
franchise locations as of the end of the respective reporting period. We monitor Global Points of Access as a metric that informs
the growth of our omni-channel presence over time and believe this metric is usefulff to investors to understand our footprt int in
each of our segments and by asset type.

The folff lowing tabla e presents our Global Points of Access, by segment and type, as of the end of fisff cal 2024, fiscal 2023, and
fiscal 2022:

Global Points of Access
Fiscal Years Ended

December 29, 2024 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023

U.S.:
Hot Light Theater Shops.................................................... 237 229 234
Fresh Shops........................................................................ 70 62
Cookie Bakeries (1) ............................................................. — 267 231
DFD Doors (2) ..................................................................... 644 6,808 5,729

Total......................................................................... 9,951 7,374 6,256
Internatiott nal:

Hot Light Theater Shops.................................................... 49 44 46
Fresh Shops........................................................................ 483 448
Carts, Food Trucrr ks, and Other (3) ....................................... 17 16 14
DFD Doors......................................................................... 4,583 3,977 3,210

Total......................................................................... 5,16 4,520 3,71
Market Developmll ent:

Hot Light Theater Shops.................................................... 108 116 106
Fresh Shops........................................................................ 1,095 968 813
Carts, Food Trucrr ks, and Other (3) ....................................... 30 30 27
DFD Doors......................................................................... 1,205 1,139 917

Total......................................................................... 2,43 2,253 1, 63
Total Global Points of Access as defined .............................. 17,557 14,147 11, 37
Total Hot Light Theater Shops.................................................... 394 389 386
Total Fresh Shops........................................................................ 1,684 1,521 1,323
Total Cookie Bakeries (1).............................................................. — 267 231
Total Shops................................................................................. 2,07 2,177 1,940
Total Carts, Food Trucks, and Other...................................... 47 46 41
Total DFD Doors ....................................................................... 15,432 11,924 9, 56
Total Global Points of Access as defined .............................. 17,557 14,147 11, 37

(1) Reflects the divestiture of Insomnia Cookies during fisff cal 2024.
(2) Includes more than 1,900 McDonald’s QSR shops as of December 29, 2024.
(3) Carts and Food Trucrr ks are non-producing, mobile (typically on wheels) facilities without walls or a door where product

is received froff m a Hot Light Theater Shop or Doughnut Factory.r Other includes a vending machine. Points of Access in
this category arr re primarily foundff in international locations in airports and train stations.
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As of December 29, 2024, we had 17,557 Global Points of Access, with 2,078 KriK spy KreK me branded shops, 47 Carts and Food
Trucrr ks, and 15,432 DFD Doors. During fisff cal 2024, we added a net 168 Krispy Kreme branded shops globally, including five
Hot Light Theater Shops and 163 Fresh Shops. Hot Light Theater Shop openings included expansion in places like North
Wales, Pennsylvania in the U.S. and Toronto, Edmonton, and Winnipeg in Canada, among others. We also continued to grow
our international presence as we expanded into Morocco within the Market Development segment.

We added net 3,508 new DFD Doors durd ing the fiscal year as we continue to focus on the deployment of our Hub au nd Spoke
model and our expansion into QSR channels. We plan to continue adding new locations and expanding our digital platforff m in
order to extend the availabia lity of and access to our products. We are excited abouta our partnership with McDonald’s and the
phasing of the U.S. national rollout, which we believe has validated the attractiveness of the QSR channel.

We also utilize “Hubsu ” as a key performance indicator. Our transforff mation is driven by the implementation of an omni-channel
strategy to reach more consumers where they are and drive revenue growth, and this strategy is supporu ted by a capital-efficient
Hub au nd Spoke distribution model that provides a route to market and powers profitabia lity. Our Hot Light Theater Shops and
Doughnut Factories serve as centralized production facilities (“Hubsu ”). From these Hubsu , we deliver doughnuts to our Fresh
Shops, Carts and Food Trucrr ks, and DFD Doors (“Spokes”) primarily through an integrated network of Company-operated
delivery rrr outes, designed to ensure quality and freff shness. Going forff ward, we expect to outsource these U.S. DFD deliveries to
one or more 3PL carriers, an approach we have used in several international markets. Specific to the U.S. segment, certain
legacy Hubsu have not historically had Spokes. Many Hubsu in the U.S. segment are being converted to add Spokes while certain
legacy Hubsu do not currently have the abia lity or need to add Spokes.

The folff lowing tabla e presents our Hubsu , by segment and type, as of the end of fisff cal 2024, fisff cal 2023, and fisff cal 2022,
respectively:

Hubs
Fiscal Years Ended

December 29, 2024 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023

U.S.:
Hot Light Theater Shops (1) ................................................ 220 228
Doughnut Factories............................................................ 6 4 4

Total......................................................................... 23 224 232
Hubsu with Spokes .............................................................. 158 149 133
Hubsu without Spokes ......................................................... 80 75 99

Internatiott nal:
Hot Light Theater Shops (1) ................................................ 36 34
Doughnut Factories............................................................ 14 14 14

Total......................................................................... 54 50 4
Hubsu with Spokes .............................................................. 54 50 48

Market Developmo ent:
Hot Light Theater Shops (1) ................................................ 112 104
Doughnut Factories............................................................ 27 23 24

Total......................................................................... 133 135 12
Total Hubs.................................................................................. 425 409 40

(1) Includes only Hot Light Theater Shops and excludes Mini Theaters. A Mini Theater is a Spoke location that produces
some doughnuts forff itself and also receives doughnuts from another producing location.

39



Non-GAAP Measures

We report our financial results in accordance with GAAP; however, management evaluates our results of operations using,
among other measures, organic revenue growth, Sales per Hub, adjud sted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (“Adjusted EBITDA”), Adjud sted EBIT, Adjusted Net Income, Diluted, and Adjusted EPS as we believe these non-
GAAP measures are useful in evaluating our operating performance.

Non-GAAP financial measures are not standardized and it may not be possible to compare these finff ancial measures with other
companies’ non-GAAP financial measures having the same or similar names, limiting their usefulff ness as comparative
measures. Other companies may calculate similarly titled finff ancial measures differently than we do or may not calculate them at
all. Additionally, these non-GAAP financial measures are not measurements of financial performance under GAAP or a
subsu titutt e forff results reported under GAAP. In order to facilitate a clear understanding of our consolidated historical operating
results, we urge you to review our non-GAAP financial measures in conjunction with our historical audited Consolidated
Financial Statements and notes thereto included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and not to rely on any single finff ancial
measure.

Organir c Revenue Growth

Organic revenue growth measures our revenue growth trends excluding the impact of acquisitions, divestitures, and forff eign
currency, and we believe it is usefulff for investors to understand the expansion of our global footff prt int through internal effoff rts.
We define “organic revenue growth” as the growth in revenues, excluding (i) acquired shops owned by us forff less than 12
months following their acquisition, (ii) the impact of foreign currency exchange rate changes, (iii) the impact of shop closures
related to restrucrr turing programs such as the shop portfolff io optimization program initiated forff Krispy Kreme U.S. durd ing fisff cal
2022, (iv) the impact of the Branded Sweat Treats business exit, (v) the impact of the divestiture of Insomnia Cookies, and (vi)
revenues generated during the 53rd week for those fisff cal years that have a 53rd week based on our fiscal calendar definff ed in the
“Overview” section. See “Results of Operations” forff our organic growth calculations for the periods presented.

Adjudd sted EBITDII A,DD Adjudd sted EBITBB , ATT djusted NetNN Income, Diluted, add nd Adjudd sted EPS

We define “Adjusted EBITDA” as earnings before interest expense, net, income tax expense, and depreciation and
amortization, with further adjustments forff share-based compensation, certain strategic initiatives, acquisition and integration
expenses, and certain other non-recurring, infrequent or non-core income and expense items. Adjusted EBITDA is a principal
metric that management uses to monitor and evaluate operating performance and provides a consistent benchmark forff
comparison across reporting periods. “Adjud sted EBITDA margin” refleff cts Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of net revenues.

We define “Adjusted EBIT” as earnings before interest expense, net and income tax expense, with further adjustments for
share-based compensation, certain strategic initiatives, acquisition and integration expenses, and certain other non-recurring,
infrequent or non-core income and expense items. Adjusted EBIT is a principal metric that management uses to monitor and
evaluate operating performance and provides a consistent benchmark forff comparison across reporting periods.

We define “Adjusted Net Income, Diluted” as net income/(loss) attributable to common shareholders, adjusted forff interest
expense, share-based compensation, certain strategic initiatives, acquisition and integration expenses, amortization of
acquisition-related intangibles, the tax impact of adjud stments, and certain other non-recurring, infrequent or non-core income
and expense items. “Adjud sted EPS” is Adjud sted Net Income, Diluted converted to a per share amount.

Adjud sted EBITDA, Adjud sted EBIT, Adjusted Net Income, Diluted, and Adjusted EPS have certain limitations, including
adjud stments forff income and expense items that are required by GAAP. In evaluating these non-GAAP measures, you should be
aware that in the future we will incur expenses that are the same as or similar to some of the adjud stments in this presentation,
such as share-based compensation. Our presentation of these non-GAAP measures should not be construerr d to imply that our
future results will be unaffected by any such adjustments. Management compensates forff these limitations by relying on our
GAAP results in addition to using these non-GAAP measures supplu ementally.
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The folff lowing tabla es present a reconciliation of net income/(loss) to Adjud sted EBIT and Adjusted EBITDA, and net income/
(loss) to Adjud sted Net Income, Diluted and Adjud sted EPS forff the fisff cal years presented:

scal Years Ended
(in tii hott usands)s December 29, 2024 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023

Net income loss 3, 15 36,647 ,775
Interest expense, net ....................................................................... 066 50,341 34,102
Income tax expense/(benefitff ) ......................................................... 15,954 (4,347) 612
Share-based compensation ............................................................. 35,149 24,196 18,170
Employer payroll taxes related to share-based compensation........ 358 395 312
Gain on divestiture of Insomnia Cookies ....................................... (90,455) — —
Other non-operating expense, net (1) ............................................... 1,885 3,798 3,036
Strategic initiatives (2)...................................................................... 19,993 29,057 2,841
Acquisition and integration expenses (3) ......................................... 3,282 511 2,333
New market penetration expenses (4) .............................................. 1,407 1,380 1,511
Shop closure expenses, net (5) ......................................................... 4,861 17,335 19,715
Restructurt ing and severance expenses (6)........................................ 7,561 5,050 7,125
Gain on remeasurement of equity method investment (7) ............... (5,579) — —
Gain on sale-leaseback ................................................................... (1,569) (9,646) (6,549)
Other (8) ........................................................................................... 3,203 4,307 6,285
Amortization of acquisition related intangibles (9) .......................... 30,297 29,373 28,456

Add usted EBIT ............................................................... 90,22 115,103 109,174
Depreciation expense and amortization of right of use assets........ 103,300 96,521 81,555

Add usted EBITDA.......................................................... 193,52 211,624 190,729
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Fiscal Years Ended
(in tii hott usands, es xcee ept per share amounts)tt December 29, 2024 December 31, 2023 January 1, 2023

Net income loss 3, 15 36,647 ,775
Share-based compensation ............................................................. 149 24,196 18,170
Employer payroll taxes related to share-based compensation........ 358 395 312
Gain on divestiture of Insomnia Cookies ....................................... (90,455) — —
Other non-operating expense, net (1) ............................................... 1,885 3,798 3,036
Strategic initiatives (2)...................................................................... 19,993 29,057 2,841
Acquisition and integration expenses (3) ......................................... 3,282 511 2,333
New market penetration expenses (4) .............................................. 1,407 1,380 1,511
Shop closure expenses, net (5) ......................................................... 4,861 17,335 19,715
Restructurt ing and severance expenses (6)........................................ 7,561 5,050 7,125
Gain on remeasurement of equity method investment (7) ............... (5,579) — —
Gain on sale-leaseback ................................................................... (1,569) (9,646) (6,549)
Other (8) ........................................................................................... 3,203 4,307 6,285
Amortization of acquisition related intangibles (9) .......................... 30,297 29,373 28,456
Loss on extinguishment of 2019 Facility (10)................................... — 472 —
Tax impact of adjud stments (11) ......................................................... 9,690 (20,729) (14,609)
Tax specific adjustments (12)............................................................ (3,988) (1,364) (2,876)
Net income attributabla e to noncontrolling interest......................... (720) (1,278) (6,847)
Adjud stment to adjud sted net income attributable to common
shareholders.................................................................................... — — (374)
Add usted net income attributable to common shareholders -
Basic............................................................................................... 19,190 46,210 49,754

Additional income attributed to noncontrolling interest
due to subsu idiary potential common shares......................... (20) (28) (143)

Add usted net income attributable to common shareholders -
Diluted ........................................................................................... 19,170 46,1 2 49,611
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding .................... 169,341 168,289 167,471

Dilutive effeff ct of outstanding common stock options,
RSUs, and PSUs .................................................................. 2,159 2,204 2,005

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding............ 171,500 170,493 169,476
Add usted net income per share attributable to common
shareholders:.................................................................................

Basic .................................................................................... $ 0.11 $ 0.27 $ 0.30
Diluted ................................................................................. $ 0.11 $ 0.27 $ 0.29

(1) Primarily foreign translation gains and losses in each period. Fiscal 2024 also consists of equity method income from
Insomnia Cookies following the divestiturt e discussed in Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestiturt es, to the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2) Fiscal 2024 consists primarily of costs associated with the divestiture of the Insomnia Cookies business, preparing forff the
McDonald’s U.S. expansion, and global transformation. Fiscal 2023 consists primarily of costs associated with global
transforff mation and U.S. initiatives such as the decision to exit the Branded Sweet Treats business, including property, plant
and equipment impairments, inventory wrr rite-offs, employee severance, and other related costs. Fiscal 2022 consists mainly
of equipment disposals, equipment relocation and installation, consulting and advisory fees, and other costs associated with
the shift of Branded Sweet Treats manufacff turing capaa bia lity from Burlington, Iowa to Winston-Salem, North Carolina.

(3) Consists of acquisition and integration-related costs in connection with the Company’s business and franchise acquisitions,
including legal, due diligence, and advisory fees incurred in connection with acquisition and integration-related activities
for the applicable period.

(4) Consists of start-up costs associated with entry ir nto new countries in which the Company has not previously operated,
including Brazil and Spain.

(5) Includes lease termination costs, impairment charges, and loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment.
(6) Fiscal 2024 consists primarily of costs associated with the restrucrr turing of the U.S. and U.K. executive teams. Fiscal 2023

and 2022 consist primarily of costs associated with restructurt ing of the global executive team.
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(7) Consists of a gain related to the remeasurement of the equity method investments in KreKK meWorks USA, LLC and
KremeWorks Canada, L.P. to fair value immediately prior to the acquisition of the shops. Referff to Note 2, Acquisitions and
Divestitures, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form
10-K for more inforff mation.

(8) Fiscal 2024 consists primarily of $3.1 million in costs related to remediation of the 2024 Cybersecurity Incident, including
fees for cybersecurity experts and other advisors. Fiscal 2023 and fisff cal 2022 consist primarily of legal and other regulatoryrr
expenses incurred outside the ordinary cr ourse of business on matters described in Note 15, Commitments and
Contingencies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

(9) Consists of amortization related to acquired intangible assets as reflected within depreciation and amortization in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

(10) Includes interest expenses related to unamortized debt issuance costs froff m our prior credit agreement (the “2019 Facility”)
associated with extinguished lenders as a result of the March 2023 debt refinff ancing.

(11) Tax impact of adjud stments calculated by appla ying the appla icable statutt ory rrr ates. The Company’s adjusted effective tax rate
is 34.0%, 27.2%, and 24.1% for each of the fisff cal years 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. Fiscal 2024 and fisff cal 2023
also include the impact of disallowed executive compensation expense. Fiscal 2022 includes the impact of disallowed
executive compensation expense and a discrete tax benefit related to a legal accruarr l.

(12) Fiscal 2024 consists of the recognition of previously unrecognized tax benefitff s unrelated to ongoing operations, a discrete
tax benefitff unrelated to ongoing operations, the release of valuation allowances associated with the divestiture of Insomnia
Cookies, and the effect of various tax law changes on existing temporary dr iffeff rences. Fiscal 2023 consists of the
recognition of a previously unrecognized tax benefit unrelated to ongoing operations, the effeff ct of tax law changes on
existing temporary drr iffeff rences, and a discrete tax benefit unrelated to ongoing operations. Fiscal 2022 consists of the
recognition of previously unrecognized tax benefitff s unrelated to ongoing operations, as well as benefitff s attributable to
multiple tax years dued to lapsa e of the statutt e of limitations. Fiscal 2022 also includes the effeff ct of discrete adjud stments to
the Company’s deferff red tax liabilities that are unrelated to the Company’s ongoing operations.

Sales Per HubHH

In order to measure the effeff ctiveness of our Hub au nd Spoke model, we use “Sales per Hub”u on a trailing fourff -quarter basis,
which includes all revenue generated froff m a Hub au nd its associated Spokes. Sales per Hub eu quals Fresh Revenues froff m Hubs
with Spokes, divided by the average number of Hubs with Spokes forff the period. Fresh Revenues include product sales
generated froff m our Doughnut Shop business (including digital channels), as well as DFD sales, but excluding all Insomnia
Cookies revenues as the measure is focused on the Krispy Kreme business. The average number of Hubs with Spokes forff a
period is calculated as the average of the number of Hubs with Spokes at the end of the five most recent quarters. The Sales per
Hub pu erformance measure allows us and investors to measure our effeff ctiveness at leveraging the Hubsu in the Hub and Spoke
model to distribute product and generate cost effiff ciencies and profitabia lity.
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Sales per Hub wu as as follows forff each of the periods below:

Fiscal Years Ended

(in tii hott usands, us nlesll s otherwiseii stattt edtt )dd
December 29,
2024 52 weeks

December 31,
2023 52 weeks

January 1, 2023
52 weeks

U.S.:
Revenues .................................................................................................. $ 1,058,736 $ 1,104,944 $ 1,010,250
Non-Fresh Revenues (1) .......................................................................... (3,161) (9,416) (38,380)
Fresh Revenues froff m Insomnia Cookies and Hubs without Spokes (2).. (307,665) (399,061) (404,430)
Fresh Revenues froff m Hubs with Spokes ............................................ 747,910 696,467 567,440
Sales per Hub millions ........................................................................ 4.9 4.9 4.5

Internatiott nal:
Fresh Revenues froff m Hubs with Spokes 3 .......................................... $ 519,102 $ 489,631 $ 435,651
Sales per Hub millions 4 ..................................................................... 10.1 9.9 9.6

(1) Includes the exited Branded Sweet Treats business revenues as well as licensing royalties froff m customers for use of the
Krispy Kreme brand.

(2) Includes Insomnia Cookies revenues (through the date of the divestiturt e) and Fresh Revenues generated by Hubsu without
Spokes.

(3) Total International net revenues is equal to Fresh Revenues froff m Hubs with Spokes forff that business segment.
(4) International sales per Hub comparative data has been restated in constant currency based on current exchange rates.

In our International segment, where the Hub and Spoke model originated, Sales per Hub wu as $10.1 million, up from
$9.9 million in fisff cal 2023 and $9.6 million in fiscal 2022. The International segment illustrates the benefits of leveraging our
Hub au nd Spoke model as the most effiff cient way to grow the business, as shown by the consistent Sales per Hub au nd higher
Adjud sted EBITDA margins despite elevated commodity costs and macroeconomic conditions. In the U.S. segment, we had
Sales per Hub ou f $4.9 million, consistent with the $4.9 million in fisff cal 2023 and up fu roff m $4.5 million in fisff cal 2022. In the
U.S. we continue our effoff rts to increase the number of quality Spokes served by our Hubsu as we make progress toward
optimizing the segment to look more like our International segment. As we furff ther extend the Hub and Spoke model into
existing and new markets around the world, we expect to see our Sales per Hub gu row.
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Results of Operations

The folff lowing comparisons are historical results and are not indicative of future results which could diffeff r materially froff m the
historical financial inforff mation presented.

Fiscii al Year ended December 29, 2024 compared to the FisFF cal YeaYY r endeddd December 31, 2023

The folff lowing tabla e presents our audited consolidated results of operations for fisff cal 2024 and fisff cal 2023:

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,
2024 52 weeks

December 31,
2023 52 weeks Change

(in tii hott usands, es xcee ept percentagett s) Amount
of

Revenue Amount
of

Revenue

Net revenues
Product sales................................................. $1,627,778 97.7% $1,651,166 97.9% $ (23,388) -1.4%
Royalties and other revenues ............................ 37,619 2.3% 34,938 2.1% 2,681 7.7%
Total net revenues ........................................ 1,665,397 100.0 1,6 6,104 100.0 20,707 -1.2
Product and distribution costs........................... 409,177 24.6% 443,243 26.3% (34,066) -7.7%
Operating expenses ........................................ 809,916 48.6% 776,589 46.1% 33,327 4.3%
Selling, general and administrative expense......... 274,303 16.5% 266,863 15.8% 7,440 2.8%
Marketing expenses................................................ 47,695 2.9% 45,872 2.7% 1,823 4.0%
Pre-opening costs........................................... 3,411 0.2% 4,120 0.2% (709) -17.2%
Other (income)/expenses, net ........................... (3,967) -0.2% 10,378 0.6% (14,345) -138.2%
Depreciation and amortization expense .............. 133,597 8.0% 125,894 7.5% 7,703 6.1%
Operating loss income................................. ,735 -0.5 13,145 0. 21, 0 -166.5
Interest expense, net ............................................... 60,066 3.6% 50,341 3.0% 9,725 19.3%
Gain on divestiture of Insomnia Cookies ............... (90,455) -5.4% — —% (90,455) -100.0%
Other non-operating expense, net........................... 885 0.1% 3,798 0.2% (1,913) -50.4%
Income loss before income taxes....................... 19,769 1.2 40,994 -2.4 60,763 14 .2
Income tax expense/(benefitff ) ................................. 15,954 1.0% (4,347) -0.3% 20,301 467.0%
Net income loss ................................................... 15 0.2 36,647 -2.2 40,462 110.4
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest. 720 —% 1,278 0.1% (558) -43.7%
Net income loss attributable to Krispy
Kreme, Inc. ........................................................ 3,095 0.2 37,925 -2.2 41,020 10 .2
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The folff lowing tabla e presents a further breakdown of total net revenue and organic revenue growth by segment forff the periods
indicated:

(in tii hott usands, es xcee ept percentagett s) U.S. International
Market

Development Total Company

Total net revenues in fisff cal 2024 (52 weeks) ................................ $ 1,058,736 $ 519,102 $ 87,559 $ 1,665,397
Total net revenues in fisff cal 2023 (52 weeks) ................................ 1,104,944 489,631 91,529 1,686,104
Total Net Revenues Decline Growth....................................... 46,20 29,471 3,970 20,707
Total Net Revenues Decline Growth .................................. -4.2 6.0 -4.3 -1.2

Less: Impact of shop optimization program closures ............. (463) — — (463)
Less: Impact of Insomnia Cookies divestiture........................ (100,965) — — (100,965)
Less: Impact of Branded Sweet Treats exit ............................ (5,853) — — (5,853)

Adjud sted net revenues in fisff cal 2023............................................. 997,663 489,631 91,529 1,578,823
Add usted net revenue growth decline ...................................... 61,073 29,471 3,970 6,574

Impact of acquisitions............................................................. (15,656) (2,865) 5,371 (13,150)
Impact of foreign currency translation.................................... — 5,883 — 5,883

Organic Revenue Growth ........................................................... 45,417 32,4 9 1,401 79,307
Organic Revenue Growth ...................................................... 4.6 6.6 1.5 5.0

Total net revenue declined $20.7 million, or approximately 1.2%, primarily impacted by the $101.0 million reducd tion
associated with the divestiturt e of Insomnia Cookies in the third quarter of fiscal 2024. Organic revenue growth of $79.3 million,
or approximately 5.0%, was driven by the continued and successfulff execution of our omni-channel growth strategy globally,
high impact brand activations, and product premiumization efforts. We hhave contiinuedd t io increase availilabibia lilityy thhroughough 3,410, or
24.1%, addiddi itionall Gllobball P ioints of Access, priimarilily iy inclludidi gng ca ipia tall-lilightght DFD Doors, and ivi da digigiitall chhann lel .s Additionally,
we have continued to take pricing actions to offsff et cost inflation, with average pricing increasing approximately 4% from fisff cal
2023 to fiscal 2024, partially offset by transaction volume declines.

Our U.S. segment net revenue declined $46.2 million, or approximately 4.2% from fisff cal 2023 to fiscal 2024, primarily
impacted by the $101.0 million reduction associated with the divestiturt e of Insomnia Cookies in the third quarter of fiscal 2024.
Organic revenue grew $45.4 million, or approximately 4.6%, froff m fisff cal 2023 to fiscal 2024, driven by an additional 2,577, or
34.9%, Points of Access and growth in Krispy Kreme branded digital channel revenues of 20%. Our organic growth has been
supplu emented by effecff tive pricing increases, with average pricing increasing appa roximately 5% from fisff cal 2023 to fiscal 2024,
leading to an increase in the average transaction size, but partially offsff et by transaction volume declines. U.S. organic revenue
was also impacted adversely by an estimated $11 million in lost revenues related to the 2024 Cybersecurity Incident in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2024.

Our International segment net revenue grew $29.5 million, or approximately 6.0%, froff m fisff cal 2023 to fiscal 2024 i, in s ipite fof
foreigign currencyy translla ition imi pacts of $5.9 million. International organic revenue grew $32.5 million or approximately 6.6%,
from fisff cal 2023 to fiscal 2024, driven primarily by increased pricing of approximately 2% and Points of Access growth of 648,
or 14.3%. International organic revenue growth was partially offsff et by the lower transaction volume compared to last year.

Our Market Development segment net revenue declined $4.0 million, or approximately 4.3%, froff m fisff cal 2023 to fiscal 2024,
due to the $5.4 million impact of franchise acquisitions in fiscal 2024 (the results of acquired fraff nchise businesses are reported
within the Market Development segment prior to the respective dates of acquisition, and are reported within the U.S. or
International segments, as applicable, folff lowing the respective dates of acquisition). Market Development organic revenue grew
$1.4 million, or approximately 1.5%, froff m fisff cal 2023 to fiscal 2024, due to the continued expansion of our international
franchise business.

Product and distii rit bution costs (excee lusive of depre eciation and amortization): Producd t and distribution costs decreased
$34.1 million, or 7.7%, froff m fisff cal 2023 to fiscal 2024. Pr doducd t a dnd didist iribbutiion costs as a percentage of revenue decreased by
approximately 170 basis points froff m 26.3% in fiscal 2023 to 24.6% in fiscal 2024, primarily due to pricing actions taken to
offsff et materials cost inflaff tion of approximately 4%. Additionally, we benefited froff m the exit of the lower-margin Branded
Sweet Treats business, and lapping the related $10.4 million inventory wrr rite-offs and employee severance expenses incurred
during fisff cal 2023.
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Operating expee enses: Operating expenses increased $33.3 million, or 4.3%, froff m fisff cal 2023 to fiscal 2024, driven mainly by
labora cost inflation of appra oximately 5% and iinvestments to support ggrow hth i, inclludidi gng hthe accellera iti gng U.S. DFD expansiion,
with shop and delivery lr abor expenses increasing $20.4 million O. perating expenses as a percentage of revenue increased
approximately 250 basis points, from 46.1% in fiscal 2023 to 48.6% in fiscal 2024, ppriima irilyly ddue to hth ie impact of llower
transactiion v lolumes on opera iti gng lleveragge T. his has been partially offset by effiff ciency benefits from Hub and Spoke expansion.

Selling, general and administrative expee ense: Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses increased $7.4 million, or
2.8%, froff m fisff cal 2023 to fiscal 2024. As a percentage of revenue, SG&A increased by approximately 70 basis points, from
15.8% in fiscal 2023 to 16.5% in fiscal 2024, primarily driven by increased share-based compensation expense of $11.0
million, increased employee termination benefitff s of $8.9 million, and $8.2 million related to preparing forff and executing the
divestiture of Insomnia Cookies, partially offsff et by lower employee cash incentive compensation of $15.4 million and cost
control initiatives in fiscal 2024.

Othet r (in(( come)/e ex// pex nses, net: Other income, net of $4.0 million in fisff cal 2024 was primarily driven by a gain of $5.6 million
related to the remeasurement of equity method investments to faiff r value immediately prior to the acquisition of KriK spy KreKK me
shops referenced in Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestitures to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8
of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Other expenses, net of $10.4 million in fisff cal 2023 were primarily driven by
impairments and lease termination costs associated with the Branded Sweet Treats exit and the decision to exit certain other
underperforming shops, net of a gain froff m a sale-leaseback transaction.

Depre eciation and amortizaii tion expee ense: Depreciation and amortization expense increased $7.7 million, or 6.1%, froff m fisff cal
2023 to fiscal 2024. As a percentage of revenue, depreciation and amortization expense increased approximately 50 basis
points, from 7.5% in fiscal 2023 to 8.0% in fiscal 2024, primarily driven by higher capital spend and assets placed into service
to prepare forff the acceleration of our U.S. national DFD rollout discussed in “Significant Events and Transactions” abovea .

IInterest expense, net: Interest expense, net increased $9.7 million, or 19.3%, froff m fisff cal 2023 to fiscal 2024. The increase was
primarily driven by a higher average debt balance in fisff cal 2024 and also includes a $3.0 million impact from the maturity of
our prior interest rate swap aa greements in the second quarter of fiscal 2024. We have entered into a cumulative $500.0 million
notional new interest rate swap agreements as of the end of fiscal 2024, which will mature in March 2028.

Gain on divestiture of Io nsII omnia CookCC ies: During fiscal 2024 we entered into an agreement to sell our controlling interest in
Insomnia Cookies in exchange for cash proceeds. Following the transaction, we owned appra oximately 34.7% of Insomnia
Cookies and lost the ability to exercise control. Accordingly, we deconsolidated Insomnia Cookies and recorded a gain on
divestiture of $90.5 million. Refer to Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestitures, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K forff further inforff mation.

Income tax eaa xpee ense/(ee be(( nefit)e : Income tax expense was $16.0 million in fisff cal 2024, while income tax benefitff was $4.3 million
in fiscal 2023. The fluff ctuat tion of $20.3 million froff m fisff cal 2023 to fiscal 2024 was driven primarily by tax impact of the gain
on divestiture of Insomnia Cookies.
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Results of Operatiott ns by Segme ent – Fiscii al Year ended December 29, 2024 compared to the FisFF cal YeaYY r endeddd December 31,
2023

The folff lowing tabla e presents Adjusted EBITDA by segment for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Years Ended Change

(in tii hott usands, es xcee ept percentagett s)
December 29,
2024 52 weeks

December 31,
2023 52 weeks

Add usted EBITDA
U.S................................................................................. $ 112,767 $ 130,979 $ (18,212) -13.9%
International..................................................................... 90,716 96,532 (5,816) -6.0%
Market Development ......................................................... 47,904 42,966 4,938 11.5%
Corporate ........................................................................ (57,859) (58,853) 994 1.7%
Total Add usted EBITDA 1 ................................................ 193,52 211,624 1 ,096 - .6

(1) Refer to “Key Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Measures” abovea for a reconciliation of Adjud sted EBITDA to net
income.

U.S. segment Adjusted EBITDA decreased $18.2 million, or 13.9%, impacted by $4.7 million related to the divestiturt e of
Insomnia Cookies in the third quarter of fiscal 2024. The U.S. segment had margin decline of 120 basis points to 10.7% from
fiscal 2023 to fiscal 2024, primarily driven by an estimated impact of $10 million related to the 2024 Cybersecurity Incident in
the fourff th quarter of fiscal 2024 (includes margin on the lost revenues, as well as operational inefficiencies), and incremental
vehicle accident claim costs of $4.3 million.

International segment Adjud sted EBITDA decreased $5.8 million, or 6.0%, with margin decline of approximately 220 basis
points to 17.5% from fiscal 2023 to fiscal 2024, as lower transaction volume continued to impact operating leverage for the
International equity markets.

Market Development segment Adjud sted EBITDA increased $4.9 million, or 11.5%, with margin expansion of 780 basis points
to 54.7% from fisff cal 2023 to fiscal 2024, driven mainly by savings in SG&A and the continued expansion of our international
franchise business.
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Capital Resources and Liquidity

Our principal sources of liquidity to date have included cash froff m operating activities, cash on hand, amounts availabla e under
our credit facility, commercial trade financing including our structurt ed payabla es programs, and proceeds froff m the divestiture of
Insomnia Cookies. Our primary ur se of liquidity is to fund the cash requirements of our business operations, including working
capital needs, capital expenditures, acquisitions, and other commitments.

Our futff urtt e obligations primarily consist of our debt and lease obligations, as well as commitments under ingredient and other
forward purchase contracts. As of December 29, 2024, we had the following future obligations:

• An aggregate principal amount of $819.5 million outstanding under the 2023 Facility;

• An aggregate principal amount of $5.0 million outstanding under short-term, uncommitted lines of credit

• Non-cancellabla e futff urtt e minimum operating lease payments totaling $664.3 million;

• Non-cancellabla e futff urtt e minimum finance lease payments totaling $97.0 million; and

• Purchase commitments under ingredient and other forward purchase contracts of $98.9 million.

Refer to Note 8, Long-Term Debt, Note 9, Leases, and Note 15, Commitments and Contingencies, to the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K forff further inforff mation.

We had cash and cash equivalents of $29.0 million and $38.2 million as of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
respectively. We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents and availabla e borrowing capacity under our debt facilities
will be sufficient to fundff our operating and capital needs for at least the next twelve months. In fisff cal 2025, we expect to use
our availabla e cash to continue to position the business forff sustainabla e growth, including investing in shop improvements, ways
to better serve our consumers, and ways to increase our omni-channel presence as we expand our DFD Doors in priority areas
and channels. We also expect to invest in new shop openings and new market penetration within the U.S. and internationally.
Total capital expenditures forff fiscal 2025 are expected to be between 6% and 7% of net revenues, as we continue to deploy the
capia tal-effiff cient Hub and Spoke model globally. We also expect to continue to return cash to shareholders through common
stock cash dividend payments.

Our assessment of the period of time through which our financial resources will be adequate to supporu t our operations could
vary because of, and our future capital requirements will depend on, many factors, including our growth rate, the timing and
extent of spending on business acquisitions, the growth of our presence in new markets, and the expansion of our omni-channel
model in existing markets. We may enter into arrangements in the future to acquire or invest in complementary br usinesses,
services, and technologies. We have based this estimate on assumptions that may prove to be wrong, and we could use our
availabla e capital resources sooner than we currently expect. We may be required to seek additional equity or debt financing. In
the event that additional finff ancing is required froff m outside sources, we may not be able to raise it on terms acceptabla e to us or
at all. If we are unabla e to raise additional capital when desired, or if we cannot expand our operations or otherwise capitalize on
our business opportunities because we lack suffiff cient capital, our business, results of operations, and financial condition would
be adversely affected.
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Cash Flowll sw

We generate significff ant cash froff m operations and have substantial credit availabia lity and capacity to fund operating and
discretionary spending such as capital expenditures and debt repayments. Our requirement for working capia tal is not significant
because our consumers pay us in cash or on debit or credit cards at the time of the sale and we are able to sell many of our
inventory ir tems before payment is dued to the vendors forff the various inputs to such items. The following table and discussion
present, for the periods indicated, a summary of our key cash floff ws from operating, investing and financing activities:

Fiscal Years Ended

(in tii hott usands)s
December 29,
2024 52 weeks

December 31,
2023 52 weeks

Net cash provided by operating activities...................................................................... $ 45,832 $ 45,544
Net cash provided by/(used forff ) investing activities ........................................................ 19,280 (112,588)
Net cash (used for)/pr// ovided by finff ancing activities........................................................ (73,949) 71,862

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operations totaled $45.8 million forff fiscal 2024, an increase of $0.3 million compared with fiscal 2023. Cash
provided by operations remained consistent primarily due to less operating income generated in fisff cal 2024 compared to fiscal
2023 and the impact of our receipt of $7.7 million in cash proceeds froff m the settlement of interest rate swap derivative contracts
in fiscal 2023, offsff et by net increases in cash flows in fisff cal 2024 related to changes in operating assets and liabia lities, primarily
accounts payable.

Investing Activities

Cash provided by investing activities totaled $19.3 million forff fiscal 2024, a fluff ctuat tion of $131.9 million compared with fiscal
2023. The cash provided by investing activities in fiscal 2024 was primarily due to the receipt of net proceeds of $124.1 million
from the divestiturtt e of Insomnia Cookies and an additional $45.0 million froff m the repayment of an intercompany loan dued from
Insomnia Cookies. These proceeds were partially offsff et by our use of $31.9 million cash for the acquisition of franchised shops
in fiscal 2024, discussed in Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestitures to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included
in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We expect to incur additional capital expenditures related to our accelerated U.S. expansion, including via QSR channels such
as the McDonald’s U.S. national rollout discussed in “Significant Events and Transactions” abovea . We plan to support much of
this expansion using existing capacity, and did not experience a significant increase in capital expenditures as a percentage of
revenues in fisff cal 2024. While we do expect U.S. capia tal expenditures as a percentage of revenues to increase in fisff cal 2025 and
2026 associated with acceleration of the overall U.S. business expansion, these capital expenditures support the overall DFD
and retail channels and are not directly attributable to, or required by, the agreement with McDonald’s. We are not subju ect to
capital expenditurt e commitments or obligations specific to the relationship with McDonald’s.

Financing Activities

Cash used for finff ancing activities totaled $73.9 million forff fiscal 2024, a fluff ctuatt tion of $145.8 million compared with fiscal
2023. The cash used forff financing activities was primarily driven by the pay down of long-term debt balances with a portion of
the net proceeds received from the divestiturt e of Insomnia Cookies.
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Debt

Our long-term debt obligations consist of the following:

(in tii hott usands)s
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023

2023 Facility — term loan........................................................................................................... $ 647,500 $ 682,500
2023 Facility — revolving credit facility .................................................................................... 172,000 155,000
Short-term lines of credit ............................................................................................................. 5,000 11,000
Less: Debt issuance costs ............................................................................................................ (3,322) (4,371)
Financing obligations .................................................................................................................. 79,725 47,117
Total long-term debt.................................................................................................................. 900,903 91,246
Less: Current portion of long-term debt ...................................................................................... (56,356) (54,631)
Long-term debt, less current portion....................................................................................... 44,547 36,615

2023 Secured CreCC dit FacFF ilitytt

The Company is party to a credit agreement (the “2023 Facility”) consisting of a $300.0 million senior secured revolving credit
facility and a term loan with a principal amount of $700.0 million. Refer to Note 8, Long-Term Debt, to the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K forff further inforff mation.

Under the terms of the 2023 Facility, we are subju ect to a requirement to maintain a leverage ratio of less than 5.00 to 1.00 as of
the end of each quarterly Test Period (as definff ed in the 2023 Facility) through maturity in March 2028. The leverage ratio under
the 2023 Facility is defined as the ratio of (a) Total Indebtedness (as definff ed in the 2023 Facility, which includes all debt and
finance lease obligations) minus unrestricted cash and cash equivalents to (b) a definff ed calculation of Adjusted EBITDA (2023
Facility Adjud sted EBITDA) for the most recently ended Test Period. Our leverage ratio was 3.91 to 1.00 as of the end of fisff cal
2024 compared to 3.48 to 1.00 as of the end of fiscal 2023.

We were in compliance with the finff ancial covenants related to the 2023 Facility as of December 29, 2024 and expect to remain
in compliance over the next 12 months. If we are unabla e to meet the 2023 Facility financial or other covenants in futff urt e periods,
it could limit our ability to draw on the revolving credit facility, could result in the lenders accelerating the maturity of such
indebtedness and forff eclosing upon the collateral pledged thereunder, and could require the replacement of the 2023 Facility
with new sources of finff ancing, which we may be unabla e to secure on favff orable terms or at all, any of which could negatively
impact our liquidity.

Short-Term Lines of Co reCC dit

We are party to two agreements with existing lenders providing for short-term, uncommitted lines of credit up tu o an aggregate
of $25.0 million. Borrowings under these short-term lines of credit are payable to the lenders on a revolving basis forff tenors upu
to a maximum of three months and are subju ect to an interest rate of adjud sted term SOFR plus a credit spread adjud stment of
0.10% plus a margin of 1.75%. As of December 29, 2024, the Company had drawn $5.0 million under the agreements which is
classified within Current portion of long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Critical Accounting Estimates

The finff ancial information discussed in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” is based upon or derived froff m the audited Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been prepared in
conforff mity with GAAP. The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of judgments, estimates, and assumptions
that affeff ct the reported amounts of assets, liabia lities, revenues, and expenses as well as related disclosures. We consider an
accounting judgment, estimate, or assumption to be critical when (1) the estimate or assumption is complex in naturtt e or
requires a high degree of judgment and (2) the use of diffeff rent judgments, estimates, and assumptions could have a material
impact on the audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and judgments based on historical experience and various other facff tors that are
believed to be reasonabla e under the circumstances. We review our financial reporting and disclosure practices and accounting
policies quarterly to confirff m that they provide accurate and transparent information relative to the current economic and
business environment. A summary of our significant accounting policies is included in Note 1, Description of Business and
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements. We believe that our critical
accounting estimates are:

Self-Iff nsII urance Riskii s akk nd Receivablesll from Insurers

We are subject to workers’ compensation, vehicle, and general liabia lity claims and are self-iff nsured for a significant portion of
our workers’ compensation, vehicle, and general liability claims up to the amount of stop-loss insurance coverage purchased
from commercial insurance carriers. We maintain accruals forff the estimated cost of claims, without regard to the effects of stop-
loss coverage, using actuat rial methods which evaluate known open and incurred but not reported claims and consider historical
loss development experience. In addition, we record receivabla es from the insurance carriers forff claims amounts estimated to be
recovered under the stop-loss insurance policies when these amounts are estimabla e and probabla e of collection. We estimate
such stop-loss receivables using the same actuatt rial methods used to establa ish the related claims accruarr ls and taking into account
the amount of risk transferff red to the carriers under the stop-loss policies. The stop-loss policies provide coverage for claims in
excess of retained self-insurance risks, which are determined on a claim-by-claim basis. As of December 29, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, we had appra oximately $34.8 million and $21.0 million, respectively, reserved for such programs. Inclusive
of the receivabla es from the stop-loss insurance policies, the Company’s limited liabia lity balance was $18.7 million and $10.8
million as of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

Our estimated liabia lity is not discounted and is based on a number of assumptions and facff tors. The critical assumptions used in
determining these related expenses and obligations are futff urt e cost projeo ctions of claims, which include healthcare cost
projections. These critical assumptions are calculated based on historical Company data and experience, as well as appra opriate
market indicators including inflation, societal attitudes toward legal action, and changes in law. The assumptions are evaluated
at least semiannually by us in conjunction with outside actuatt ries and are closely monitored and adjud sted when warranted by
changing circumstances. If a greater amount of claims are reported, or if medical costs increase beyond our expectations, our
liabia lities may not be suffiff cient, and we could recognize additional expense.

Income Taxeaa s

Our provision for income taxes, deferff red tax assets and liabia lities including valuation allowances requires the use of estimates
based on our management’s interpretation and appla ication of complex tax laws and accounting guidance. We establa ish reserves
for uncertain tax positions for material, known tax exposures in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”)
740, Income Taxeaa s relating to deductions, transactions and other matters involving some uncertainty as to the measurement and
recognition of the item. We may adjud st these reserves when our judgment changes as a result of the evaluation of new
information not previously availabla e and will be reflected in the period in which the new information is available. While we
believe that our reserves are adequate, issues raised by a tax authority may be resolved at an amount different than the related
reserve and could materially increase or decrease our income tax provision in future periods.
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Realization of deferff red tax assets involves estimates regarding (i) the timing and amount of the reversal of taxable temporaryr
differences, (ii) expected future taxabla e income, (iii) the ability to carry back or carry forward net operating losses and tax
credits, and (iv) the impact of tax planning strategies. We believe that it is more likely than not that we will not realize the
benefit of certain deferred tax assets and, accordingly, have establa ished a valuation allowance against them. In assessing the
need for a valuation allowance, we consider all available positive and negative evidence, including past operating results,
projections of future taxabla e income and the feasff ibility of and potential changes to ongoing tax planning strategies. The
projections of future taxabla e income include a number of estimates and assumptions regarding our volume, pricing and costs.
Although realization is not assured forff the remaining deferred tax assets, we believe it is more likely than not that the remaining
deferred tax assets will be realized through future taxabla e earnings or alternative tax strategies. However, deferff red tax assets
could be reducd ed in the near term if our estimates of taxabla e income are significantly reduced or tax strategies are no longer
viable.

Goodwill and IndII efdd inff ite Lived Intangible Assets

For each reporting unit, we assess goodwill forff impairment annually at the beginning of the fourff th fiscal quarter or more
frequently when impairment indicators are present. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, we
recognize an impairment charge forff the diffeff rence up tu o the carryirr ng value of the allocated goodwill. The faiff r value is estimated
using a combination of a discounted cash floff w appra oach and a market approach.

When assessing goodwill for impairment, our decision to perform a qualitative impairment assessment forff an individual
reporting unit is influff enced by a number of facff tors, inclusive of the carrying value of the reporting unit’s goodwill, the
significance of the excess of the reporting unit’s estimated faiff r value over carrying value at the last quantitative assessment date,
the amount of time in between quantitative faiff r value assessments and the date of acquisition. If we perform a quantitative
assessment of an individual reporting unit’s goodwill, our impairment calculations contain uncertainties because they require
management to make assumptions and to apply judgment when estimating futff urt e cash floff ws and asset faiff r values, including
projected revenue growth and operating expenses related to existing businesses, product innovation and new shop concepts, as
well as utilizing valuation multiples of similar publicly traded companies and selecting an appra opriate discount rate. Estimates
of revenue growth and operating expenses are based on internal projections considering the reporting unit’s past performance
and forff ecasted growth, strategic initiatives, local market economics, and the local business environment impacting the reporting
unit’s performance. The discount rate is selected based on the estimated cost of capital forff a market participant to operate the
reporting unit in the region. These estimates, as well as the selection of comparabla e companies and valuation multiples used in
the market appra oaches are highly subjective, and our ability to realize the future cash flows used in our fair value calculations is
affeff cted by factors such as the success of strategic initiatives, changes in economic conditions, changes in our operating
performance, and changes in our business strategies, including retail initiatives and international expansion.

For the fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022, there were no goodwill impairment charges. We continue to believe the faiff r value of
each of our reporting units is significantly in excess of its carrying value, and absent a sustained multi-year global decline in our
business in key markets such as the U.S., we do not anticipate incurring significant goodwill impairment in the next 12 months.

Other intangible assets, net primarily represent the trade names for our brands, fraff nchise agreements (domestic and
international), reacquired fraff nchise rights, and customer relationships. The trade names have been assigned an indefinite usefulff
life aff nd are reviewed annually forff impairment. The faiff r value calculation forff the trade names includes estimates of revenue
growth, which are based on past performance and internal projeo ctions for the intangible asset group’s forff ecasted growth and
royalty rates, which are adjud sted for our particular facts and circumstances. The discount rate is selected based on the estimated
cost of capital that refleff cts the risk profileff of the related business. These estimates are highly subjeb ctive, and our ability to
achieve the forff ecasted cash floff ws used in our fair value calculations is affeff cted by factors such as the success of strategic
initiatives, changes in economic conditions, changes in our operating performance, and changes in our business strategies,
including retail initiatives and international expansion. All other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated usefulff lives. Definff ite-lived intangible assets are assessed forff impairment whenever triggering events or
indicators of potential impairment occur. We did not have any impairment charges of indefinite-lived intangible assets during
any of the periods presented, and we do not anticipate incurring significant impairment charges in the next 12 months.
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Impaim rmi ent of Lo ong-Li- ved Assets

We evaluate property and equipment, lease right of use assets, and other definff ite lived assets for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of such assets may not be recoverabla e. Expected cash flows
associated with an asset are the key factor in determining the recoverabia lity of the asset. For the recoverabia lity evaluation, long-
lived assets are grouped with other assets and liabia lities at the lowest level for which identifiaff bla e cash floff ws are largely
independent of the cash floff ws of other assets and liabia lities. For Company-owned Hub and Spoke assets, the impairment test is
performed at the individual Hub asset group level (which includes a Hub au nd its related Spokes), which is inclusive of property
and equipment and lease right of use assets. If the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash
flows, the Company records an impairment charge in an amount equal to the excess of the carrying value of the assets over the
estimated fair value. Significant judgment is involved in determining the assumptions used in estimating future cash floff ws,
including projected revenue growth, operating margins, economic conditions, and changes in the operating environment.
Changes in these assumptions could have a significant impact on the recoverabia lity of the asset and may result in additional
impairment charges. For those Hubs and any other asset groupings where the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the sum of
the undiscounted cash floff ws, the Company must make additional assumptions to determine the related faiff r values of the assets,
including selection of an appra opriate discount rate when the income appra oach is used.

Impairment charges related to the Company’s long-lived fixff ed assets were $4.6 million, $18.1 million, and $8.4 million forff the
fiscal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively. For the fiscal year ended
December 29, 2024, the Company recognized a net gain on lease termination of $0.1 million. For the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023 the Company recorded lease impairment and termination costs of $6.6 million and
$8.2 million, respectively.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 1, Description of Business and Summary orr f Significant Accounting Policies, to the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K forff a detailed description of recent
accounting pronouncements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Effeff cts ott f Co haCC nging PriPP ces – InfII laff tion

We are exposed to the effects of commodity price fluff ctuat tions in the cost of ingredients of our products, of which flour, sugar
and shortening are the most significant. Throughout fiscal 2024, we continued to experience headwinds from commodity
inflation globally. We have undertaken effoff rts to effectively manage inflaff tionary cost increases through rapia d inventoryr
turnover and reduced inventory wr aste, increased focus on resiliency of our supplu y chains, and an abia lity to adjud st pricing of our
products. Additionally, froff m time to time we may enter into forward contracts forff supplu y through our vendors forff raw materials
which are ingredients of our products or which are components of such ingredients, including wheat, sugar, and vegetable oil.

We are also exposed to the effects of commodity price fluff ctuatt tions in the cost of gasoline used by our delivery vr ehicles. To
mitigate the risk of fluctuations in the price of our fuel purchases, we may directly purchase commodity futures contracts.

Interest Rate Riskii

We are exposed to changes in interest rates on any borrowings under our debt facilities, which bear interest based on the one-
month SOFR (with a floff or of zero). Generally, interest rate changes could impact the amount of our interest paid and, thereforff e,
our future earnings and cash floff ws, assuming other factors are held constant. To mitigate the impact of changes in SOFR on
interest expense forff a portion of our variable rate debt, we have entered into interest rate swaps on $500.0 million notional of
our $824.5 million of outstanding debt under the 2023 Facility and short-term lines of credit as of December 29, 2024, which
we account for as cash floff w hedges. The interest rate swap aa greements are scheduld ed to mature in March 2028. Based on the
$324.5 million of unhedged debt outstanding as of December 29, 2024, a 100 basis point increase or decrease in the one-month
SOFR would result in a $3.2 million increase or decrease, respectively, in interest expense forff a 12-month period, based on the
daily average of the one-month SOFR forff the fisff cal year ended December 29, 2024.

Foreign Cgg urCC rency Rc isk

We are exposed to foreign currency translation risk on the operations of our subsu idiaries that have functional currencies other
than the U.S. dollar, whose revenues accounted for appra oximately 31% of our total net revenues through the fisff cal year ended
December 29, 2024. A substantial majority of these revenues, or approximately $519.1 million through the fisff cal year ended
December 29, 2024, were attributable to subsu idiaries whose funff ctional currencies are the Canadian dollar, the British pound
sterling, the Euro, the Australian dollar, the New Zealand dollar, the Mexican peso, and the Japanese yen. A 10% increase or
decrease in the average fisff cal 2024 exchange rate of any of these currencies against the U.S. dollar would have resulted in a
decrease or increase, respectively, of approximately $51.9 million in our total net revenues through the fisff cal year ended
December 29, 2024.

From time to time, we engage in foreign currency exchange and credit transactions with our non-U.S. subsu idiaries, which we
typically hedge. To date, the impact of such transactions, including the cost of hedging, has not been material. We do not
engage in foreign currency or hedging transactions for speculative purposrr es.
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Report of Independent Registered Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Krispy Kreme, Inc.

Opinion on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of KriK spy KreK me, Inc. (a Delaware corporrr ation) and
subsu idiaries (the “Company”) as of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive (loss)/income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash floff ws for each of the three fisff cal years in
the period ended December 29, 2024, and the related notes (collectively referff red to as the “consolidated financial statements”).
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the finff ancial position of the
Company as of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows forff each of the
three fisff cal years in the period ended December 29, 2024, in conforff mity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Publu ic Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB”), the Company’s internal control over finff ancial reporting as of December 29, 2024, based on criteria established in
the 2013 Internal Controt l—In— tegre ated Frameworkrr issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSO”), and our report dated Februarr ry 27, 2025 expressed an adverse opinion.

Basis forff opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firff m registered
with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. fedff eral securities
laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonabla e assurance abouta whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether dued to
error or fraff ud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraff ud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonabla e basis for our opinion.

Critical audit matters

The critical audit matters are matters arising froff m the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that were
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are
material to the finff ancial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subju ective, or complex judgments. We
determined that there are no critical audit matters.

/s/GRANTAA THORNTRR ON LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2017.

Denver, Colorado

Februarr ry 27, 2025
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Report of Independent Registered Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Krispy Kreme, Inc.

Opinion on internal control over finff ancial reporting

We have audited the internal control over finff ancial reporting of KriKK spy KreKK me, Inc. (a Delaware corporrr ation) and subsidiaries
(the “Company”) as of December 29, 2024, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Contrott l—In— tegre ated Frameworkrr
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). In our opinion, because of the
effeff ct of the material weakness described in the following paragraphsa on the achievement of the objectives of the control
criteria, the Company has not maintained effeff ctive internal control over finff ancial reporting as of December 29, 2024, based on
criteria established in the 2013 Internal Controt l—In— tegre ated Frameworkrr issued by COSO.

A material weakness is a deficff iency, or combination of control deficff iencies, in internal control over finff ancial reporting, such
that there is a reasonabla e possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The folff lowing material weakness has been identified and included in
management’s assessment.

The Company identified a material weakness related to access that could enabla e the creation of journal entries without review
and appra oval. This created the potential opportunity for there to have been material errors in multiple financial statement
accounts that may have not been prevented or detected timely.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Publu ic Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB”), the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 29, 2024. The
material weakness identifieff d abovea was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our
audit of the 2024 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affeff ct our report dated Februarr ry 27, 2025 which
expressed an unqualified opinion on those finff ancial statements.

Basis forff opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effeff ctive internal control over finff ancial reporting and for its
assessment of the effeff ctiveness of internal control over finff ancial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s
Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal control over finff ancial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firff m registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. fedff eral securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonabla e assurance abouta whether effective internal control over finff ancial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over finff ancial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedurdd es as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonabla e basis for our opinion.

Definition and limitations of internal control over finff ancial reporting

A company’s internal control over finff ancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliabia lity of financial reporting and the preparation of finff ancial statements for external purposrr es in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over finff ancial reporting includes those policies and procedurdd es
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabla e detail, accurately and faiff rly refleff ct the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonabla e assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of finff ancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effeff ct on the finff ancial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over finff ancial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to futff urt e periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedurdd es may deteriorate.

/s/GRANTAA THORNTRR ON LLP

Denver, Colorado

Februarr ry 27, 2025
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Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in tii hott usands, es xcee ept per share amounts)tt

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,
2024 52 weeks

December 31,
2023 52 weeks

January 1,
2023 52 weeks

Net revenues
Product sales..................................................................................................... $ 1,627,778 $ 1,651,166 $ 1,497,882
Royalties and other revenues............................................................................ 37,619 34,938 32,016
Total net revenues .......................................................................................... 1,665,397 1,6 6,104 1,529, 9
Product and distribution costs .......................................................................... 409,177 443,243 406,227
Operating expenses .......................................................................................... 9,916 776,589 704,287
Selling, general and administrative expense .................................................... 274,303 266,863 223,198
Marketing expenses.......................................................................................... 695 45,872 42,566
Pre-opening costs ............................................................................................. 3,411 4,120 4,227
Other (income)/expenses, net ........................................................................... (3,967) 10,378 10,157
Depreciation and amortization expense ........................................................... 133,597 125,894 110,261
Operating loss income ................................................................................. ,735 13,145 2 ,975
Interest expense, net ......................................................................................... 60,066 50,341 34,102
Gain on divestiture of Insomnia Cookies ......................................................... (90,455) — —
Other non-operating expense, net..................................................................... 1,885 3,798 3,036
Income loss before income taxes................................................................. 19,769 40,994 ,163
Income tax expense/(benefit)ff ........................................................................... 15,954 (4,347) 612
Net income loss ............................................................................................. 3, 15 36,647 ,775
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest........................................... 720 1,278 6,847
Net income loss attributable to Krispy Kreme, Inc.................................. 3,095 37,925 15,622
Net income loss per share:
Common stock - Basic ..................................................................................... $ 0.02 $ (0.23) $ (0.10)
Common stock - Diluted .................................................................................. $ 0.02 $ (0.23) $ (0.10)
eighted average shares outstanding:

Basic ................................................................................................................. 169,341 168,289 167,471
Diluted.............................................................................................................. 171,500 168,289 167,471

See accompam nying notes to Consolidatdd ed Financial StaS tements.tt
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Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income Loss

(in tii hott usands)s

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,
2024 52 weeks

December 31,
2023 52 weeks

January 1,
2023 52 weeks

Net income loss .............................................................................................. 3, 15 36,647 ,775
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of income taxes:

Foreign currency translation adjustment................................................ (35,143) 26,007 (33,637)
Unrealized (loss)/income on cash floff w hedges, net of income taxes (1) . (5,359) (8,622) 25,251
Unrealized income on employee benefitff plans ...................................... 35 6 70
Total other comprehensive loss income .......................................... 40,467 17,391 ,316

Comprehensive loss ......................................................................................... 36,652 19,256 17,091
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest ................................ 720 1,278 6,847
Foreign currency translation adjud stment attributable to noncontrolling
interest .............................................................................................. (1,093) 994 (1,642)

Total comprehensive loss income attributable to noncontrolling
interest ............................................................................................. 373 2,272 5,205

Comprehensive loss attributable to Krispy Kreme, Inc. ............................. 36,279 21,52 22,296

(1) Net of income tax benefit/(expense) of $1.8 million, $2.9 million, and ($8.4 million) for the fiscal years ended
December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively.

See accompam nying notes to Consolidatdd ed Financial StaS tements.tt
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Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in tii hott usands, es xcee ept per share amounts)tt

of
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ............................................................................................................... $ 28,962 $ 38,185
Restricted cash ................................................................................................................................. 353 429
Accounts receivabla e, net .................................................................................................................. 67,722 59,362
Inventories ....................................................................................................................................... 28,133 34,716
Taxes receivabla e .............................................................................................................................. 16,155 15,526
Prepaid expense and other current assets......................................................................................... 31,615 25,363

Total current assets .............................................................................................................. 172,940 173,5 1
Property and equipment, net ............................................................................................................ 511,139 538,220
Goodwill .......................................................................................................................................... 1,047,581 1,101,939
Other intangible assets, net .............................................................................................................. 819,934 946,349
Operating lease right of use asset, net.............................................................................................. 409,869 456,964
Investments in unconsolidated entities ............................................................................................ 91,070 2,806
Other assets ...................................................................................................................................... 19,497 20,733

Total assets ............................................................................................................................ 3,072,030 3,240,592
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabia lities:
Current portion of long-term debt.................................................................................................... 6,356 $ 54,631
Current operating lease liabia lities .................................................................................................... 620 50,365
Accounts payable............................................................................................................................. 123,316 156,488
Accruerr d liabia lities ............................................................................................................................ 212 134,005
Structurt ed payabla es.......................................................................................................................... 668 130,104

Total current liabilities ........................................................................................................ 4 6,172 525,593
Long-term debt, less current portion................................................................................................ 844,547 836,615
Noncurrent operating lease liabia lities .............................................................................................. 405,366 454,583
Deferred income taxes, net .............................................................................................................. 130,745 123,925
Other long-term obligations and deferff red credits ............................................................................ 40,768 36,093

Total liabilities ...................................................................................................................... 1,907,59 1,976, 09
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 300,000 shares authorized as of both December 29, 2024 and
December 31, 2023; 170,060 and 168,628 shares issued and outstanding as of December 29,
2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively ................................................................................. 1,701 1,686

Additional paid-in capia tal ................................................................................................................ 1,466,508 1,443,591
Shareholder note receivable............................................................................................................. (1,906) (3,850)
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of income tax ............................................. (32,128) 7,246
Retained deficit ................................................................................................................................ (299,638) (278,990)

Total shareholders’ equity attributable to Krispy Kreme, Inc........................................ 1,134,537 1,169,6 3
Noncontrolling interest .................................................................................................................... 29,895 94,100

Total shareholders’ equity................................................................................................... 164,432 1,263,7 3
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity........................................................................... 3,072,030 3,240,592

See accompam nying notes to Consolidatdd ed Financial StaS tements.tt
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Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in tii hott usands)s

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,
2024 52
weeks

December 31,
2023 52
weeks

January 1,
2023 52
weeks

CASH FLO S PRO IDED BY OPERATRR ING ACTI ITIES:
Net income/(loss) ....................................................................................................................................... $ 3,815 $ (36,647) $ (8,775)
Adjud stments to reconcile net income/(loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense.......................................................................................... 133,597 125,894 110,261
Deferred and other income taxes .................................................................................................... 3,067 (18,486) (14,237)
Loss on extinguishment of debt ...................................................................................................... — 472 —
Impairment and lease termination charges ..................................................................................... 4,464 24,909 18,297
Loss on disposal of property and equipment .................................................................................. 1,250 110 393
Gain on divestiture of Insomnia Cookies........................................................................................ (90,455) — —
Gain on remeasurement of equity method investment ................................................................... (5,579) — —
Gain on sale-leaseback.................................................................................................................... (1,569) (9,646) (6,549)
Share-based compensation.............................................................................................................. 35,149 24,196 18,170
Change in accounts and notes receivabla e allowances..................................................................... 646 654 570
Inventory wrr rite-off.......................................................................................................................... 2,783 11,248 868
Settlement of interest rate swap derivatives.................................................................................... — 7,657 8,476
Amortization related to settlement of interest rate swap derivatives.............................................. (5,910) (10,289) —
Other ............................................................................................................................................... (619) 2,155 2,232
Change in operating assets and liabia lities, excluding business acquisitions and divestitures, and

foreign currency translation adjustments:
Accounts, notes, and taxes receivabla e................................................................................ (13,895) (3,523) (9,485)
Inventories.......................................................................................................................... (2,011) 780 (12,515)
Other current and noncurrent assets................................................................................... (873) (2,395) (1,691)
Operating lease assets and liabia lities.................................................................................. (1,227) 5,111 (793)
Accounts payable and accruerr d liabia lities ........................................................................... (20,156) (74,471) 32,015
Other long-term obligations and deferff red credits .............................................................. 3,355 (2,185) 2,581

Net cash provided by operating activities .............................................................................................. 45, 32 45,544 139, 1
CASH FLO S PRO IDED BY USED FOR IN ESTING ACTI ITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment............................................................................................... (120,792) (121,427) (111,717)
Proceeds froff m disposals of assets ................................................................................................... 183 218 1,077
Proceeds froff m sale-leaseback ......................................................................................................... 6,308 10,025 8,401
Acquisition of shops and fraff nchise rights froff m fraff nchisees, net of cash acquired ......................... (31,938) — (17,330)
Purchase of equity method investment ........................................................................................... (3,506) (1,424) (989)
Net proceeds froff m divestiture of Insomnia Cookies....................................................................... 124,126 — —
Principal payment received froff m loan to Insomnia Cookies .......................................................... 45,000 — —
Principal payments received froff m loans to franchisees.................................................................. 985 20 59
Disbursement for loan receivabla e ................................................................................................... (1,086) — (975)

Net cash provided by used for investing activities.............................................................................. 19,2 0 112,5 121,474
CASH FLO S USED FOR PRO IDED BY FINANCING ACTI ITIES:

Proceeds froff m the issuance of debt................................................................................................. 676,250 1,175,698 149,000
Repayment of long-term debt and lease obligations....................................................................... (712,778) (1,084,390) (101,181)
Payment of finff ancing costs ............................................................................................................. — (5,175) —
Proceeds froff m strucrr tured payables ................................................................................................. 376,189 241,148 282,023
Payments on structurt ed payabla es .................................................................................................... (345,327) (214,574) (294,457)
Payment of contingent consideration related to a business combination ....................................... — (925) (900)
Capia tal contribution froff m shareholders, net of loans issued........................................................... 919 764 (288)
Payments of issuance costs in connection with initial public offeff ring ........................................... — — (12,458)
Proceeds froff m sale of noncontrolling interest in subsidiary........................................................... 1,562 292 593
Distribution to shareholders............................................................................................................ (23,692) (23,558) (23,430)
Payments for repurchase and retirement of common stock............................................................ (5,489) (1,880) (4,019)
Distribution to noncontrolling interest............................................................................................ (41,583) (15,538) (11,721)

Net cash used for provided by finff ancing activities............................................................................. 73,949 71, 62 16, 3
Effeff ct of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash......................................... (462) (1,934) (4,968)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash ....................................................... (9,299) 2,884 (3,462)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of the fisff cal year ................................................ 38,614 35,730 39,192
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of the fisff cal year ................................................... 29,315 3 ,614 35,730
Supplu emental scheduld e of non-cash investing and financing activities:

Increase in accruar l forff property and equipment.............................................................................. $ 14,214 $ 51,820 $ 20,629
Stock issuance under shareholder notes.......................................................................................... — — 614
Accruarr l forff distribution to shareholders ......................................................................................... (5,952) (5,902) (5,884)

Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of fiscal year:
Cash and cash equivalents .............................................................................................................. $ 28,962 $ 38,185 $ 35,371
Restricted cash ................................................................................................................................ 353 429 359
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash........................................................................ 29,315 3 ,614 35,730

See accompanym ing notes to Consolidatdd ed Financial StaSS tements.tt
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Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(doldd lall rs in thousands,dd unlesll s otherwiseii specifieff d)

Note 1 — Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Descriptii iott n of Bo usiness

Krispy Kreme, Inc. (“KKI”) and its subsu idiaries (collectively, the “Company” or “KriK spy KreK me”) operate through an omni-
channel business model to produce doughnuts and deliver freff sh doughnut experiences forff Doughnut Shops, DFD Doors, and
digital channels, expanding consumer access to the KriK spy KreKK me brand.

The Company has three reportabla e operating segments: 1) U.S., which includes all Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations
in the U.S., and Insomnia Cookies Bakeries globally through the date of deconsolidation (refer to Note 2, Acquisitions and
Divestitures, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements forff more information); 2) International, which includes all
Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New Zealand, Mexico, Canada and Japaa n; and 3)
Market Development, which includes fraff nchise operations across the globe. Unallocated corporate costs are excluded froff m the
Company’s measurement of segment performance.

As of December 29, 2024, there were 2,078 KriK spy KreK me-branded shops in 40 countries around the world. The ownership and
location of those shops is as follows:

U.S. International
Market

Development Total

Company-owned Shops........................................................... 307 568 — 875
Franchise Shops....................................................................... — — 1,203 1,203
Total........................................................................................ 307 56 1,203 2,07

Basis oii f Po rePP sentattt iott n and Consolidll atdd iott n

The Company operates and reports financial inforff mation on a 52 or 53-week year with the fisff cal year ending on the Sunday
closest to December 31. The data periods contained within fisff cal years 2024, 2023, and 2022 reflect the results of operations for
the 52-week periods ending December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023 and January 1, 2023, respectively.

The accompanying audited Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of KKI and its subsu idiaries and have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP. All significant intercompany balances and transactions among KKI and its subsu idiaries
have been eliminated in consolidation. Investments in entities over which the Company has the ability to exercise significant
influence but which it does not control and whose finff ancial statements are not otherwise required to be consolidated are
accounted for using the equity method.

Noncontrolling interest in the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements represents the interest in subsu idiaries held
by joint venture partners and employee shareholders. The joint venture partners hold noncontrolling interests in the Company’s
consolidated subsu idiaries W.K.S. Krispy Kreme, LLC (“WKS Krispy Kreme”), and KriK spy K Canada, Inc. (“KK Canada”).
Employee shareholders hold noncontrolling interests in the consolidated subsu idiaries Krispy Kreme Holding U.K. Ltd. (“KK
U.K.”), KriK spy KreK me Holdings Pty Ltd. (“KK Australia”), and Krispy Kreme Mexico Holding S.A.P.I. de C.V. (“KK
Mexico”). Since the Company consolidates the finff ancial statements of these subsidiaries, the noncontrolling owners’ share of
each subsu idiary’s net assets and results of operations are deducd ted and reported as a noncontrolling interest on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets and as net income attributable to noncontrolling interest in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income/(Loss).

Use of Eo stEE imatt tes

The preparation of finff ancial statements in conforff mity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affeff ct the reported amounts of assets and liabia lities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabia lities as of the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could diffeff r
from those estimates under diffeff rent assumptions or conditions.
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Revenue Recogno itiott n

Revenue is recognized when control of promised goods or services is transferff red to a customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration expected to be received forff those goods or services.

Product SalSS es

Product sales include revenue derived froff m (1) the sale of doughnuts and complementary products to in-shop, digital, and DFD
customers and (2) the sale of doughnut mix, other ingredients and supplu ies, and doughnut-making equipment to fraff nchisees.
Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery frr orff in-shop sales, digital sales, and sales to fraff nchisees. For DFD sales, control
transferff s and revenue is recognized either at the time of delivery or, with respect to those customers that take title to products
purchased from the Company at the time those products are sold by the customer to the end consumers, simultaneously with
such consumer purchases. Revenues are recognized net of provisions for estimated product returt ns. Revenues froff m the sale of
doughnut mix, other ingredients, supplu ies, and doughnut-making equipment to fraff nchisees include any appla icable shipping and
handling costs invoiced to the customer, and the expense of such shipping and handling costs is included in Operating expenses.
The Company recorded shipping revenue of approximately $10.4 million, $13.3 million, and $11.2 million in the fisff cal years
ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively.

Franchiseii Revenue

Franchise revenue included in Royalties and other revenues is derived from development and initial fraff nchise fees relating to
new shop openings and ongoing royalties charged to franchisees based on their sales. The Company sells individual fraff nchises
domestically and internationally, as well as development agreements that grant the right to develop shops in designated areas.
Generally, the franchise license granted forff each individual shop within an arrangement represents a single performance
obligation. The fraff nchise agreements and development agreements typically require the fraff nchisee to pay initial nonrefundaff bla e
franchise fees (i.e., initial services such as training and assisting with shop set-up) prior to opening. The fraff nchisees also pay a
royalty on a monthly basis based uponu a percentage of fraff nchisee gross sales. Royalties are recognized in income as underlying
franchisee sales occur. The initial term of domestic fraff nchise agreements is typically 15 years. The Company recognizes the
initial nonrefundaff bla e feeff s over the term of the fraff nchise agreements on an outputtt method based on time elapsed, corresponding
with the customer’s right to use the franchise for the term of the agreement. A fraff nchisee may elect to renew the term of a
franchise agreement and, if approved, will typically pay a renewal fee uponu execution of the renewal term.

Franchiseii -related Adverdd tisiii ng Fund Revenue

Franchise-related advertising funff d revenue included in Royalties and other revenues is derived from domestic and international
franchise agreements that typically require the fraff nchisee to pay advertising feeff s on a continuous monthly basis based on a
percentage of franchisee net sales, which are recognized based on fees earned each period. Total advertising fundff revenue for
the fisff cal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023 is $4.5 million, $3.8 million, and $3.6
million, respectively.

Gifti Card Sales

The Company and its franchisees sell gift cards that are redeemable for products in the Company-owned or fraff nchise shops.
The Company manages the gift card program and collects all funds from the activation of gift cff ards and reimburses fraff nchisees
for the redemption of gift cff ards in their shops. Deferff red revenue for unredeemed gift cards is included in Accrued liabilities in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the gross amount of deferred revenue
recognized for unredeemed gift cards was $28.9 million and $29.6 million, respectively. Gift cards sold do not have an
expiration date or service fees charged. The likelihood of redemption may be determined to be remote for certain cards dued to
long periods of inactivity. In these circumstances, the Company recognizes revenue from unredeemed gift cff ards (“breakage
revenue”) within Product sales if they are not subju ect to unclaimed property laws. The Company estimates breakage forff the
portfolff io of gift cards and recognizes it based on the estimated pattern of gift card use. As of December 29, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, deferred revenue, net of breakage revenue recognized, was $9.7 million and $12.1 million, respectively.

Gift card costs incurred to fulff fill obligations under a contract are capitalized when such costs generate or enhance resources to
be used in satisfying futff urt e performance obligations and the costs are deemed recoverabla e. Judgment is used in determining
whether certain contract costs can be capitalized. These costs are capia talized and amortized on a systematic basis to match the
timing of revenue recognition, depending on when the gift cff ard is used. This amortization expense is recorded in Operating
expenses in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the
capitalized gift card costs were $2.0 million and $1.8 million, respectively.
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Consumer Loyao lty Program

Consumers can participate in spend-based loyalty programs. Consumers who join the loyalty programs will receive points forff
each purchase of eligible product. Afteff r accumulating a certain number of points, the consumers can redeem their points forff a
free product. The Company defers revenue based on an estimated selling price of the freff e product earned by the consumer and
establa ishes a corresponding liability in deferred revenue. As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the deferred
revenue related to loyalty programs is $3.6 million and $4.1 million, respectively.

Revenue-based Taxesaa

The Company reports revenue net of any revenue-based taxes assessed by governmental authorities that are imposed on and
concurrent with specific revenue-producing transactions. The primary rr evenue-based taxes are sales tax and value-added tax
(“VAT”).

Product and Distributiott n CosCC ts

Product and distribution costs include mainly raw material costs (principally sugar, flour, wheat, oil, and their derivatives) and
production costs (including labora ) related to doughnuts, other sweet treats, doughnut mix, packaging, and logistics costs related
to raw materials.

Operatintt g ExpeEE nses

Operating expenses consist of expenses primarily related to Company-owned shops including payroll and benefit costs for
service employees at Company-operated locations, rent and utilities, expenses associated with Company operations, costs
associated with procuring materials from vendors, and other shop-level operating costs.

Marketintt g ExpeEE nses

Costs associated with marketing the products, including advertising and other brand promotional activities, are expensed as
incurred, and were appra oximately $47.7 million, $45.9 million, and $42.6 million in the fisff cal years ended December 29, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively.

Pre-openingii Coststt

Pre-opening costs include labora , rent, utilities, and other expenses that are required as part of the set-up and use of a new shop,
prior to generating sales. Pre-opening costs also include costs to integrate acquired fraff nchises back into the Company-owned
model, which typically occur with the relevant shop closed over a one to three-day period subsequent to acquisition. Pre-
opening costs do not include expenses related to strategic planning (for example, new site lease negotiations), which are
recorded in SG&A.

Cash and CasCC h Equivalenll ts and Restricted CasCC h

Cash equivalents consist of demand deposits in banks and short-term, highly liquid debt instrumrr ents with original maturities of
three months or less.

All credit and debit card transactions that are processed in less than fivff e days are classified as Cash and cash equivalents. The
amounts dued from banks for these transactions totaled $6.7 million and $9.7 million as of December 29, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively.

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalent balances with financial institutions that exceed federally-insured limits. The
Company has not experienced any losses related to these balances, and believes credit risk to be minimal.

Restricted cash consists primarily of fundsff related to employee benefitff plans.
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Accounts Rtt eceivable,ll Net of Ao llowll ance for ExpeEE ctedtt Creditdd Losses

Accounts receivabla e relate primarily to payments due for sale of products, fraff nchise fees, royalties, advertising feeff s, and
licensing fees. The Company maintains allowances for expected credit losses related to its accounts receivabla e, including
receivabla es from fraff nchisees, in amounts which the Company believes are suffiff cient to provide for losses estimated to be
sustained on realization of these receivabla es. The measurement of expected credit losses is based on relevant information abouta
past events, including historical experience, current conditions, and reasonabla e and supporu tabla e forff ecasts that affeff ct the
collectibility of amounts froff m customers. Such estimates inherently involve uncertainties and assessments of the outcome of
future events, and changes in facff ts and circumstances may result in adjustments to the allowance forff expected credit losses. The
Company had allowance forff expected credit losses of $1.1 million and $0.6 million as of December 29, 2024 and December 31,
2023, respectively.

Concentration of Co reCC dit Risk

Financial instrumrr ents that subju ect the Company to credit risk consist principally of receivabla es from DFD customers and
franchisees. DFD receivabla es are primarily from grocery and convenience stores, QSR, club mu emberships, and drugrr stores. For
the fisff cal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, no customer accounted for more than 10%
of revenue or a significant amount of receivables that would result in a concentration.

Management also evaluates the recoverabia lity of receivabla es from the franchisees and maintains allowances for expected credit
losses. Management believes these allowances are suffiff cient to provide for realized losses that may be sustained on realization
of these receivables.

Inventories

Inventories, which consist of raw materials, work in progress, finished goods, and purchased merchandise, are recorded at the
lower of cost and net realizable value, where cost is determined using the first-in, firff st-out method. Raw materials inventoryrr
also includes doughnut equipment spare parts. Finished goods and purchased merchandise are net of reserves for excess or
obsolete finff ished goods. These reserves totaled $2.0 million as of both December 29, 2024, and December 31, 2023.

Taxeaa s Receivablell

Taxes receivable relate primarily to expected refunds of VAT as well as prepayments of income taxes to governmental
authorities.

Prepaid ExpeEE nse and Othett r CurCC rent Assets

Prepaid expense and other current assets consist primarily of prepaid assets related to service contracts and insurance premiums
of $27.3 million and $20.7 million as of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

Property att nd Equipmii ent, net

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, net of impairment. Depreciation of property and equipment is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets.

The lives used in computing depreciation are as follows:

Buildings ................................................................................................................................................................. 20 to 35 years
Machinery arr nd equipment....................................................................................................................................... 3 to 15 years
Computer software.................................................................................................................................................. 2 to 7 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life off f the asset or the lease term.

The Company assesses long-lived fixff ed asset groups for potential impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverabla e. If the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the sum of the
undiscounted cash floff ws, the Company records an impairment charge in an amount equal to the excess of the carrying value of
the assets over their estimated faiff r value.
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Impairment charges related to the Company’s long-lived fixff ed assets were $4.6 million, $18.1 million, and $8.4 million forff the
fiscal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively. Such charges related to
underperforming shops, shops closed or likely to be closed, and shops which management believes will not generate sufficient
future cash floff ws to enable the Company to recover the carrying value of the shops’ assets, but has not yet decided to close. The
impaired shop assets include real estate properties, the faiff r values of which may be estimated based on independent appraisals
or, in the case of any properties which the Company is negotiating to sell, based on its negotiations with unrelated third-party
buyers; leasehold improvements, which are typically abaa ndoned when the leased properties revert to the lessor; and doughnut-
making and other equipment the fair values of which may be estimated based on the replacement cost of the equipment, afteff r
considering refurff bir shment and transportation costs. The impairment charges are primarily attributable to the U.S. segment and
are included within Other (income)/expenses, net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Leases

Contracts entered into by the Company are evaluated to determine whether such contracts contain leases. A contract contains a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of identifieff d property, plant, and equipment forff a period of time in
exchange for consideration. At commencement, contracts containing a lease are further evaluated for classificff ation as an
operating or finff ance lease based on the principle of whether or not the lease is effeff ctively a financed purchase by the lessee.
This classification determines whether lease expense is recognized based on an effective interest method or on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

The lease term and incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) forff each lease requires judgment by management and can impact the
classification of leases as well as the value of the lease assets and liabia lities. When determining the lease term, management
considers option periods availabla e, and includes option periods in the measurement of the lease right of use asset and lease
liabia lity where the exercise is reasonabla y certain to occur. The Company uses the rate implicit in the lease whenever that rate is
readily determinable. If the rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Company uses its IBR.

Upon the adoption of ASC 842, Leases, the Company has elected to not separate the lease and non-lease components within the
contract. Therefore, all fixed payments associated with the lease are included in the right of use asset and the lease liabia lity.
These costs ofteff n relate to the payments for a proportionate share of real estate taxes, insurance, common area maintenance and
other operating costs in addition to a base rent. Any variable payments related to the lease are recorded as lease expense when
and as incurred. The Company has elected this practical expedient forff its real estate, vehicles and equipment leases. The
Company has also elected the short-term lease expedient. A short-term lease is a lease that, as of the commencement date, has a
lease term of 12 months or less and does not include an option to purchase the underlying asset that the lessee is reasonabla y
certain to exercise. For such leases, the Company will not apply the recognition requirements of ASC 842 and instead will
recognize the lease payments as lease cost on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the same manner as long-lived fixff ed assets, the Company assesses lease right of use assets for potential impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverabla e. If the carrying amount
of the right of use assets exceeds the sum of their undiscounted cash floff ws, the Company records an impairment charge in an
amount equal to the excess of the carrying value of the assets over their estimated faiff r value. If a lease contract is terminated
before the expiration of the lease term the remaining right of use asset and lease liabia lity are derecognized, with any diffeff rence
recognized as a gain or loss on lease termination. If the Company is required to make any payments or receives consideration
when terminating the lease, it would include such amounts in the determination of the gain or loss upon termination. For the
fiscal year ended December 29, 2024, the Company recognized a net gain on lease termination of $0.1 million, which is
included within Other (income)/expenses, net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. For the fisff cal years ended
December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023 the Company recorded lease impairment and termination costs of $6.6 million and
$8.2 million, respectively, which are included within Other (income)/expenses, net on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiaff bla e net assets acquired in a business
combination. For each reporting unit, the Company assesses goodwill for impairment annually at the beginning of the fourff th
quarter or more frequently when impairment indicators are present. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair
value, the Company recognizes an impairment charge forff the diffeff rence up tu o the carrying value of the allocated goodwill. The
value is estimated under a discounted cash flow approach, which incorporates assumptions regarding futff urt e growth rates,
terminal values and discount rates. For the fiscal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023,
there were no goodwill impairment charges.

Other intangible assets primarily represent the trade names forff the Company’s brands, fraff nchise agreements (domestic and
international), reacquired fraff nchise rights, and customer relationships. The trade names have been assigned an indefinite usefulff
life aff nd are reviewed annually forff impairment. All other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated usefulff lives. Definite-lived intangible assets are assessed forff impairment whenever triggering events or indicators of
potential impairment occur. The Company recognized no impairment charges to other intangible assets for the fiscal year ended
December 29, 2024. The Company recognized impairment charges to other intangible assets of $0.2 million and $0.8 million
for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2023 and January 1, 2023 respectively, related to fraff nchise agreement terminations.

Accrued Liabilitiii es

Accruerr d liabia lities include accrued compensation, accruerr d legal fees, accruerr d utilities, accruerr d marketing, and other accruerr d
liabia lities. As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, accrued compensation and benefits included in the Accruerr d
liabia lities balance was $30.3 million and $42.6 million, respectively.

Supplpp y Cll haCC in Finaii ncing ProPP gro ams

The Company has an agreement with a third-party administrator which allows participating vendors to track the Company’s
payments, and if voluntarily elected by the vendor, to sell payment obligations from the Company to finff ancial institutions (the
“supply chain financing program” or the “SCF program”). When participating vendors elect to sell one or more of the
Company’s payment obligations, the Company’s rights and obligations to settle the payables on their contractuat l dued date are
not impacted. The Company agrees on commercial terms with vendors forff the goods and services procured, which are
consistent with payment terms observed at other peer companies in the industry.rr The Company has historically prioritized
negotiating longer payment terms with some of its largest vendors, and certain of these vendors have also elected to participate
in the SCF program. Payment terms and pricing negotiations are independent of, aff nd not conditioned upon,u a vendor’s
participation in the SCF program. The financial institutions do not provide the Company with incentives such as rebates or
profitff sharing under the SCF program. As the terms are not impacted by the SCF program, such obligations are classified as
Accounts payable in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the associated cash floff ws are included in operating activities in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Refer to Note 7, Vendor Finance Programs, to the audited Consolidated Financial
Statements for more inforff mation.

Strutt ctured Payaa blesll Programs

The Company utilizes various card products issued by financial institutions to facilitate purchases of goods and services. By
using these products, the Company may receive diffeff ring levels of rebates based on timing of repayment. The payment
obligations under these card products are classified as Structurt ed payabla es in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the
associated cash floff ws are included in finff ancing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Refer to Note 7,
Vendor Finance Programs, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements forff more information.

Share-based Compensation

The Company measures and recognizes compensation expense forff share-based payment awards based on the fair value of each
award at its grant date and recognizes expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period forff the entire award,
including for those awards with a graded vesting scheduld e. The Company accounts forff forfeitures of share-based compensation
awards as they occur. Compensation expense is included in Selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
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Fair Value

The accounting standards forff fair value measurements define fair value as the price that would be received forff an asset or paid
to transferff a liabia lity in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liabia lity in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The accounting standards forff fair value measurements establish a three-level fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure faiff r value. This hierarchy requires entities to maximize the use of
observabla e inputs and minimize the use of unobservabla e inputs. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as
follows:

• Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets that are accessible as of the measurement date forff identical assets or
liabia lities.

• Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets
and liabia lities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabia lities in markets that are not
active; or other inputs that are observabla e or can be corroborated by observable market data.

• Level 3: Unobservabla e inputs that are supporu ted by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value
measurement of the assets or liabilities. These include certain pricing models, discounted cash floff w methodologies and
similar techniques that use significant unobservabla e inputs.

The Company’s finff ancial instruments not measured at fair value on a recurring basis include cash and cash equivalents,
receivabla es, accounts payable, and accruerr d liabia lities and are refleff cted in the audited Consolidated Financial Statements at cost
which appra oximates faiff r value for these items duedd to their short-term nature. Management believes the fair value determination
of these short-term financial instrumrr ents is a Level 1 measure. The Company’s other assets and liabia lities measured at fair value
on a non-recurring basis include long-lived assets, lease right of use assets, goodwill, and other indefinite-lived intangible
assets, if determined to be impaired. Referff to the Property and Equipment, net policy section in Note 1, Description of Business
and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements, for inforff mation abouta
impairment charges on long-lived assets. The fair values of assets evaluated forff impairment were determined using an income-
based appra oach and are classified as Level 3 measures within the faiff r value hierarchy.

Derivative FinFF anciali Instrutt mentstt

Management reflects derivative finff ancial instruments, which typically consist of interest rate derivatives, forff eign currency
derivatives, and fuel commodity derivatives in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their fair value. For interest rate derivatives,
changes in faiff r value are refleff cted in other comprehensive income as the Company applies cash floff w hedge accounting.
Consistent with the classification of interest paid, cash floff ws from interest rate derivatives are classifieff d as operating on the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. The changes in the fair values of the forff eign currency and fuel commodity derivatives
are refleff cted in income as the Company does not apply hedge accounting to those derivatives.

Self-Iff nsII urance Riskii s akk nd Receivablesll from Insurers

The Company is subju ect to workers’ compensation, vehicle, and general liabia lity claims. The Company is self-insured for the
cost of workers’ compensation, vehicle, and general liabia lity claims up to the amount of stop-loss insurance coverage purchased
by the Company from commercial insurance carriers. The Company maintains accruarr ls for the estimated cost of claims, without
regard to the effects of stop-loss coverage, using actuarial methods which evaluate known open and incurred but not reported
claims and consider historical loss development experience. As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company
had appra oximately $34.8 million and $21.0 million, respectively, reserved forff such programs. The liabia lity recorded for
assessments has not been discounted. In addition, the Company records receivabla es from the insurance carriers forff claims
amounts estimated to be recovered under the stop-loss insurance policies when these amounts are estimabla e and probabla e of
collection. The Company estimates such stop-loss receivables using the same actuatt rial methods used to establa ish the related
claims accruals and considering the amount of risk transferff red to the carriers under the stop-loss policies. The stop-loss policies
provide coverage for claims in excess of retained self-insurance risks, which are determined on a claim-by-claim basis.
Inclusive of the receivabla es from the stop-loss insurance policies, the Company’s limited liabia lity balance was $18.7 million and
$10.8 million as of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. The gross liabia lity balances for the current and
noncurrent portions of these claims are classified as Accruerr d liabia lities and Other long-term obligations and deferff red credits,
respectively, in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The current and noncurrent portions of the stop-loss receivables are classified
as Prepaid expense and other current assets and Other assets, respectively, in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Preferff red StoSS ck

The Company has 50.0 million shares of authorized preferff red stock with $0.01 par value per share. There were no shares of
preferff red stock issued nor outstanding as of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

Earnings/(ss Lo(( ss) per ShaSS re (EPSEE )S

The Company discloses two calculations of earnings/(loss) per share (“EPS”): basic EPS and diluted EPS. The numerator in
calculating common stock basic and diluted EPS is net income/(loss) attributable to the Company. The denominator in
calculating common stock basic EPS is the weighted average shares outstanding. The denominator in calculating common stock
diluted EPS includes the additional dilutive effect of unvested RSUs, PSUs, and time-vested stock options when the effect is
not antidilutive. Refer to Note 18, Net Earnings/(Loss) per Share, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements forff more
information.

Reclasll sifii cations

Segment inforff mation is prepared on the same basis on which the Company’s management reviews financial inforff mation forff
operational decision-making purposrr es. Effective January 1, 2024, the Company realigned its segment reporting strucrr ture such
that the Company-owned Canada and Japaa n businesses have moved froff m the Market Development reportabla e operating
segment to the International reportabla e operating segment. All segment information forff comparative periods has been restated to
be consistent with current presentation.

In the Consolidated Balance Sheets, Investments in unconsolidated entities in the comparative period have been reclassified
(formerly presented within Other assets) to be consistent with current presentation. This reclassification does not have a
significant impact on the reported finff ancial position and does not impact the results of operations or cash flows.

Exiting thett Branded Sweet Treats Busineii ss

During the fisff cal year ended December 31, 2023, the Company decided to exit its pre-packaged Branded Sweet Treats business
due in part to its dilutive impact on profitff margins, as well as to allow the Company to focff us on its fresh doughnuts business. As
such, the Company recognized non-recurring expenses, including property, plant and equipment impairments, inventory wr rite-
offsff , employee severance, and other related costs, totaling approximately $17.9 million (gross of income taxes) in fisff cal 2023.
Of these expenses, $10.1 million were recorded within Product and distribution costs, primarily relating to inventory wrr rite-offs,
and the rest were recorded within Other (income)/expenses, net on the on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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Busineii ss Relationship Aii greement with McDocc nald’s

On March 22, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), the Company entered into a Business Relationship Agreement (the “Agreement”)
with McDonald’s USA, LLC (“McDonald’s”). The Agreement provides, among other things, that the parties will work together
to develop a deployment scheduld e forff a U.S. national rollout of the sale of KriKK spy KreKK me doughnuts at McDonald’s restaurants
to be implemented by McDonald’s. The deployment scheduldd e will set forth the anticipated launch period forff each McDonald’s
business unit (“BU”) in the U.S. McDonald’s agreed to introduce and make availabla e certain Krispy Kreme products to
McDonald’s restaurants in the U.S. for one year post-conclusion of such rollout. The Agreement does not guarantee Krispy
Kreme any particular level of BU deployment, sales, or profitff s. From the Effective Date through December 31, 2026 (unless the
Agreement is earlier terminated), the Company agreed not to (i) supply any doughnuts to any other QSR in the U.S. for sale or
distribution by such QSR, (ii) assist any other person or entity to do the forff egoing or any QSR to make or have made
doughnuts, or (iii) license or authorize any other QSR in the U.S. to use any KriK spy KreK me brand on or in connection with the
sale of doughnuts. McDonald’s agreed to not sell within the U.S. any third-party branded, fresh doughnuts or McDonald’s
branded, white-labeled or unbranded doughnuts (subju ect to certain carve-outs). The Agreement does not grant McDonald’s any
exclusivity outside of the U.S. The initial term of the Agreement begins on the Effeff ctive Date and ends one year following the
last BU rollout and automatically renews for consecutive one-year periods (unless the Agreement is earlier terminated). Either
party may terminate forff cause under certain circumstances durd ing the initial term or any renewal term and upon six months’
prior notice durdd ing any renewal term.

Recent Accountintt g ProPP nouncements

Recently Adopted

Accounting StaS ndards Adoptdd ed at the Beginning of Fiscii al Year 2024g p g g f

In November 2023, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2023-07, Segme ent Reporting (TopiTT c 280):
Imprm ovements to Repore table SegSS megg nt Discii losures, which required a public entity to disclose significant segment expenses and
other segment items on an annual and interim basis and provide in interim periods all disclosures about a reportabla e segment’s
profitff or loss and assets that are currently required annually. Additionally, it required a public entity to disclose the title and
position of the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). The ASU did not change how a public entity identifies its
operating segments, aggregates them, or appla ies the quantitative thresholds to determine its reportabla e segments. The ASU was
effeff ctive forff fiscal years beginning afteff r December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning afteff r December
15, 2024. As such, the Company adopted this ASU in the fiscal year ended December 29, 2024 and has disclosed the required
information in Note 19, Segment Reporting. The adoption of this ASU did not impact the finff ancial statements presented herein.

Accounting StaS ndards Adoptdd ed at the Beginning of Fiscii al Year 2023g p g g f

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04, Refee rence Rate Reforff m (To(( pio c 848): FacFF ilitation of to hett Effeff cts ott f Ro eferff ence
Rate Refoe rm on Financial Reporting, which provided companies with optional guidance to ease the potential accounting burden
associated with transitioning away from referff ence rates that are expected to be discontinued. It was effective forff all entities as of
March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022. In December 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-06, Refee rence Rate Reforff m
(TopiTT c 848): Deferff ral of to het Sunset Date of Topio c 848, which provided optional guidance to ease the potential burden in
accounting forff (or recognizing the effects of) reference rate reforff m by delaying the effeff ctive date of the guidance issued in ASU
2020-04 to December 31, 2024. During the fisff cal year ended December 31, 2023 the Company refinanced its debt with interest
to be calculated prospectively with reference to SOFR, and accordingly adopted this ASU, which did not materially impact the
financial statements presented herein.

In September 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-04, Liabilities — SupSS plpp ier FinFF ance Programs (Subt(( opic 405-50): Disclosure ofo
Supplier FinFF ance Program Obligati ions, which required certain disclosures be made by a buyer in a supplu ier finff ance program,
including the key terms of the program and, for the obligations that the buyer has confirff med as valid to the finff ance provider, the
amount outstanding that remains unpaid by the buyer as of the end of the fiscal period, a description of where those obligations
are presented in the balance sheet, and a rollforff ward of those obligations during the fiscal period. It was effective forff all entities
for fisff cal years beginning afteff r December 15, 2022, including interim periods within those fisff cal years, except for the
amendment on rollforff ward information, which was effeff ctive forff fiscal years beginning afteff r December 15, 2023. The Company
adopted this ASU in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 and disclosed the required inforff mation in Note 7, Vendor Finance
Programs.

74



Accounting StaS ndards Adoptdd ed at the Beginning of Fiscii al Year 2022g p g g f

In November 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-10, Government Assistii ance (To(( pio c 832): Disclosures by Business Entities
about Government Assistii ance, which required certain disclosures to be made when an entity receives government assistance,
including the types of assistance, an entity’s accounting forff the assistance, and the effeff ct of the assistance on an entity’s
finff ancial statements. It was effeff ctive forff all entities forff financial statements issued forff annual periods beginning afteff r December
15, 2021. The adoption of this ASU did not materially impact the financial statements presented herein.

In October 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-08, Business Combinations (TopiTT c 805): Accounting forff Contrat ct Assets and
Contratt ct Liabilities froff m ContCC rat cts wtt ith Customersrr , which prescribed the measurement of acquired contract assets and contract
liabilities arising from revenue contracts with customers recognized in a business combination. It was effective forff public
business entities (“PBE”) for fisff cal years beginning afteff r December 15, 2022, including interim periods within those fisff cal
years. The amendments in this ASU were appla ied prospectively to business combinations occurring on or afteff r the effeff ctive
date of the amendments. The adoption of this ASU did not materially impact the financial statements presented herein.

Not Yet Adopted

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxeaa s (To(( pio c 740): ImpII rovements to Income Tax Daa isclosures,
which focff uses on the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid disclosures. The ASU requires a PBE to disclose, on an annual
basis, a tabular rate reconciliation using both percentages and currency amounts, broken out into specified categories with
certain reconciling items further disaggregated by nature and jurisdiction to the extent those items exceed a specified threshold.
In addition, all entities are required to disclose income taxes paid, net of refunds received disaggregated by federal, state, and
foreign and by individual jurisdiction if the amount is at least 5% of total income tax payments, net of refundsff received. For
PBEs, the ASU is effective forff annual periods beginning afteff r December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. An entity
should appla y the amendments in this ASU prospectively, with retrospective appla ication permitted. The Company expects this
ASU to impact its income tax disclosures, but with no impacts to its results of operations, cash floff ws, and financial condition.

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, Income Statement (Subt(( opic 220-40): Disaggregation of Io ncII ome StaS tement
Expex nses, which requires a PBE to disclose in the notes to the finff ancial statements, at each interim and annual reporting period,
specified information abouta certain costs and expenses including (a) purchases of inventory,rr (b) employee compensation, (c)
depreciation, (d) intangible asset amortization, and (e) depreciation, depletion, and amortization recognized as part of oil and
gas-producing activities, forff each income statement line item that contains those expenses. For PBE’s, the ASU is effeff ctive forff
fiscal years beginning afteff r December 15, 2026, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning afteff r December 15, 2027. An
entity may appla y the amendments in this ASU prospectively or retrospectively. The Company expects this ASU to impact its
expense disclosures, but with no impacts to its results of operations, cash floff ws, and financial condition.

There are other new accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB that the Company has adopted or will adopt, as
applicable, and the Company does not believe any of these accounting pronouncements have had, or will have, a material
impact on its audited Consolidated Financial Statements or disclosures.
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Note 2 — Acquisitions and Divestitures

The Company strategically acquires companies in order to increase its footprt int. These acquisitions are accounted for as
business combinations using the acquisition method, whereby the purchase price is allocated to the assets acquired and
liabia lities assumed, based on their estimated faiff r values as of the date of the acquisition.

Transaction-related expenses as a result of these acquisitions, which exclude costs incurred to integrate the acquired entities,
were recorded within Operating income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations (primarily Selling, general and
administrative expenses) durd ing the fiscal year such costs were incurred.

Goodwill recognized for these acquisitions represents the intangible assets that do not qualify fff orff separate recognition and
primarily includes the acquired customer base, the acquired workforff ce including shop partners in the region that have strong
relationships with these customers, and the existing geographic shop and digital presence.

2024 Acquisitions and Divestituii res

Acquisiii tion of Ko riKK spii y Kpp reKK me U.S. and Canada Shopso

In the third and fourff th quarters of fisff cal 2024, the Company acquired the business and operating assets of three franchisees,
consisting of ten KriK spy KreKK me shops in the U.S. and one Krispy Kreme shop in Canada. Prior to one of the acquisitions, the
Company was a minority investor in the shops via its equity method investments in KreK meWorks USA, LLC and KreK meWorks
Canada, L.P. The Company paid cumulative consideration of $37.7 million, consisting of $31.9 million of cash (exclusive of
$6.7 million proceeds forff the Company’s equity method investments), $2.8 million of consideration payable to the sellers, and
$3.0 million settlement of amounts related to pre-existing relationships, to acquire subsu tantially all of the shops’ assets.
Consideration payabla e of $2.8 million was withheld primarily to cover indemnificff ation claims that could arise afteff r closing. The
settlement of pre-existing relationships included in the purchase consideration includes the settlement of accounts and notes
receivabla e, net of deferff red revenue, of $0.7 million. It also includes the disposal of the fraff nchise intangible asset related to the
franchisees with a cumulative net book value of $2.3 million at the respective acquisition dates. The Company accounted for the
transactions as business combinations.

Immediately prior to one of the acquisitions, the Company recognized a gain of $5.6 million related to remeasurement of its
equity method investments to a cumulative fair value of $6.7 million. The gain is recorded within Other (income)/expenses, net
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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The folff lowing tabla e summarizes the preliminary fr aiff r values of assets acquired and liabia lities assumed as of the date of
acquisition forff the acquisitions above.

KK U.S. Shops
KK Canada
Shop

Total Purchase
Price Allocation
for Acquisitions

Assets acquired:q
Cash and cash equivalents................................................................................ $ 8 $ 1 $ 9
Prepaid expense and other current assets ......................................................... 379 63 442
Property and equipment, net............................................................................. 13,649 971 14,620
Other intangible assets, net............................................................................... 12,928 6,871 19,799
Operating lease right of use asset, net .............................................................. 10,308 322 10,630
Deferred income taxes, net............................................................................... — 23 23

Total identifieff d assets acquired ........................................................... 37,272 ,251 45,523
Liabilities assumed:
Accruerr d liabia lities............................................................................................. (124) — (124)
Current operating lease liabia lities..................................................................... (1,153) (61) (1,214)
Noncurrent operating lease liabia lities............................................................... (9,155) (261) (9,416)
Deferred income taxes, net............................................................................... (514) — (514)

Total liabilities assumed....................................................................... 10,946 322 11,26
Goodwill........................................................................................................... 6,512 3,625 10,137

Net assets acquired ............................................................................... 32, 3 11,554 44,392
Less: Fair value of forff mer equity method investments ................................... (4,254) (2,460) (6,714)

Purchase consideration, net ................................................................. 2 ,5 4 9,094 37,67
Transaction costs in 2024 ................................................................................ $ 1,933 $ 589 $ 2,522
Transaction costs in 2023 ................................................................................ 102 — 102
Reportabla e segment .......................................................................................... U.S. International

Other intangible assets, net consist of reacquired fraff nchise rights with an estimated useful life eff qual to the weighted average
remaining fraff nchise agreement term, which was ten years for these acquired shops. The results of operations of the
aforff ementioned acquired shops were consolidated by the Company from the respective dates of acquisition and include $18.4
million of total revenue and $2.4 million of net income attributable to the Company for fisff cal year 2024. The amounts do not
reflect adjud stments forff franchise royalties and related expenses that the Company could have generated as revenue and expenses
from the acquired fraff nchisees during the fiscal year had the transaction not been completed.

The results of the acquired fraff nchise businesses were reported within the Market Development segment prior to the respective
dates of acquisition and are reported within the segments noted above following the respective dates of acquisition. During the
measurement period, the Company will continue to obtain information to assist in determining the faiff r value of net assets
acquired, which may differ materially from these preliminary er stimates. Measurement period adjustments, if appa licable, will be
applied in the reporting period in which the adjud stment amounts are determined.

Equity Method Investments in KK Brazil and KK Spain

In the second quarter of fiscal 2024, the Company acquired a 45% noncontrolling ownership interest in the newly formed entity
Krispy Kreme Doughnuts Brasil S.A. (“KK Brazil”), for appra oximately $2.7 million in cash, and a 25% noncontrolling
ownership interest in the newly forff med entity Glaseadas Originales S.L. (“KK Spain”), for appra oximately $0.8 million in cash.
As the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence over both KK Brazil and KK Spain, but does not have the
ability to exercise control, the investments are accounted for using the equity method, and equity method earnings are
recognized within Other (income)/expenses, net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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Acquisiii tion of Ao dditional Units itt n ConsCC olidatdd ed Subsidiary Awesome Doughnut

In the third quarter of fisff cal 2024, the Company purchased all units held by the noncontrolling interest holders in the
consolidated subsu idiary Awesome Doughnut, LLC (“Awesome Doughnut”) for $32.9 million in cash. The purchase increased
the Company’s ownership interest in Awesome Doughnut from 70% to 100%. The Company finff anced the purchase via an
existing structurt ed payabla es program whereby the structurtt ed payabla e maturt ed and was paid in the firff st quarter of fiscal 2025.

Divestiture of Io nsII omnia CookCC ies

In the third quarter of fisff cal 2024, the Company entered into an agreement to sell a portion of its shares of Insomnia Cookies
Holdings, LLC (“Insomnia Cookies”) for cash proceeds of $127.4 million. On August 1, 2024, the Company received
additional cash of $45.0 million froff m Insomnia Cookies related to the settlement of an intercompany loan. The transaction
resulted in the Company’s ownership of Insomnia Cookies declining froff m 75.0% to 34.7% with a loss of control. Accordingly,
the Company deconsolidated Insomnia Cookies from the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and recorded a gain on
divestiture of $90.5 million (gross of income taxes) which is included within Gain on divestiture of Insomnia Cookies in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The gain was calculated as folff lows:

July 17, 2024

Cash proceeds ......................................................................................................................................................... $ 127,350
Fair value of retained noncontrolling interest in Insomnia Cookies....................................................................... 85,086
Carrying value of former noncontrolling interest in Insomnia Cookies ................................................................. 30,427
Less: Carrying value of net assets of Insomnia Cookies, including cash and cash equivalents ............................. (152,408)

Gain on divestiture of Insomnia Cookies .................................................................................................. 90,455

As the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence over Insomnia Cookies, but does not have the abia lity to
exercise control, the investment is accounted for using the equity method. The faiff r value of the equity method investment of
$85.1 million was estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation in a risk-neutral fraff mework to model the likelihood of the
Company’s potential futff urtt e sale of its noncontrolling interest in Insomnia Cookies. The valuation methodology includes
assumptions and judgments regarding probabia lity weighting, discount rates, operating results of Insomnia Cookies, and
expected timing of a futff urt e exit by the investors. Equity method earnings are recognized within Other non-operating expense,
net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

2023 Acquisitions

In the fisff cal year ended December 31, 2023, there were no acquisitions accounted for as business combinations.

Equity Method Investment in KK FKK raFF nce

In the fourff th quarter of fiscal 2023, the Company invested approximately $1.4 million in cash to maintain a 33% noncontrolling
ownership interest in KriK spy KreK me Doughnuts France SAS (“KK France”). As the Company has the abia lity to exercise
significant influff ence over KK France, but it does not exercise control, the investment is accounted for using the equity method,
and equity method earnings are recognized within Other (income)/expenses, net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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2022 Acquisitions

Acquisiii tion of Ko riKK spii y Kpp reKK me U.S. Shops

In the third quarter of fiscal 2022, the Company acquired the business and operating assets of one franchisee, consisting of
seven KriK spy KreKK me shops in the U.S. The Company paid total consideration of $19.4 million, consisting of $17.3 million of
cash at the acquisition date, $1.2 million of consideration payable to the sellers within 12 months of the acquisition date, and
$0.9 million settlement of amounts related to pre-existing relationships, to acquire subsu tantially all of the shops’ assets. The
settlement of pre-existing relationships included in the purchase consideration includes the settlement of accounts and notes
receivabla e, net of deferff red revenue, of $0.3 million. It also includes the disposal of the fraff nchise intangible asset related to the
franchisee with a cumulative net book value of $0.6 million at the acquisition date. The Company accounted forff the transaction
as a business combination.

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes the faiff r values of assets acquired and liabia lities assumed as of the date of acquisition forff the
acquisition abovea .

U.S. Shops

Assets acquired:q
Cash and cash equivalents................................................................................................................................... $ 7
Prepaid expense and other current assets............................................................................................................ 138
Property and equipment, net ............................................................................................................................... 1,542
Other intangible assets, net ................................................................................................................................. 11,203
Operating lease right of use asset, net................................................................................................................. 4,702
Deferred income taxes, net.................................................................................................................................. 2,678
Other assets ......................................................................................................................................................... 11

Total identifieff d assets acquired.............................................................................................................. 20,2 1
Liabilities assumed:
Accruerr d liabia lities ............................................................................................................................................... (106)
Current operating lease liabia lities ....................................................................................................................... 21)
Noncurrent operating lease liabia lities ................................................................................................................. (4,481)

Total liabilities assumed.......................................................................................................................... 4, 0
Goodwill ............................................................................................................................................................. 3,975

Purchase consideration, net.................................................................................................................... 19,44
Transaction costs in 2022 ................................................................................................................................... $ 840
Transaction costs in 2021 ................................................................................................................................... 6
Reportabla e segment............................................................................................................................................. S.

Other intangible assets, net consist of reacquired fraff nchise rights with an estimated useful life eff qual to the weighted average
remaining fraff nchise agreement term, which was ten years for these acquired shops. The results of operations of the
aforff ementioned acquired shops were consolidated by the Company from the date of acquisition and include $3.7 million of total
revenue and $0.3 million of net income attributable to the Company for fisff cal year 2022. The amounts do not reflect
adjud stments forff franchise royalties and related expenses that the Company could have generated as revenue and expenses from
the acquired fraff nchisees during the fiscal year had the transaction not been completed.

Equity Method Investment in KK FKK raFF nce

In the third quarter of fisff cal 2022, the Company acquired a 33% noncontrolling ownership interest in the newly formed entity
KK France, for appra oximately $1.0 million in cash.
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Supplpp emll ental UnaUU uditdd edtt Pro ForFF marr Infon rmatiott n

The folff lowing unaudited pro forma inforff mation presents estimated combined results of the Company as if the 2024 acquisitions
had occurred on January 2, 2023, and the 2022 acquisitions had occurred on January 4, 2021:

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023
January 1,
2023

Revenue.......................................................................................... $ 1,665,397 $ 1,686,104 $ 1,529,898
Income/(loss) before income taxes................................................................... 19,769 (40,994) (8,163)

The acquisitions of the aforementioned KriK spy KreK me U.S. and Canada shops are not material to the Company’s finff ancial
statements, and thereforff e, the supplemental pro forma finff ancial information related to these acquisitions is not included herein.
These supplemental pro forff ma results are unaudited and are not necessarily indicative of results of operations that would have
occurred had the acquisitions actually closed in the prior period. The pro forma results are also not indicative of results of
operations for any future period.

Note 3 — Accounts Receivable, net

The components of Accounts receivable, net are as folff lows:

December 29,
2024

December 31,
2023

Trade receivabla es, net .................................................................................................................. $ 57,439 $ 45,858
Other receivables, net .................................................................................................................. 8,406 12,478
Receivabla es from related parties, net........................................................................................... 1,877 1,026
Total accounts receivable, net.............................................................................................. 67,722 59,362

Receivabla es from related parties, net includes receivabla es from equity method investees. Referff to Note 16, Related Party
Transactions, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements forff more information.

Note 4 — Inventories

The components of Inventories are as follows:

December 29,
2024

December 31,
2023

Raw materials .............................................................................................................................. $ 20,698 $ 21,000
Work in progress ......................................................................................................................... 328 211
Finished goods and purchased merchandise (1) ............................................................................ 7,107 13,505
Total inventories ................................................................................................................... 2 ,133 34,716

(1) During the fisff cal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, the Company recognized
inventory wr rite-offs of $2.8 million, $11.2 million, and $0.9 million, respectively. The inventory wr rite-offs in the fisff cal
year ended December 31, 2023 primarily related to the decision to exit the Branded Sweet Treats business.
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Note 5 — Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment, net consist of the following:

December 29,
2024

December 31,
2023

Land............................................................................................................................................. $ 11,096 $ 12,115
Buildings...................................................................................................................................... 163,116 158,672
Leasehold improvements............................................................................................................. 243,358 285,012
Machinery arr nd equipment ........................................................................................................... 409,876 355,044
Computer software ...................................................................................................................... 95,086 90,019
Construcrr tion and projects in progress ......................................................................................... 34,215 42,816
Property and equipment, gross ................................................................................................ 747 943,67
Less: Accumulated depreciation.................................................................................................. (445,608) (405,458)
Total property and equipment, net 1 .................................................................................. 511,139 53 ,220

(1) Property and equipment, net was impacted by a reducd tion of $92.6 million in the fisff cal year ended December 29, 2024
related to the divestiture of Insomnia Cookies.

Computer software includes $16.0 million and $10.4 million of costs to develop, code, test, and license software under hosting
arrangements as of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. Software under hosting arrangements consists
primarily of solutions that empower the Company’s consumer-facing website and mobile application. Total depreciation
expense was $90.0 million, $88.9 million, and $76.8 million in the fiscal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023,
and January 1, 2023, respectively.

Note 6 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

odwill

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reportabla e segment are as folff lows:

U.S. International
Market

Development Total

Balance as of January 1, 2023............................................ 67 ,06 2 0,325 129,515 1,0 7,90
Measurement period adjustments related to fisff cal year

2022 acquisitions .................................................... (112) — — (112)
Foreign currency impact ................................................ — 14,143 — 14,143

Balance as of December 31, 2023....................................... 677,956 294,46 129,515 1,101,939
Acquisitions ................................................................... 23,603 4,270 (17,736) 10,137
Divestiture of Insomnia Cookies ................................... (54,803) — — (54,803)
Foreign currency impact ................................................ — (15,720) — (15,720)
Adjud stments related to deferred taxes............................ 6,028 — — 6,028

Balance as of December 29, 2024....................................... 652,7 4 2 3,01 111,779 1,047,5 1

Acquisitions of franchises result in a reclassification of goodwill between segments.
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Othett r IntII antt gibli e All ssets

Other intangible assets consist of the following:

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amorti ation

Net
Amount

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amorti ation

Net
Amount

Intangible assets with indefinite lives
Trade names and trademarks (1).................. $ 553,400 $ — $ 553,400 $ 657,980 $ — $ 657,980
Intangible assets with definite lives
Franchise agreements ................................ 27,154 (11,050) 16,104 30,390 (10,744) 19,646
Customer relationships .............................. 15,000 (7,277) 7,723 15,000 (6,413) 8,587
Reacquired fraff nchise rights (2).................... 402,894 (160,187) 242,707 397,279 (137,143) 260,136
Total intangible assets with definite
lives ........................................................... 445,04 17 ,514 266,534 442,669 154,300 2 ,369
Total intangible assets ............................. 99 ,44 17 ,514 19,934 1,100,649 154,300 946,349

December 29, 2024 December 31, 2023

(1) Trade names and trademarks were impacted by a reducdd tion of $104.6 million in the fisff cal year ended December 29, 2024
related to the divestiture of Insomnia Cookies.

(2) Reacquired fraff nchise rights include the impact of forff eign currency fluff ctuat tions associated with the respective countries.

Amortization expense related to intangible assets included in Depreciation and amortization expense was $30.3 million, $29.4
million, and $28.5 million for the fiscal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023,
respectively.

Estimated futff urtt e amortization expense as of December 29, 2024 is as folff lows:

Fiscal year
Estimated

amorti ation expense

2025 $ 30,863
2026 30,466
2027 30,443
2028 30,630
2029 29,783
Thereafteff r 114,349

Total .......................................................................................................................................................... 266,534

The aforementioned estimates do not reflect the impact of futff urtt e forff eign exchange rate changes.
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Note 7 — endor Finance Programs

The folff lowing tabla e presents liabia lities related to vendor finance programs which the Company participates in as a buyer as of
December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

December 29, 2024 December 31, 2023 Balance Sheet Location

Supplu y chain financing programs ................ $ 6,912 $ 51,239 Accounts payable
Structurt ed payabla es programs...................... 135,668 130,104 Strucrr tured payables
Total Liabilities .......................................... 142,5 0 1 1,343

Changes in the vendor finance program balances are as folff lows:

Supply Chain Financing
Programs

Structured Payables
Programs

Balance as of January 1, 2023 .............................................................................. 159,426 103,575
Proceeds received............................................................................................. 189,615 241,148
Payments made ................................................................................................ (298,941) (214,574)
Foreign currency impact .................................................................................. 1,139 (45)

Balance as of December 31, 2023 ......................................................................... 51,239 130,104
Proceeds received............................................................................................. 41,765 376,189
Payments made ................................................................................................ 2,804) (345,327)
Divestiture of Insomnia Cookies...................................................................... (23,186) (25,109)
Foreign currency impact .................................................................................. (102) (189)

Balance as of December 29, 2024 ......................................................................... 6,912 135,66

Supplpp y Cll haCC in Finaii ncing ProPP gro ams

The Company has an agreement with a third-party administrator which allows participating vendors to track the Company’s
payments, and if voluntarily elected by the vendor, to sell payment obligations from the Company to finff ancial institutt ions as
part of the SCF program. When participating vendors elect to sell one or more of the Company’s payment obligations, the
Company’s rights and obligations to settle the payables on their contractuat l dued date are not impacted. The Company agrees on
commercial terms with vendors forff the goods and services procured, which are consistent with payment terms observed at other
peer companies in the industry.rr The Company has historically prioritized negotiating longer payment terms with some of its
largest vendors, and certain of these vendors have also elected to participate in the SCF program. Payment terms and pricing
negotiations are independent of, aff nd not conditioned upon,u a vendor’s participation in the SCF program. The financial
institutions do not provide the Company with incentives such as rebates or profit sharing under the SCF program. As the terms
are not impacted by the SCF program, such obligations are classifieff d as Accounts payabla e in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
and the associated cash flows are included in operating activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Strutt ctured Payaa blesll Programs

The Company utilizes various card products issued by financial institutions to facilitate purchases of goods and services. By
using these products, the Company may receive differing levels of rebates based on timing of repayment. The payment
obligations under these card products are classified as Structurt ed payabla es in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the
associated cash floff ws are included in finff ancing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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Note — Long-Term Debt

The Company’s long-term debt obligations consists of the folff lowing:

December 29,
2024

December 31,
2023

2023 Facility — term loan........................................................................................................... $ 647,500 $ 682,500
2023 Facility — revolving credit facility .................................................................................... 172,000 155,000
Short-term lines of credit ............................................................................................................. 5,000 11,000
Less: Debt issuance costs ............................................................................................................ (3,322) (4,371)
Financing obligations .................................................................................................................. 79,725 47,117
Total long-term debt.................................................................................................................. 900,903 91,246
Less: Current portion of long-term debt ...................................................................................... (56,356) (54,631)
Long-term debt, less current portion....................................................................................... 44,547 36,615

2023 Secured CreCC dit Fii acFF ility

The Company is party to a credit agreement (the “2023 Facility”) consisting of a $300.0 million senior secured revolving credit
facility and a term loan with an original principal amount of $700.0 million. The 2023 Facility is secured by a first priority lien
on subsu tantially all of the Company’s personal property assets, certain real estate properties, and all of the Company’s domestic
wholly owned subsidiaries. Loans made pursuant to the 2023 Facility may be used forff general corporrr ate purposrr es of the
Company (including, but not limited to, financing working capia tal needs, capital expenditures, acquisitions, other investments,
dividends, and stock repurchases) and for any other purposrr e not prohibited under the related loan documents.

In the fisff cal year ended December 31, 2023 the Company capia talized $7.5 million of debt issuance costs related to the 2023
Facility, $5.3 million of which was related to the term loan and $2.2 million related to the revolving credit facility. Additionally,
the Company recognized $0.5 million expenses during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 related to unamortized debt
issuance costs froff m the 2019 Facility associated with extinguished lenders, which are included in Interest expense, net in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Afteff r consideration of outstanding borrowings and letters of credit secured by the 2023 Facility, the Company had
$128.0 million and $145.0 million of available borrowing capaa city under the revolving credit facility as of December 29, 2024
and December 31, 2023, respectively.

The 2023 Facility provides forff quarterly scheduled principal payments on the term loan and repayment of all outstanding
balances on the term loan and revolving credit facility at maturity, March 23, 2028. Further, the Company may be required to
prepay additional amounts annually uponu the occurrence of a prepayment event as definff ed in the 2023 Facility. Because the
amounts of any such future repayments are not currently determinable, they are excluded froff m the long-term debt maturities
schedule below.

Borrowings under the 2023 Facility are generally subju ect to an interest rate of adjusted term SOFR plus a credit spread
adjud stment of 0.10% plus (i) 2.25% if the Company’s leverage ratio (as definff ed in the 2023 Facility) equals or exceeds 4.00 to
1.00, (ii) 2.00% if the Company’s leverage ratio is less than 4.00 to 1.00 but greater than or equal to 3.00 to 1.00, or (iii) 1.75%
if the Company’s leverage ratio is less than 3.00 to 1.00. As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the unhedged
interest rate was 6.48% and 7.46% under the 2023 Facility, respectively. As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
$500.0 million out of the $647.5 million term loan balance and $505.0 million out of the $682.5 million term loan balance,
respectively, was hedged, with the interest rate swap aa greements scheduld ed to mature in March 2028. As of December 29, 2024
and December 31, 2023, the effective interest rates on the term loan were appra oximately 6.20% and 6.80%, respectively. The
Company is required to make equal installments of 1.25% of the aggregate closing date principal amount of the term loan on
the last day of each fiscal quarter. All remaining term loan and revolving loan balances are to be dued at maturity in March 2028.
Refer to Note 11, Derivative Instrumrr ents, forff further discussion of the interest rate swap aa rrangements.
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The 2023 Facility allows the Company to obtain letters of credit by applying those amounts against the usage of the senior
secured revolving credit facility. If obtained, the Company would be required to pay a feeff equal to the Applicable Rate for
SOFR-based loans on the outstanding amount of letters of credit plus a fronting feeff to the issuing bank. Commitment feesff on
the unused portion of the senior secured revolving credit facility range from 0.25% to 0.375%, based on the Company’s
leverage ratio. As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the feeff on the unused portion of the senior secured revolving
credit facility was 0.25%, included in Interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Restritt ctions and Covenantstt

The 2023 Facility requires the Company to meet a maximum leverage ratio financial test. The leverage ratio is required to be
less than 5.00 to 1.00 as of the end of each quarterly Test Period (as definff ed in the 2023 Facility) through maturity in March
2028. The leverage ratio under the 2023 Facility is definff ed as the ratio of (a) Total Indebtedness (as definff ed in the 2023
Facility, which includes all debt and finance lease obligations) minus unrestricted cash and cash equivalents to (b) a definff ed
calculation of Adjud sted EBITDA (“2023 Facility Adjud sted EBITDA”) forff the most recently ended Test Period. The 2023
Facility Adjud sted EBITDA for purposrr es of these restrictive covenants includes incremental adjud stments beyond those included
in the Company’s Adjusted EBITDA non-GAAP measure. Specifically, the 2023 Facility Adjud sted EBITDA definition includes
pro forff ma impact of EBITDA to be received from new shop openings and acquisitions for periods not yet in operation, certain
acquisition related synergies and cost optimization activities, and incremental add-backs forff pre-opening costs.

The 2023 Facility also contains covenants which, among other things, generally limit (with certain exceptions): mergers,
amalgamations, or consolidations; the incurrence of additional indebtedness (including guarantees); the incurrence of additional
liens; the sale, assignment, lease, conveyance, or transferff of assets; certain investments; dividends and stock redemptions or
repurchases in excess of certain amounts; transactions with affiff liates; engaging in materially differff ent lines of business; and
other activities customarily restricted in such agreements. The 2023 Facility also prohibits the transfer of cash or other assets to
the parent company, whether by dividend, loan, or otherwise, but provides forff exceptions to enable the parent company to pay
taxes, directors’ fees, and operating expenses, as well as exceptions to permit dividends in respect of the Company’s common
stock and stock redemptions and repurchases, to the extent permitted by the 2023 Facility. Subject to certain exceptions, the
borrowings under the 2023 Facility are collateralized by subsu tantially all of the Company’s assets (including its equity interests
in its subsu idiaries). As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company was in compliance with the finff ancial
covenants related to the 2023 Facility.

The 2023 Facility also contains customary er vents of defauff lt including, but not limited to, payment defauff lts, breaches of
representations and warranties, covenant defaults, non-loan party indebtedness in excess of $35.0 million, certain events of
bankruptrr cy and insolvency, judgment defauff lts in excess of $35.0 million, and the occurrence of a change of control.

Borrowings and issuances of letters of credit under the 2023 Facility are subject to the satisfacff tion of usual and customaryrr
conditions, including the accuracy of representations and warranties and the absa ence of defaults.

The aggregate maturt ities of the 2023 Facility for each of the following fourff years by fisff cal year are as follows:

Fiscal year Principal Amount

2025....................................................................................................................................................................... $ 35,000
2026....................................................................................................................................................................... 35,000
2027....................................................................................................................................................................... 35,000
2028....................................................................................................................................................................... 714,500

Short-Ttt erTT m Lrr ines of Creditdd

The Company is party to two agreements with existing lenders providing for short-term, uncommitted lines of credit up to an
aggregate of $25.0 million. Borrowings under these short-term lines of credit are payabla e to the lenders on a revolving basis forff
tenors up tu o a maximum of three months and are subju ect to an interest rate of adjusted term SOFR plus a credit spread
adjud stment of 0.10% plus a margin of 1.75%. As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company had drawn
$5.0 million and $11.0 million, respectively under the agreements which is classified within Current portion of long-term debt
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Cash Payma ents of Interest

Interest paid, inclusive of debt issuance costs, totaled $56.9 million, $55.8 million, and $30.7 million in the fiscal years ended
December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively.

Finaii ncing Obligll atiott ns

The Company has long-term financing obligations primarily in the form of lease obligations (related to both Company-owned
and fraff nchised restaurants). Refer to Note 9, Leases, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements forff additional discussion
of the finff ancing obligations.
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Note 9 — Leases

The Company has various lease agreements related to real estate, vehicles, and equipment. Its operating leases include real
estate (buildings and ground), vehicles, and equipment. Operating lease right of use assets and operating lease liabia lities are
recognized based on the present value of the futff urt e lease payments over the term. The operating lease right of use asset also
includes accrued lease expense resulting from the straight-line accounting under prior accounting methods, which is now being
amortized over the remaining life off f the lease.

The Company is the lessee on a number of ground leases and multiple building leases, which were classified as operating leases
prior to the adoption of ASC 842. As the Company elected the package of practical expedients upon adoption of ASC 842, the
Company was not required to reassess the classification of these existing leases and as such, these leases continue to be
accounted for as operating leases. In the event the Company modifies the existing leases or enters into new ground or building
leases in the futff urtt e, such leases may be classified as finance leases.

The Company’s finance leases relate primarily to vehicles and equipment. The lease payments are largely fixff ed in nature. The
Company is generally obligated for the cost of property taxes, insurance, and common area maintenance relating to its leases,
which are variable in nature. The Company determines the variable payments based on invoiced amounts froff m lessors. The
Company has elected to not apply the recognition requirements to leases of 12 months or less. These leases will be expensed on
a straight-line basis, and no operating lease liabia lity will be recorded.

The Company included the folff lowing amounts related to operating and finance lease assets and liabia lities within the
Consolidated Balance Sheets:

As of
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023

Assets Classification
Operating lease (1) .......................................... Operating lease right of use asset, net ........ $ 409,869 $ 456,964
Finance lease ........................................ Property and equipment, net .................... 72,221 41,411

Total leased assets .................................................................................................. 4 2,090 49 ,375

Liabilities
Current
Operating lease (2) .......................................... Current operating lease liabia lities.............. $ 46,620 $ 50,365
Finance lease ........................................ Current portion of long-term debt ............. 16,356 8,631

Noncurrent
Operating lease (3) .......................................... Noncurrent operating lease liabia lities......... 405,366 454,583
Finance lease ........................................ Long-term debt, less current portion.......... 63,369 38,486

Total leased liabilities ............................................................................................. 531,711 552,065

(1) Operating lease right of use asset, net was impacted by a reduction of $62.6 million in the fisff cal year ended December 29,
2024 related to the divestiture of Insomnia Cookies.

(2) Current operating lease liabia lities were impacted by a reducd tion of $8.6 million in the fiscal year ended December 29, 2024
related to the divestiture of Insomnia Cookies.

(3) Noncurrent operating lease liabia lities were impacted by a reducdd tion of $58.7 million in the fiscal year ended December 29,
2024 related to the divestiture of Insomnia Cookies.

The Company has long-term contractuat l obligations primarily in the forff m of lease obligations related to Company-operated
restaurants and franchised restaurants. Interest expense associated with the finff ance lease obligations is computed using the IBR
at the time the lease is entered into and is based on the amount of the outstanding lease obligation.
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The weighted-average remaining lease term and weighted-average discount rate for operating and finance leases were as
follows:

As of
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023

Weighted average remaining lease term:
Operating lease ................................................................................................... 10.6 years 10.8 years
Finance lease ...................................................................................................... 5.9 years 7.7 years

Weighted average discount rate:
Operating lease ................................................................................................... 7.04 % 7.03 %
Finance lease ...................................................................................................... 6.58 % 7.29 %

Lease costs were as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023 January 1, 2023

Lease cost Classification
Operating lease cost............. Selling, general and administrative expense.. $ 3,445 $ 3,541 $ 3,390
Operating lease cost............. Operating expenses ........................................ 92,281 89,539 85,173
Short-term lease cost............ Operating expenses ........................................ 5,210 5,064 5,234
Variable lease costs ............. Operating expenses ........................................ 27,941 31,726 23,996
Sublu ease income ................. Royalties and other revenues ......................... (259) (140) (210)
Finance lease cost:
Amortization of right of
use assets....................... Depreciation and amortization expense ......... $ 13,313 $ 7,639 $ 5,027
Interest on lease liabia lities . Interest expense, net....................................... 3,849 2,709 1,958

Supplu emental disclosures of cash flow information related to leases were as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023 January 1, 2023

Other inforff mation
Cash paid for leases:
Operating cash floff ws for operating leases (1) ............................................... $ 112,250 $ 117,977 $ 104,506
Operating cash floff ws for finff ance leases ...................................................... 3,846 2,649 2,116
Financing cash floff ws for finff ance leases ...................................................... 12,528 8,442 4,681

Right of use assets obtained in exchange for new lease liabia lities:
Operating leases........................................................................................... 0,183 $ 86,549 $ 50,368
Finance leases.............................................................................................. 43,832 22,785 8,158

(1) Operating cash floff ws for operating leases include variable rent payments which are not included in the measurement of
lease liabia lities. For the fiscal years ending December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, variabla e rent
payments were $27.9 million, $31.7 million, and $24.0 million, respectively.

A majority of the leases include options to extend the lease. If the Company is reasonabla y certain to exercise an option to extend
a lease, the extension period is included as part of the right of use asset and the lease liabia lity. The Company’s leases do not
contain restrictions or covenants that restrict the Company froff m incurring other finff ancial obligations. The Company also does
not provide any residual value guarantees forff the leases or have any significant leases that have yet to be commenced.
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At the inception of the contract, management determines if the contract is or contains a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if
it conveys the right to control the use of an identifieff d asset forff a period of time in exchange for consideration. The IBR reflects
a fulff ly secured rate based on the credit rating taking into consideration the repayment timing of the lease and any impacts dued to
the economic environment in which the lease operates. The estimate of the IBR refleff cts considerations such as market rates forff
the outstanding debt, interpolrr ations of rates forff leases with terms that diffeff r froff m the outstanding debt, and market rates forff debt
of companies with similar credit ratings.

Future lease commitments to be paid by the Company as of December 29, 2024 were as follows:

Fiscal year Operating Leases Finance Leases

2025 ............................................................................................................................................. $ 76,193 $ 20,982
2026 ............................................................................................................................................. 79,596 21,809
2027 ............................................................................................................................................. 65,540 17,542
2028 ............................................................................................................................................. 55,723 12,931
2029 ............................................................................................................................................. 53,598 5,743
Thereafteff r..................................................................................................................................... 333,602 18,007
Total lease payments ................................................................................................................. 664,252 97,014
Less: Interest................................................................................................................................ (212,266) (17,289)
Present value of lease liabilities ................................................................................................ 451,9 6 79,725

In the fisff cal year ended December 29, 2024, the Company completed sale-leaseback transactions whereby it disposed of the
land at two real estate properties forff proceeds of $6.3 million. The Company subsu equently leased back the properties, which are
accounted for as operating leases. The Company recognized cumulative gains on sale of $1.6 million, which are included in
Other (income)/expenses, net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In the fisff cal year ended December 31, 2023, the Company completed a sale-leaseback transaction whereby it disposed of the
land at one real estate property forff proceeds of $10.0 million. The Company subsu equently leased back the property, which is
accounted for as an operating lease. The Company recognized a gain on sale of $9.6 million, which is included in Other
(income)/expenses, net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In fiscal year ended January 1, 2023, the Company completed sale-leaseback transactions whereby it disposed of the land at
three real estate properties forff proceeds of $8.4 million. The Company subsu equently leased back the properties, which are
accounted for as operating leases. The Company recognized cumulative gains on sale of $6.5 million, which are included in
Other (income)/expenses, net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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Note 10 — Fair alue Measurements

The folff lowing tabla e presents assets and liabia lities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 29, 2024
and December 31, 2023:

December 29, 2024
Level 2

Assets:
Interest rate derivatives ............................................................................................................................ $ 362

Total Assets.................................................................................................................................................. 362

Liabilities:
Foreign currency derivatives.................................................................................................................... $ 749
Commodity derivatives ....................................................................................................... 6

Total Liabilities ........................................................................................................................................... 755

December 31, 2023
Level 2

Assets:
Interest rate derivatives ............................................................................................................................ $ 1,596

Total Assets.................................................................................................................................................. 1,596

Liabilities:
Foreign currency derivatives.................................................................................................................... $ 345
Commodity derivatives ....................................................................................................... 113

Total Liabilities ........................................................................................................................................... 45

There were no assets or liabia lities measured using Level 1 or Level 3 inputs and no transferff s of finff ancial assets or liabia lities
among the levels within the fair value hierarchy during the fiscal years ended December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023. The
Company’s derivatives are valued using discounted cash flow analyses that incorporate observabla e market parameters, such as
interest rate yield curves and currency rates.
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Note 11 — Derivative Instruments

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. Management evaluates various strategies in
managing its exposure to market-based risks, such as entering into transactions to manage its exposure to commodity price risk
and floff ating interest rates. The Company does not hold or issue derivative instrumrr ents for trading purposrr es. The Company is
exposed to credit-related losses in the event of non-performance by the counterparr rties to its derivative instrumrr ents. The
Company mitigates this risk of nonperformance by dealing with highly rated counterparr rties.

Commodityii Price Risk

The Company uses forward contracts to protect against the effeff cts of commodity price fluff ctuat tions in the cost of ingredients of
its products, of which flour, sugar, and shortening are the most significant, and the cost of fuel used by its delivery vr ehicles.
Management has not designated these forward contracts as hedges. As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023 the total
notional amount of commodity derivatives was 1.5 million and 1.8 million gallons of fuel, respectively. They were scheduled to
mature between January 2025 and October 2025, and January 2024 and December 2024, respectively. As of December 29,
2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company recorded liabia lities of less than $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively, related
to the faiff r market values of its commodity derivatives. The settlement of commodity derivative contracts is reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows as a cash floff w froff m operating activities.

Interest Rate Riskii

The Company uses interest rate swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate volatility from its debt arrangements. Management
has designated the swap agreements as cash floff w hedges and recognized the changes in the fair value of these swaps in other
comprehensive income. As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company has recorded assets of $0.4 million
and $1.6 million, respectively, related to the fair market values of its interest rate derivatives. The cash floff ws associated with
the interest rate swapsa are refleff cted in operating activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, which is consistent
with the classification as operating activities of the interest payments on the term loan.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2024, existing interest rate swap aa greements (the “prior agreements”) with an aggregate notional
amount of $505.0 million maturt ed. The Company then entered into new interest rate swap aa greements (the “new agreements”)
with an aggregate notional amount of $500.0 million as of December 29, 2024. The primary difference between the new
agreements and the prior agreements included the setting of new rates on the fixed component of the swapsa (weighted average
of approximately of 4.0%). The new agreements have a benchmark rate on the floff ating component of the swapsa of one-month
SOFR and are scheduled to mature in March 2028.

The net effeff ct of the interest rate swap aa rrangements will be to fixff the variabla e interest rate on the term loan under the 2023
Facility (as definff ed in Note 8, Long-Term Debt) up tu o the notional amount outstanding at the rates payabla e under the swap
agreements plus the Applicable Rate (as definff ed by the 2023 Facility), through the swap ma aturt ity dates in March 2028.

All of the interest rate swap derivatives have certain early termination triggers caused by an event of defauff lt or termination. The
events of default include failure to make payments when duedd , faiff lure to give notice of a termination event, faiff lure to comply
with or perform obligations under the agreements, bankruptrr cy or insolvency, and defaults under other agreements (cross-default
provisions).

In the firff st quarter of fiscal 2023, the Company cancelled certain interest rate swap agreements with an aggregate notional
amount of $265.0 million, collecting $7.7 million in cash proceeds, and entered into new agreements with the same
counterparr rties. In the fourff th quarter of fisff cal 2022, the Company cancelled certain interest rate swap agreements with an
aggregate notional amount of $240.0 million, collecting $8.5 million in cash proceeds, and entered into new agreements with
the same counterparties. The cash flows are reflected in operating activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Foreign Cgg urCC rency Ec xcEE hange Rate Rtt isk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily from its investments in consolidated subsu idiaries that operate in
Canada, the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New Zealand, Mexico, and Japaa n. In order to mitigate foreign exchange fluctuations, the
Company enters into forff eign exchange forward contracts. Management has not designated these forward contracts as hedges.
As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the total notional amount of foreign exchange derivatives was $152.6
million and $49.8 million, respectively. The majority maturt ed in January 2025 and January 2024, respectively. As of
December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company has recorded liabia lities of $0.7 million and $0.3 million,
respectively, related to the fair market values of its forff eign exchange derivatives.
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Quantitative Summary of Derivative Positiii ons and Their Eii ffeE ct on Results ott f Oo peOO rations

The folff lowing tabla es present the fair values of derivative instrumrr ents included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023 for derivatives not designated as hedging instruments and derivatives designed as
hedging instruments, respectively. The Company only has cash floff w hedges that are designated as hedging instruments.

Derivatives Fair alue

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023 Balance Sheet Location

Foreign currency derivatives $ 749 $ 345 Accruerr d liabia lities
Commodity derivatives................................... 6 113 Accruerr d liabia lities
Total Liabilities ............................................. 755 45

Derivatives Fair alue

Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023 Balance Sheet Location

Interest rate derivatives (current) .................... $ 112 $ 1,596 Prepaid expense and other current assets
Interest rate derivatives (noncurrent) .............. 250 — Other assets
Total Assets .................................................... 362 1,596

The effect of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal years ended December 29,
2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023 is as follows:

Derivative Gain Loss Recogni ed in Income in Fiscal
Years Ended

Derivatives Designated as Hedging
Instruments

December 29,
2024

December 31,
2023 January 1, 2023

Location of Derivative Gain Loss
Recogni ed in Income

Gain/(loss) on interest rate
derivatives ......................................... $ 7,663 $ 8,624 $ (2,727) Interest expense, net

7,663 ,624 2,727

Derivative Loss Gain Recogni ed in Income in Fiscal
Years Ended

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging
Instruments

December 29,
2024

December 31,
2023 January 1, 2023

Location of Derivative Loss Gain
Recogni ed in Income

Loss on foreign currency derivatives $ (404) $ (175) $ (90) Other non-operating expense, net
Gain/(loss) on commodity
derivatives ......................................... 107 (627) (972) Other non-operating expense, net

297 02 1,062
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Note 12 — Employee Benefit Plans

Defie neii d ConCC tributiott n PlaPP ns

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan for KriK spy KreK mers in the U.S. (the “401(k) Plan”) to which eligible employees may
contribute up tu o 100% of their salary arr nd bonus on a tax deferred basis, subject to statutory limitations. The Company currently
matches 100% of the firff st 3% and 50% of the next 2% of compensation contributed by each employee to the 401(k) Plan. The
Company match is immediately 100% vested.

The Company operates definff ed contribution plans in the U.K. and Ireland (“KK U.K. and Ireland Contribution Plans”), to
which eligible employees may contribute up tu o 100% of their salary,rr subju ect to statutt ory lrr imitations. The Company currently
matches contributions at a rate of 3% of pensionabla e earnings. The KK U.K. and Ireland Contribution Plans are pension plans
under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Company has no legal or construcrr tive obligations
to pay furff ther contributions if the fundff does not hold suffiff cient assets to pay all employees the benefitsff relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognized as employee benefitff expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as
an asset to the extent that a cash refundff or a reducd tion in the futff urt e payments is available.

KK Australia operates a defined contribution retirement benefitff plan for its employees in Australia (the “Australia Plan”) and in
New Zealand (the “New Zealand Plan”). The Company contributes 11.5% of employee compensation to the Australia Plan and
matches employee contributions of up to 3% of compensation to the New Zealand Plan.

KK Canada operates a Registered Retirement Savings Plan (“RRSP”) forff its employees in Canada (the “Canada Plan”) which
allows eligible employees to contribute. For certain salaried employees, the Company will match eligible employee
contributions up to 2.5% of their annual base salary.r

Total contribution plan expense forff defined contribution plans was $9.6 million, $8.5 million, and $7.4 million forff the fisff cal
years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively.

Othett r EmpEE loyeeo Benefie t Pii laPP ns

KK Mexico operates definff ed benefit plans for its employees related to seniority premium (the “Mexico Seniority Premium
Plan”) and termination indemnity (the “Mexico Termination Indemnity Plan”). The Mexico Seniority Premium Plan provides
eligible employees a definff ed benefit of 12 days of salary prr er full year of service, and the Mexico Termination Indemnity Plan
provides eligible employees a definff ed benefit of up tu o three months of base salary plus 20 days per year worked. Net periodic
benefit cost forff these plans totaled $0.3 million, $0.2 million, and $0.2 million forff the fisff cal years ended December 29, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively.
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Note 13 — Share-based Compensation

Restritt ctedtt Stoctt k UniUU tsii (“RS“ Us”) and PerPP for rmance Stoctt k UniUU tsii (“PS“ Us”)

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries issue time-vested RSUs and PSUs under their respective executive ownership plans
and long-term incentive plans.

The time-vested RSUs are awarded to eligible employees and non-employee directors and entitle the grantee to receive shares
of common stock at the end of a vesting period. Certain RSUs vest in 54 months from the date of grant and include a minimum
holding period of six months before the shareholder may redeem the shares. Certain RSUs vest over a 60-month period
subsu equent to the grant date (with 60% vesting durd ing the third year folff lowing the grant date, 20% vesting durd ing the fourth
year, and 20% vesting at the end of the 60-month term). Throughout the vesting period and the holding period, shareholders are
subju ect to the market risk on the value of their shares.

The PSU vesting is contingent upon the achievement of certain perforff mance objectives and the awards are subjeb ct to a requisite
service period. If the Company meets targets for the perforff mance objectives at the end of the performance cycle, the Company
awards a resulting number of shares of its common stock to the award holders. The number of shares may be increased to a
maximum threshold (up tu o 200% of the target threshold set at the grant date, forff a majority of the awards) or reducd ed to a
minimum threshold (a floor of zero) based on the achievement of these performance objeb ctives in accordance with the terms
establa ished at the award’s grant date. The Company estimates the probability that the performance objeb ctives will be achieved
periodically and adjusts compensation expenses accordingly.

RSUs and PSUs held by KKI are granted to U.S. employees and directors as well as certain employees of the Company’s
subsu idiaries. Certain U.K. employees receive RSUs held by KK U.K. Certain Australia employees receive RSUs held by KK
Australia. Certain Mexico employees receive RSUs held by KK Mexico.

Excluding the Insomnia Cookies plan which was removed froff m the tabla e below due to the divestiturtt e, RSU and PSU activity
under the various plans durd ing the fiscal years presented is as follows:

(in tii hott usands, es xcee ept per
share amounts)s

Non-vested
shares

outstanding
at January
1, 2023 Granted Vested Forfeited

Non-vested
shares

outstanding
at December
31, 2023 Granted Vested Forfeited

Non-vested
shares

outstanding
at December
29, 2024

KKI
RSUs and PSUs .... 4,946 3,063 669 555 6,7 5 1,934 1,893 842 5,9 4

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Value ................. 14.23 14.48 11.62 14.89 14.54 14.19 14.80 14.94 14.29

KK U.K.
RSUs ..................... 60 — 50 3 7 — — — 7

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Value ................. 15.77 — 13.41 21.21 29. 0 — — — 29. 0

KK Australia
RSUs ..................... 354 — 169 — 1 5 — 42 6 137

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Value ................. 1.47 — 1.36 — 1.57 — 2.13 1.91 1.39

KK Mexico
RSUs ..................... 60 — — 40 20 — 2 — 1

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Value ................. 33.0 — — 34.58 30.1 — 29.21 — 30.01

The Company recorded total non-cash compensation expense related to the RSUs and PSUs under the plans of $30.0 million,
$20.6 million, and $15.5 million forff fiscal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023,
respectively. The net deferred tax benefit/(expense) recognized was $1.2 million, $2.1 million, and ($0.3 million) for fisff cal
years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively.
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The unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested RSUs and PSUs and the weighted-average period over which such
cost is expected to be recognized are as folff lows:

As of December 29, 2024
Unrecogni ed
Compensation

Cost

Recogni ed Over a
eighted-

Average Period of

KKI .......................................................................................................................................... $ 46,677 2.9 years
KK U.K. ................................................................................................................................... 62 1.5 years
KK Australia ............................................................................................................................ 29 0.7 years
KK Mexico............................................................................................................................... 74 0.6 years

The estimated faiff r value of restricted stock is calculated using a market appa roach (i.e., market multiple is used for the KK U.K.
plan and an agreed-upon EBITDA buyout multiple is used forff KK Australia and KK Mexico plans).

The total grant date faiff r value of shares vested under the KKI plan was $28.1 million, $7.8 million, and $12.5 million forff the
fiscal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively. The total grant date faiff r value of
shares vested under the KK U.K. plan was $0.7 million forff the fisff cal year ended December 31, 2023; no shares vested during
the fisff cal years ended December 29, 2024 or January 1, 2023. The total grant date fair value of shares vested under the KK
Australia plan was $0.1 million, $0.2 million, and $2.3 million forff the fisff cal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31,
2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively. The total grant date fair value of shares vested under the KK Mexico plan was $0.1
million forff the fisff cal year ended December 29, 2024; no shares vested during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2023 or
January 1, 2023.

Timeii -VesVV ted StoSS ck Options

KKI issues time-vested stock options under its Omnibus Incentive Plan. The stock options are awarded to eligible employees
and entitle the grantee to purchase shares of common stock at the respective exercise price at the end of a vesting period. Stock
options vest over a 60-month period subsequent to the grant date (with 60% vesting durdd ing the third year folff lowing the grant
date, 20% vesting durd ing the fourth year, and 20% vesting at the end of the 60-month term), and as such are subject to a service
condition. The maximum contractuat l term of the stock options is 10 years.

The faiff r value of time-vested stock options was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
This model is impacted by the Company’s stock price and certain assumptions related to the Company’s stock and employees’
exercise behavior. The expected term for stock options granted was estimated utilizing the simplifieff d method. Management
utilized the simplifieff d method because the Company did not have sufficient historical exercise data to provide a reasonable
basis uponu which to estimate expected term. The risk-free interest rate assumption was based on yields of U.S. Treasuryr
securities in effectff at the date of grant with terms similar to the expected term. Expected volatility was estimated based on the
Company’s historical volatility, and also considering historical volatility of peer companies over a period equivalent to the
expected term. Additionally, the dividend yield was estimated based on dividends currently being paid on the underlying
common stock at the date of grant. Estimated and actuat l forff feitures have not had a material impact on share-based
compensation expense.

The folff lowing weighted-average assumptions were utilized in determining the fair value of the time-vested stock options
granted durd ing the fiscal years presented:

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023

KKI
Risk-free interest rate.............................................................................................................. — % 3.7 %
Expected volatility .................................................................................................................. — % 35.1 %
Dividend yield......................................................................................................................... — % 1.0 %
Expected term (years) ............................................................................................................. — 6.5 years
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A summary of the status of the time-vested stock options as of December 29, 2024 and changes durd ing fisff cal years presented is
as follows:

Share
options

outstanding
at

Share
options

outstanding
at

Share
options

outstanding
at

(in tii hott usands, es xcee ept per share
amounts)tt

January 1,
2023 Granted Exercised

Forfeited
or

expired

December
31,
2023 Granted Exercised

Forfeited
or

expired

December
29,
2024

KKI
Options ............................ 2,569 424 — — 2,993 — — 331 2,662

Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value ............... 6.10 4.72 — — 5.90 — — 6.10 5.

Weighted Average
Exercise Price.................. 14.61 12.45 — — 14.30 — — 14.61 14.27
Weighted Average
Remaining Contractuat l
Term (years) .................... .3 years 7.5 years 7.1 years

Aggregate Intrinsic
Value (in thousands)........ — 2,352 —

The Company recorded total non-cash compensation expense related to the time-vested stock options of $$5.3 illimillion, $, 3.6
million, and $2.7 million for the fiscal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively.

The unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested stock options and the weighted-average period over which such
cost is expected to be recognized are as folff lows:

As of December 29, 2024
Unrecogni ed
Compensation

Cost

Recogni ed Over a
eighted-

Average Period of

KKI .......................................................................................................................................... $ 3,317 1.2 years

During the fisff cal year ended December 29, 2024, 1.5 million time-vested stock options vested. No time-vested stock options
under the KKI plan vested nor were exercised durd ing the fiscal years ended December 31, 2023 or January 1, 2023.
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Note 14 — Income Taxes

Income/(loss) before income taxes consists of:ff

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023 January 1, 2023

Domestic........................................................................................................... $ (10,169) $ (59,174) $ (49,910)
Foreign ............................................................................................................. 29,938 18,180 41,747
Income loss before income taxes................................................................. 19,769 40,994 ,163

Domestic income/(loss) before income taxes includes unallocated corporrr ate costs, which include general corporrr ate expenses.

The components of the provision for income taxes are as folff lows:

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023 January 1, 2023

Current:
Federal....................................................................................................... $ 112 $ (2,213) $ —
State........................................................................................................... (147) 138 1,033
International .............................................................................................. 12,922 16,214 13,816

Total current ............................................................................. 12, 7 14,139 14, 49
Deferred and other:

Federal....................................................................................................... $ 6,232 $ (10,971) $ (13,960)
State........................................................................................................... (619) (2,552) 4,280
International .............................................................................................. (2,546) (4,963) (4,557)

Total deferrff ed and other .......................................................... 3,067 1 ,4 6 14,237
Income tax expense benefit ......................................................................... 15,954 4,347 612

A reconciliation of the statutt ory Urr .S. fedff eral income tax rate and the Company’s effective tax rate is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023 January 1, 2023

Statutt ory frr edff eral rate ........................................................................................ 21.0 % 21.0 % 21.0 %
State income taxes, net of federal benefitff ......................................................... 0.2 6.3 12.6
Foreign operations............................................................................................ 5 (11.0) (66.8)
Change in valuation allowance......................................................................... 13.6 (2.0) 24.9
Noncontrolling interest..................................................................................... 1.1 (0.2) 17.2
Impact of uncertain tax positions ..................................................................... .3) 6.2 62.2
Other permanent differff ences ............................................................................ 4.2 (0.6) (1.5)
Deferred adjustments........................................................................................ 0.5 (3.8) (48.7)
Share-based compensation ............................................................................... 25.4 (6.3) (30.3)
Other................................................................................................................. (4.5) 1.0 1.9
Effeff ctive tax rate............................................................................................. 0.7 10.6 7.5

The Company establa ishes valuation allowances for deferff red income tax assets in accordance with GAAP, which provides that
such valuation allowances shall be establa ished unless realization of the income tax benefitff s is more likely than not.
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The Company recognizes deferred income tax assets and liabia lities based upon its expectation of the future tax consequences of
temporary drr iffeff rences between the income tax and finff ancial reporting bases of assets and liabia lities. Deferred tax liabia lities
generally represent tax expense recognized forff which payment has been deferred, or expenses which have been deducd ted in the
Company’s tax returns, but which have not yet been recognized as an expense in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets
generally represent tax deductions or credits that will be refleff cted in future tax returt ns for which the Company has already
recorded a tax benefit in the audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company continues to assert permanent reinvestment with respect to its initial basis differff ences of international affiliates
but does not assert indefinite reinvestment on the earnings of the forff eign subsu idiaries with the exception of its subsidiaries in
Canada. Accordingly, no deferred taxes have been provided forff with regard to the Company’s initial basis diffeff rence in
international affiliates. Due to the complexities of tax law in the respective jurisdictions, it is not practicable to estimate the tax
liabia lity that might be incurred if such earnings were remitted to the U.S. The Company has not establa ished a deferred tax
liabia lity for the earnings of the forff eign subsu idiaries as any distributions made from those jurisdictions are expected to be made
in a tax neutral manner.

The tax effeff cts of temporary drr iffeff rences are as folff lows:

As of
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023

Deferred income tax assets:
Intangible assets .............................................................................................. $ 1,072 $ 1,283
Accruerr d compensation....................................................................................................... 1,924 6,450
Insurance accruals............................................................................................ 4,509 2,642
Share-based compensation................................................................................. 5,705 4,553
Deferred revenue ............................................................................................. 3,419 2,451
Transaction costs ............................................................................................. 1,530 1,339
Disallowed interest expense............................................................................... 35,291 30,087
Lease liabia lities ............................................................................................... 117,619 113,626
Foreign net operating loss carryforward ............................................................... 3,024 2,517
Federal net operating loss carryforward................................................................ 10,541 22,755
Federal tax credits............................................................................................ 18,058 15,426
State net operating loss and credit carryforwards.................................................... 10,702 11,842
Other............................................................................................................. 16,874 13,899

Gross deferff red income tax assets ................................................................ 230,268 228,870
Valuation allowance......................................................................... (30,617) (29,084)

Deferred income tax assets, net of valuation allowance ............... 199,651 199,7 6
Deferred income tax liabia lities:

Intangible assets .............................................................................................. $ (157,245) $ (151,610)
Subsu idiary investments ..................................................................................... (19,070) (15,145)
Property and equipment .................................................................................... (20,484) (19,514)
Foreign reacquired fraff nchise rights...................................................................... (23,112) (29,573)
Lease right of use assets .................................................................................... (106,592) (102,178)
Unrealized income on foreign currency translation ................................................. (709) (1,876)
Other............................................................................................................. (1,115) (1,702)

Gross deferff red income tax liabia lities............................................................ (328,327) (321,598)
Net deferrff ed income tax liabilities ............................................ 12 ,676 121, 12
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The presentation of deferff red income taxes on the Consolidated Balance Sheets is as folff lows:

As of
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023

Included in:
Other assets........................................................................................................................... $ 2,069 $ 2,113
Deferred income taxes, net ................................................................................................... (130,745) (123,925)
Net deferrff ed income tax liabilities .................................................................................... 12 ,676 121, 12

As of December 29, 2024, the Company had net operating loss (“NOL”) carryfrr orff wards of appra oximately $220.4 million forff
U.S. state tax purposrr es and $50.2 million for U.S. fedff eral tax purposrr es. As of December 31, 2023, the Company had NOL
carryforwards of approximately $248.8 million forff U.S. state tax purposrr es and $108.4 million for U.S. fedff eral tax purposrr es.
U.S. federal NOL carryforwards are eligible to be carried forward indefinitely. A portion of the Company’s U.S. state tax
carryforwards began to expire in fiscal 2024. As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023 the Company had forff eign NOL
carryforwards of approximately $10.9 million and $8.7 million, respectively. As of December 29, 2024, $6.0 million of the
foreign NOL carryfrr orff wards have a 10-year carryover period and the remaining $4.9 million have no expiration.

As of December 29, 2024, the Company had various tax credit carryforwards of $18.1 million forff U.S. federal purposrr es and
none for U.S. state purposrr es. As of December 31, 2023, the Company had various tax credit carryforwards of $15.4 million for
U.S. federal purposrr es and none for U.S. state purposrr es. If not utilized, the credits can be carried forward between 10 and 20
years. A portion of the U.S. tax credit carryforwards began to expire in fiscal 2023. If certain subsu tantial changes in the entity’s
ownership occur, there would be an annual limitation on the amount of the NOLs and credits that can be utilized.

The valuation allowances of $30.6 million and $29.1 million as of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023 respectively,
represent the portion of its deferred tax assets that the Company does not believe would more likely than not be realized in the
future. Of the $30.6 million as of December 29, 2024, $2.1 million is for forff eign NOL carryforwards, $0.3 million is forff other
foreign deferff red tax assets, $10.7 million is forff U.S. state tax carryforwards, and $17.5 million is for U.S. forff eign tax credits
and other business credits, forff which suffiff cient taxable income is not expected to be generated. The increase in valuation
allowance is primarily attributable to additional forff eign and state NOLs and federal tax credits for which future sufficff ient
taxabla e income is not expected to be generated. Of the $29.1 million as of December 31, 2023, $2.3 million is forff foreign NOL
carryforwards, $11.9 million is for U.S. state tax carryforwards, and $14.8 million is forff U.S. foreign tax credits and other
business credits, forff which suffiff cient taxable income is not expected to be generated.

Realization of net deferred tax assets generally is dependent on generation of taxable income in future periods. While the
Company believes its forecast of futff urtt e taxable income is reasonable, actuat l results will inevitabla y vary frr roff m management’s
forecasts. Such variances could result in adjustments to the valuation allowance on deferred tax assets in future periods, and
such adjud stments could be material to the financial statements.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various U.S. state and forff eign jurisdictions. With few
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to examination by U.S., state, or forff eign tax authorities forff years beforff e 2019.

Income tax payments, net of refundsff , were $18.5 million, $11.1 million, and $16.7 million in the fisff cal years ended
December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively.

The folff lowing tabla e presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits:

As of
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023

Unrecognized tax benefitff s at beginning of year.............................................................. $ 10,536 $ 13,513
Decreases related to positions taken in prior years .......................................................... (559) (160)
Decreases related to positions taken in prior years dued to lapsa e of statute (74) (2,817)
Unrecogni ed tax benefitff s at end of year ................................................................... 9,903 10,536
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Approximately all of the aggregate $9.9 million and $10.5 million of unrecognized income tax benefitff s as of December 29,
2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, would, if recognized, impact the annual effective tax rate. The Company does not
believe that changes in its uncertain tax benefitsff will result in a material impact during the next 12 months.

The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax issues as components of income tax expense.
The Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets refleff ct approximately $1.6 million of accrued interest and penalties as of both
December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023. Interest and penalties were not material during the years presented in the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Note 15 — Commitments and Contingencies

Resolved Litigii atiott n

Illinois Bii IPBB A lPP itigation

In March 2023, an employee filff ed a lawsuit on behalf of himself and all others similarly situat ted against the Company, alleging
violations of the Illinois Biometric Information Privacy Act. In October 2024, the Company negotiated a settlement of this
lawsuit, which required the Company to pay an amount immaterial to the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Othett r Legal Matters

The Company also is engaged in various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business. The Company maintains
insurance policies against certain kinds of such claims and suits, including insurance policies forff workers’ compensation and
personal injury,r all of which are subject to deductibles. While the ultimate outcome of these matters could diffeff r froff m
management’s expectations, management currently does not believe their resolution will have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

Purchase Commitments

The Company is exposed to the effects of commodity price fluff ctuat tions on the cost of ingredients forff its products, of which
flour, sugar, and shortening are the most significant. In order to secure adequate supplu ies of products and bring greater stabia lity
to the cost of ingredients, the Company routinely enters into forff ward purchase contracts with vendors under which it commits to
purchase agreed-uponu quantities of ingredients at agreed-upon prices at specified future dates. Typically, the aggregate
outstanding purchase commitment at any point in time will range from one month to several years of anticipated ingredients
purchases, depending on the ingredient. In addition, from time to time the Company enters into contracts forff the futff urt e deliveryr
of equipment purchased for resale and components of doughnut-making equipment manufacff tured by the Company. As of
December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company had appra oximately $98.9 million and $130.5 million, respectively,
of commitments under ingredient and other forward purchase contracts. These ingredient and other forward purchase contracts
are forff physical delivery in quantities expected to be used over a reasonabla e period in the normal course of business. These
agreements ofteff n meet the definition of a derivative. However, the Company does not measure its forward purchase
commitments at fair value as the amounts under contract meet the physical delivery cr riteria in the normal purchase exception
under ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging. While the Company has multiple vendors forff most of the ingredients, the
termination of the Company’s relationships with vendors with whom it has forff ward purchase agreements, or those vendors’
inability to honor the purchase commitments, could adversely affect the Company’s results of operations and cash floff ws.

Othett r ComCC mitmii ents and ConCC tingencies

The Company’s primary banks issued letters of credit on its behalf totaling $20.8 million and $15.4 million as of December 29,
2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, a majority of which secure the Company’s reimbursement obligations to insurers
under its self-iff nsurance arrangements.
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Note 16 — Related Party Transactions

Investments itt n Uii ncUU onsolidatdd edtt Entitiii es

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes the Company’s investments in unconsolidated entities:

December 29,
2024

December 31,
2023

Insomnia Cookies (1) ......................................................................................................................... 6,574 $ —
Krispy Kreme-branded international fraff nchisees (2) ......................................................................... 4,496 2,071
KremeWorks USA, LLC and KreKK meWorks Canada, L.P. (3) ........................................................... — 735
Total investments in unconsolidated entities............................................................................... 91,070 2, 06

(1) The Company holds a 34.7% equity interest in Insomnia Cookies as of December 29, 2024, subsequent to the divestiture
that occurred durd ing the third quarter of fiscal 2024. Refer to Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestitures, to the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements forff more information.

(2) The Company holds a 33% equity interest in franchisee KK France, a 45% equity interest in franchisee KK Brazil, and a
25% equity interest in franchisee KK Spain as of December 29, 2024. The interests in KK Brazil and KK Spain were
acquired durd ing the second quarter of fiscal 2024. Refer to Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestitures, to the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements forff more information.

(3) The Company held a 20% equity interest in franchisee KreKK meWorks USA, LLC, and a 25% equity interest in franchisee
KremeWorks Canada, L.P. as of December 31, 2023. During the third quarter of fiscal 2024, the Company acquired the
business and operating assets of these two franchisees. Referff to Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestitures, to the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements forff more information.

Revenues froff m sales of ingredients and equipment to the equity method franchisees were $11.9 million, $9.5 million, and $8.8
million forff the fisff cal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively. Royalty revenues
from these franchisees were $1.6 million, $1.6 million, and $1.4 million forff the fisff cal years ended December 29, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively. Trade receivabla es from these franchisees are included in Accounts
receivabla e, net on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. These transactions were conducd ted pursuant to fraff nchise agreements, the
terms of which are subsu tantially the same as the agreements with unaffiff liated franchisees. Referff to Note 3, Accounts
Receivabla e, net, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements forff more information.

Othett r Relatll edtt Party Att ctivtt ity

Keurig Dr Pepper Inc. (“KDP”), an affiliated company of JAB, licenses the Krispy Kreme trademark for the Company in the
manufactff urt ing of portion packs forff the Keurig brewing system. KDP also sells beverage concentrates and packaged beverages
to the Company for resale through Krispy Kreme shops. Licensing revenues froff m KDP were $2.4 million, $2.2 million, and
$2.3 million for the fiscal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, respectively.

The Company had service agreements with BDT Capital Partners, LLC (“BDT”), a minority investor in KKI, to provide
advisory services to the Company, including valuation services related to certain acquisitions. The Company recognized
expenses of $0.5 million and $1.1 million related to the service agreements with BDT forff the fisff cal year ended December 29,
2024 and January 1, 2023, respectively. No related costs were incurred forff the fisff cal year ended December 31, 2023.

The Company granted loans to employees of KKI, KK U.K., KK Australia, KK Mexico and Insomnia Cookies for the purchase
of shares in those subsidiaries. The loan balance was $1.9 million and $3.9 million as of December 29, 2024 and December 31,
2023, respectively, and it is presented as a reducd tion from Shareholders’ equity on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Note 17 — Revenue Recognition

Disaii ggra egatiott n of Ro evenues

Revenues are disaggregated as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023
January 1,
2023

Company Shops, DFD, and Branded Sweet Treats................................... $ 1,574,449 $ 1,592,573 $ 1,443,261
Mix and equipment revenue from fraff nchisees ......................................... 53,329 58,593 54,621
Franchise royalties and other ............................................................... 37,619 34,938 32,016
Total net revenues .......................................................................................... 1,665,397 1,6 6,104 1,529, 9

Other revenues include advertising funff d contributions from fraff nchisees, rental income, development and franchise fees, and
licensing royalties froff m customers for use of the KriK spy KreKK me brand, such as Keurig coffee cups.

Contratt ct Balances

Deferred revenue and related receivables are as follows:

December 29,
2024

December 31,
2023 Balance Sheet Location

Trade receivabla es, net of allowances of
$1,060 and $564, respectively ............ $ 57,439 $ 45,858 Accounts receivabla es, net

Deferred revenue:
Current ..................................... $ 16,506 $ 22,066 Accruerr d liabia lities
Noncurrent ................................ 8,569 6,005 Other long-term obligations and deferff red credits

Total deferreff d revenue ........................... 25,075 2 ,071

Trade receivabla es at the end of each fiscal year relate primarily to payments due forff royalties, franchise fees, advertising feesff ,
sale of products, and licensing fees. Deferff red revenue primarily represents the Company’s remaining performance obligations
under gift cff ards and fraff nchise and development agreements forff which consideration has been received or is receivabla e and is
generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the related agreement. The noncurrent portion of
deferred revenue primarily relates to the remaining performance obligations in the fraff nchise and development agreements. Of
the deferff red revenue balances as of December 31, 2023, $13.5 million was recognized as revenue in the fisff cal year ended
December 29, 2024. Of the deferff red revenue balance as of January 1, 2023, $12.2 million was recognized as revenue in fiscal
the year ended December 31, 2023.

Transactiott n PriPP ce Alloll cated to Rtt emainiii ngii Perforff marr nce Obligll atiott ns

Estimated revenue expected to be recognized in the futff urt e related to perforff mance obligations that are either unsatisfied or
partially satisfied as of December 29, 2024 is as follows:

Fiscal year

2025 ........................................................................................................................................................................ $ 11,092
2026 ........................................................................................................................................................................ 3,327
2027 ........................................................................................................................................................................ 2,248
2028 ........................................................................................................................................................................ 1,511
2029 ........................................................................................................................................................................ 564
Thereafteff r ..................................................................................................................................... 6,333

25,075
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The estimated revenue in the table above relates to gift cff ards, consumer loyalty programs, and fraff nchise fees paid upfroff nt which
are recognized over the life off f the franchise agreement. The estimated revenue does not contemplate futff urt e issuances of gift
cards nor benefits to be earned by members of consumer loyalty programs. The estimated revenue also does not contemplate
future franchise renewals or new fraff nchise agreements for shops for which a fraff nchise agreement or development agreement
does not exist as of December 29, 2024. The Company has appla ied the sales-based royalty exemption which permits exclusion
of variable consideration in the form of sales-based royalties froff m the disclosure of remaining performance obligations in the
tabla e abovea .

Note 1 — Net Earnings Loss per Share

e folff lowing tabla e presents the calculations of basic and diluted EPS:

Fiscal Years Ended

(in thousands, excepee t per share amounts)tt
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023
January 1,
2023

Net income/(loss) attributable to Krispy Kreme, Inc................................. $ 3,095 $ (37,925) $ (15,622)
Adjud stment to net income/(loss) attributable to common shareholders . — — (374)

Net income/(loss) attributable to common shareholders — Basic................ $ 3,095 $ (37,925) $ (15,996)
Additional income attributed to noncontrolling interest dued to
subsu idiary potential common shares ........................................... (20) (28) (143)

Net income/(loss) attributable to common shareholders — Diluted ............. $ 3,075 $ (37,953) $ (16,139)
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding ...................................... 169,341 168,289 167,471

Dilutive effeff ct of outstanding common stock options, RSUs, and
PSUs .................................................................................................... 2,159 — —

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding ............................. 171,500 168,289 167,471
Earnings loss per share attributable to common shareholders:

Basic ...................................................................................... $ 0.02 $ (0.23) $ (0.10)
Diluted.................................................................................... $ 0.02 $ (0.23) $ (0.10)

Potential dilutive shares consist of unvested RSUs and PSUs, calculated using the treasury stock method. The calculation of
dilutive shares outstanding excludes certain unvested RSUs granted under certain subsu idiaries’ executive ownership plans and
long-term incentive plans, because their inclusion would have been antidilutive. Refer to Note 13, Share-based Compensation,
to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements forff further inforff mation about the plans.

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes the gross number of potential dilutive unvested RSUs and PSUs excluded dued to antidilution
(unadjusted forff the treasury sr tock method):

Fiscal Years Ended

(in thousands)s
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023
January 1,
2023

KKI................................................................................................ 1,421 6,785 4,946
KK U.K. ......................................................................................... 7 7 60
Insomnia Cookies ............................................................................. — 47 —

For the fiscal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, all 2.7 million, 3.0 million, and 2.6
million time-vested stock options, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted weighted average common
shares outstanding based on appla ication of the treasury srr tock method.
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Note 19 — Segment Reporting

The Company conducts business through the folff lowing three reportabla e segments:

• U.S.: Includes all Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.S., and Insomnia Cookies Bakeries globally
through the date of deconsolidation (refer to Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestiturtt es, to the audited Consolidated Financial
Statements for more inforff mation);

• Internatiott nal: Includes all Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New Zealand,
Mexico, Canada, and Japan; and

• Market Developmll ent: Includes fraff nchise operations across the globe.

Unallocated corporate costs are excluded froff m the Company’s measurement of segment performance. These costs include
general corporrr ate expenses.

Segment inforff mation is identifieff d and prepared on the same basis that the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), the Company’s
CODM, evaluates financial results, allocates resources and makes key operating decisions. The CODM allocates resources and
assesses performance based on geography and line of business, which represents the Company’s operating segments.

The primary financial measures used by the CODM to evaluate the performance of its operating segments are net revenues and
segment Adjusted EBIT. For all of the segments, the CODM uses segment Adjusted EBIT to monitor and evaluate operating
performance and to provide a consistent benchmark for comparison across reporting periods.

The folff lowing tabla es reconcile segment results to consolidated results reported in accordance with GAAP. The accounting
policies used forff internal management reporting at the operating segments are consistent with those described in Note 1,
Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements.
The Company manages its assets on a total company basis and the CODM does not review asset inforff mation by segment when
assessing performance or allocating resources. Consequently, the Company does not report total assets by reportabla e segment.
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The reportabla e segment results are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023
January 1,
2023

U.S.
Net revenues..................................................................................................... $ 1,058,736 $ 1,104,944 $ 1,010,250
Less:

Product and distribution costs, adjusted.................................................... 251,417 274,828 258,490
Operating expenses, adjusted .................................................................... 033 556,283 515,456
Selling, general and administrative expense, adjud sted.............................. 98,629 111,584 90,253
Marketing expenses, adjusted ................................................................... 31,395 31,407 29,190
Other segment items (1) .............................................................................. 1,495 (137) 4,578
Depreciation expense and amortization of right of use assets, adjusted ... 60,406 56,529 47,119

Total U.S. Add usted EBIT.............................................................................. 52,361 74,450 65,164

Internatiott nal
Net revenues..................................................................................................... $ 519,102 $ 489,631 $ 435,651
Less:

Product and distribution costs, adjusted.................................................... 125,075 120,015 110,101
Operating expenses, adjusted .................................................................... 392 214,395 185,417
Selling, general and administrative expense, adjud sted.............................. 48,441 47,013 43,245
Marketing expenses, adjusted ................................................................... 421 10,971 10,177
Other segment items (1) .............................................................................. 1,057 705 (538)
Depreciation expense and amortization of right of use assets, adjusted ... 31,309 28,367 24,393

Total International Add usted EBIT.............................................................. 59,407 6 ,165 62, 56

Market Developmll ent
Net revenues..................................................................................................... $ 87,559 $ 91,529 $ 83,997
Less:

Product and distribution costs, adjusted.................................................... 32,140 37,969 37,349
Selling, general and administrative expense, adjud sted.............................. 4,449 7,213 6,072
Other segment items (1) .............................................................................. 3,066 3,381 1,692
Depreciation expense and amortization of right of use assets, adjusted ... 154 259 194

Total Market Development Add usted EBIT ................................................ 47,750 42,707 3 ,690

Corporatett
Total Corporate expenses within Add usted EBIT ....................................... 69,290 70,219 57,536

Total Reportable Sll egSS megg nt
Total reportable segment net revenues ........................................................ 1,665,397 1,6 6,104 1,529, 9
Total reportable segment Add usted EBIT.................................................... 90,22 115,103 109,174

(1) The U.S. and International segments’ other segment items consist of pre-opening costs and other (income)/expenses, net.
The Market Development segment other segment items consist of operating expenses, marketing expenses, pre-opening
costs, and other (income)/expenses, net.
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The folff lowing tabla e presents a reconciliation of net income/(loss) to Adjud sted EBIT:

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023
January 1,
2023

Net income loss ............................................................................................. 3, 15 36,647 ,775
Interest expense, net ......................................................................................... 60,066 50,341 34,102
Income tax expense/(benefitff ) ........................................................................... 15,954 (4,347) 612
Share-based compensation ............................................................................... 35,149 24,196 18,170
Employer payroll taxes related to share-based compensation.......................... 358 395 312
Gain on divestiture of Insomnia Cookies ......................................................... (90,455) — —
Other non-operating expense, net (1) ................................................................. 1,885 3,798 3,036
Strategic initiatives (2)........................................................................................ 19,993 29,057 2,841
Acquisition and integration expenses (3) ........................................................... 3,282 511 2,333
New market penetration expenses (4) ................................................................ 1,407 1,380 1,511
Shop closure expenses, net (5) ........................................................................... 4,861 17,335 19,715
Restructurtt ing and severance expenses (6).......................................................... 7,561 5,050 7,125
Gain on remeasurement of equity method investment (7) ................................. (5,579) — —
Gain on sale-leaseback ..................................................................................... (1,569) (9,646) (6,549)
Other (8) ............................................................................................................. 3,203 4,307 6,285
Amortization of acquisition related intangibles (9) ............................................ 30,297 29,373 28,456

Add usted EBIT ...................................................................................... 90,22 115,103 109,174

(1) Primarily foreign translation gains and losses in each period. Fiscal 2024 also consists of equity method income from
Insomnia Cookies following the divestiture discussed in Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestitures, to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

(2) Fiscal 2024 consists primarily of costs associated with the divestiture of the Insomnia Cookies business, preparing forff the
McDonald’s U.S. expansion, and global transformation. Fiscal 2023 consists primarily of costs associated with global
transforff mation and U.S. initiatives such as the decision to exit the Branded Sweet Treats business, including property,
plant and equipment impairments, inventory wr rite-offs, employee severance, and other related costs. Fiscal 2022 consists
mainly of equipment disposals, equipment relocation and installation, consulting and advisory fees, and other costs
associated with the shift of Branded Sweet Treats manufacff turing capability froff m Burlington, Iowa to Winston-Salem,
North Carolina.

(3) Consists of acquisition and integration-related costs in connection with the Company’s business and franchise
acquisitions, including legal, due diligence, and advisory fees incurred in connection with acquisition and integration-
related activities forff the appla icable period.

(4) Consists of start-up costs associated with entry ir nto new countries in which the Company has not previously operated,
including Brazil and Spain.

(5) Includes lease termination costs, impairment charges, and loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment.
(6) Fiscal 2024 consists primarily of costs associated with the restrucrr turing of the U.S. and U.K. executive teams. Fiscal

2023 and 2022 consist primarily of costs associated with restructurt ing of the global executive team.
(7) Consists of a gain related to the remeasurement of the equity method investments in KreK meWorks USA, LLC and

KremeWorks Canada, L.P. to fair value immediately prior to the acquisition of the shops. Referff to Note 2, Acquisitions
and Divestitures, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements forff more information.

(8) Fiscal 2024 consists primarily of $3.1 million in costs related to remediation of the 2024 Cybersecurity Incident,
including fees for cybersecurity experts and other advisors. Fiscal 2023 and fisff cal 2022 consist primarily of legal and
other regulatory er xpenses incurred outside the ordinary crr ourse of business on matters described in Note 15,
Commitments and Contingencies, to the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

(9) Consists of amortization related to acquired intangible assets as reflected within depreciation and amortization in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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Geographical information related to consolidated revenues and long-lived assets is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023
January 1,
2023

Net revenues:
U.S......................................................................................... $ 1,091,597 $ 1,144,564 $ 1,049,824
U.K. ....................................................................................... 158,459 154,775 144,911
Australia / New Zealand............................................................. 122,737 117,328 114,250
Mexico ................................................................................... 127,230 120,072 96,354
All other.................................................................................. 165,374 149,365 124,559

Total net revenues ........................................................... 1,665,397 1,6 6,104 1,529, 9

Fiscal Years Ended
December 29,

2024
December 31,

2023
January 1,
2023

Long-lgg ivll ed assets:
U.S......................................................................................... $ 664,299 $ 735,955 $ 679,706
U.K. ....................................................................................... 82,140 79,039 66,776
Australia / New Zealand............................................................. 56,399 62,080 62,759
Mexico ................................................................................... 61,943 69,616 50,481
All other.................................................................................. 56,227 48,494 30,017

Total long-lived assets ...................................................... 921,00 995,1 4 9,739

Total long-lived assets consist of Property and equipment, net and Operating lease right of use asset, net.

Note 20 — Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure in the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements through Februarr ry 27, 2025, the date the audited Consolidated Financial Statements were availabla e to be
issued. All subsu equent events requiring recognition and disclosure have been incorporated into these audited Consolidated
Financial Statements.

On Februarr ry 13, 2025, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a $0.035 per share cash dividend payable on May 7, 2025,
to shareholders of record on April 23, 2025.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

ne.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Discii losure Contrott ls and ProPP cedures

In connection with the preparation of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, an evaluation was conducted by the Company’s
management, with participation of our CEO and Chief Financial Offiff cer (“CFO”), of the effeff ctiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedurd es (as definff ed in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of
December 29, 2024. Disclosure controls and procedurd es are designed to ensure that inforff mation required to be disclosed in
Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specifieff d in the SEC’s rulr es and
forms, and that such inforff mation is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our CEO and CFO, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Based on that evaluation, the Company’s management concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were not effeff ctive as of December 29, 2024 because of the material weakness in internal
control over finff ancial reporting discussed below.

Managea ment’s Annual Report on IntII ertt nal ConCC trol Over Finaii ncial Reportingii

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over finff ancial reporting. Internal control
over finff ancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabla e assurance regarding the reliabia lity of our financial reporting
for external purposr es in accordance with GAAP. Internal control over finff ancial reporting includes maintaining records that in
reasonabla e detail accurately and fairly reflect our transactions; providing reasonabla e assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary for preparation of our financial statements; providing reasonabla e assurance that receipts and expenditures are made in
accordance with management authorization; and providing reasonabla e assurance that unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of Company assets that could have a material effeff ct on our financial statements would be prevented or detected on a
timely basis. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over finff ancial reporting is not intended to provide absolute
assurance that a misstatement of our financial statements would be prevented or detected.

Management has assessed the effeff ctiveness of our internal control over finff ancial reporting as of December 29, 2024 based on
the fraff mework and criteria established in Internal Controt l — Integre ated Framework (rr 2013)(( issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As a result of this assessment, and after our additional evaluations
following the 2024 Cybersecurity Incident, management identifieff d a material weakness related to access that could enabla e the
creation of journal entries without review and appra oval. This created the potential opportunity for there to have been material
errors in multiple financial statement accounts that may not have been prevented or detected timely. Although the additional
evaluations following the 2024 Cybersecurity Incident aided in its identification, we believe this material weakness did not
result from the 2024 Cybersecurity Incident. Based on the identificff ation of this material weakness, management concluded that
the Company did not maintain effeff ctive internal control over finff ancial reporting as of December 29, 2024.

Remediatiott n MeaMM sures

Management is committed to taking actions to remediate the material weakness, which include designing and implementing
additional or enhanced controls to address the access that could enable the creation of journal entries without review and
approval, and system controls that enable proper segregation of dutd ies related to journal entry data and processes. We can offeff r
no assurance that these actions will ultimately have the intended effects. The material weakness will not be considered
remediated until the appla icable controls operate for a sufficff ient period of time and management has concluded, through testing,
that these controls are operating effeff ctively. Accordingly, management will continue to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness
of our internal control over finff ancial reporting and the disclosure controls and procedures.

Afteff r giving fulff l consideration to the material weakness described abovea and the additional analyses and other procedurd es that
were performed, management believes that the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K faiff rly present in all material respects the Company’s finff ancial condition, results of operations, and cash flows forff the periods
and dates presented.

Changes in Iii ntII ertt nal ConCC trols oll ver Finaii ncial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over finff ancial reporting that materially affeff cted, or are reasonabla y likely to
materially affeff ct, our internal control over finff ancial reporting durd ing the fiscal quarter ended December 29, 2024.

Attett stattt iott n of Io ndII epdd endent Regie stii ertt ed Publicll Accountintt g FirFF mrr

Our independent registered public accounting firff m, Grant Thornton LLP, has issued an audit report with respect to our internal
control over finff ancial reporting, which appea ars in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections

Not appla icable.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The inforff mation required by this item, including information aboa ut our Directors, Executive Offiff cers, Audit Committee, Insider
Trading Policy, and Code of Conduct, is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement forff our 2025 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days afteff r December 29, 2024.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The inforff mation required by this item is incorporrr ated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement forff our 2025 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days afteff r December 29, 2024.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The inforff mation required by this item is incorporrr ated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement forff our 2025 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days afteff r December 29, 2024.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The inforff mation required by this item is incorporrr ated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement forff our 2025 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days afteff r December 29, 2024.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

e inforff mation required by this item is incorporrr ated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement forff our 2025 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days afteff r December 29, 2024.
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PART I

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

a List the Following Documents Filed as Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1. Financial Statements

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

All scheduldd es have been omitted because they are not required or the required inforff mation is shown in the Consolidated
Financial Statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

E HIBIT NO. DESCRIPTION OF E HIBIT

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File number 001-40573, filed on August 18, 2021, and incorporated by
reference herein)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, File number 001-40573, filed on August 18, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

Description of Capital Stock (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, File number
001-40573, filed on February 27, 2024, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.1† Krispy Kreme, Inc. 2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference
herein

10.2† Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Registrant and each of its Executive Officers and Directors
(filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed
on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein

10.3 Investor Rights Agreement by and among Krispy Kreme, Inc., JAB Holdings B.V. and the Holders Listed on
Schedule A thereto, dated as of July 6, 2021 (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-
K, File number 001-40573, filed on March 11, 2022, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.4† Form of Share Repurchase Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form
S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

Employee Stock Purchase Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A,
File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.6† Krispy Kreme Holdings, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference
herein)

10.7† Award Under the Krispy Kreme Holdings, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice
(filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed
on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.8† Stock Option Award Terms and Conditions Under Krispy Kreme Holdings, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan
(filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed
on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.9† Restricted Stock Unit Award Terms and Conditions Under Krispy Kreme Holdings, Inc. Long-Term Incentive
Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664,
filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.10† Krispy Kreme Holdings, Inc. Executive Ownership Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference
herein)
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10.11† Matching Award under the Krispy Kreme Holdings, Inc. Executive Ownership Plan Restricted Stock Unit Grant
Notice (filed as Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number
333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.12 Letter Agreement, dated March 14, 2022, by and among Krispy Kreme, Inc., JAB Indulgence B.V., and JAB
Holdings B.V. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, File number 001-40573,
filed on March 16, 2022, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.13 Exclusive distribution agreement dated March 15, 2022, by and among Krispy Kreme Doughnut Corporation
and BakeMark USA LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File number
001-40573, filed on May 11, 2022, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.14† Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K,
File number 001-40573, filed on February 9, 2023, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.15† Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K, File number 001-40573, filed on February 9, 2023, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.16† Form of Option Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, File number
001-40573, filed on February 9, 2023, and incorporated by reference herein

10.17 Credit Agreement, dated March 23, 2023, by and among Krispy Kreme, Inc., Cotton Parent, Inc., Krispy Kreme
Doughnuts, Inc., the other borrowers party thereto from time to time, the lenders party thereto and BNP Paribas
as administrative agent and collateral agent (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-
K, File number 001-40573, filed on March 23, 2023, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.18† Transition & Director and Advisor Services Agreement effective December 1, 2023 between Michael
Tattersfield, Krispy Kreme, Inc., and Krispy Kreme Doughnut Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, File number 001-40573, filed on February 27, 2024, and incorporated
by reference herein)

10.19† Key Employment Agreement between Krispy Kreme Doughnut Corporation and Josh Charlesworth, dated
October 12, 2023 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File number
001-40573, filed on November 13, 2023, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.20† Insomnia Cookies Holdings, LLC Executive Ownership Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.23 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K, File number 001-40573, filed on February 27, 2024, and incorporated by reference
herein)

10.21† Matching Award Agreement effective December 11, 2023 evidencing a grant of Restricted Equity Units to
Michael J. Tattersfield by Insomnia Cookies Holdings, LLC) (filed as Exhibit 10.24 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K, File number 001-40573, filed on February 27, 2024, and incorporated by reference
herein)

10.22† Matching Award Agreement effective December 11, 2023 evidencing a grant of Restricted Equity Units to
Joshua A. Charlesworth by Insomnia Cookies Holdings, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K, File number 001-40573, filed on February 27, 2024, and incorporated by reference
herein)

10.23† Transition and Separation Agreement, dated March 13, 2024, between Krispy Kreme, Inc., Krispy Kreme
Doughnut Corporation, and Catherine Tang (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-
K, File number 001-40573, filed on March 14, 2024, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.24 Unit Purchase Agreement, dated July 17, 2024, among Insomnia Cookies Holdings, LLC, Mistral Sleepless
Holdings, LLC, and Verlinvest Cookies Holdings, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q, File number 001-40573, filed August 8, 2024, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.25† Agreement and General Release, dated as of January 10, 2025, by and between Krispy Kreme Doughnut
Corporation and Matthew Spanjers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File
number 001-40573, filed January 15, 2025, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.26† Letter agreement, dated July 17, 2024, between Insomnia Cookies Holdings, LLC, Krispy Kreme Doughnut
Corporation and Joshua Charlesworth (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
File number 001-40573, filed August 8, 2024, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.27† Letter agreement, dated July 17, 2024, between Insomnia Cookies Holdings, LLC, Krispy Kreme Doughnut
Corporation and Michael Tattersfield (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
File number 001-40573, filed August 8, 2024, and incorporated by reference herein)
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10.28† Letter agreement, dated July 17, 2024, between Krispy Kreme Doughnut Corporation and Matthew Spanjers
(filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File number 001-40573, filed August
8, 2024, and incorporated by reference herein)

19.1* Krispy Kreme, Inc. Insider Trading Policy

List of Subsidiaries

23.1* Consent of Grant Thornton LLP, an Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Krispy Kreme, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)
promulgated under the Exchange Act

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Krispy Kreme, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)
promulgated under the Exchange Act

32.1** Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Krispy Kreme, Inc. pursuant to Rule
13a-14(b) or 15d-14(b) promulgated under the Exchange Act, and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the
United States Code

97.1† Krispy Kreme, Inc. Clawback Policy (filed as Exhibit 97.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, File
number 001-40573, filed on February 27, 2024, and incorporated by reference herein)

101* The folff lowing financial statements froff m the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K forff the year ended
December 29, 2024, formatted in Inline XBRL: (i) Consolidated Statements of Operations, (ii) Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive (Loss)/Income, (iii) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iv) Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements

104* Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

________________________ ___________ ____________
* Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith.
† Compensatory prr lan or arrangement.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf of the undersigned, thereunto duld y authorized.

Date: February 2rr 7, 2025

Krispy Kreme, Inc.

By: /s/ Josh Charlesworth
Name: Josh Charlesworth
Title: Chief Executive Officff er

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been signed by the following
persons in the capacities indicated as of February 2rr 7, 2025.

Signatureg Title

/s/ Josh Charlesworth Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
Josh Charlesworth (Principal Executive Officff er)

/s/ Jeremiah Ashukian Chief Financial Offiff cer
Jeremiah Ashukian (Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Kelly McBride Chief Accounting Officer
Kelly McBride (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Olivier Goudet Director, Chairman of the Board
Olivier Goudet

/s/ Marissa Andrada Director
Marissa Andrada

/s/ David Bell Director
David Bell

/s/ Patricia Capel Director
Patricia Capea l

/s/ David Deno Director
David Deno

Director
Paul Michaels

/s/ Gerhard Pleuhs Director
Gerhard Pleuhs

/s/ Debbie Roberts Director
Debbie Roberts

/s/ Philip Telferff Director
Philip Telferff

/s/ Michelle Wees De irector
Michelle Weese
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